ΠΑΝΕΠΙΣΤΗΜΙΟ ΠΕΙΡΑΙΩΣ ΤΜΗΜΑ ΒΙΟΜΗΧΑΝΙΚΗΣ ΔΙΟΙΚΗΣΗΣ & ΤΕΧΝΟΛΟΓΙΑΣ



UNIVERSITY OF PIRAEUS DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL MANAGEMENT & TECHNOLOGY

Quantitative Modelling for the Assessment of Organizations' Sustainable Development with the Aim of Formulating Appropriate Decision-making Policies

By

Dimitris Bouras

A Thesis

Under the supervision of

Professor Sofianopoulou Styliani (Stella)

Piraeus, April 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	5
CHAPTER 1 - INTRODUCTION	6
1.1. General definitions of sustainability	6
1.2. Overview of the research and problem statement	8
1.3. Research aim and objectives	9
1.4. Research questions	9
1.5. Motivations, importance, and rationale of the research	10
1.6. Structure of the dissertation	11
CHAPTER 2 - LITERATURE REVIEW ON SUSTAINABILITY - THE ROLE OF INDICATORS	13
2.1. An overview of sustainability	13
2.2. The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) evolution and implementation, and they relate to Business & Policies	how 14
2.3. Milestones in the pursuit of Sustainable Development - The 2030 Agenda	17
2.4. Sustainable development in the European Union2.4.1. Tracking sustainable development in the EU2.4.2. Indicator's trend evaluating methods in the EU2.4.3. An overview of the EU's progress toward the SDGs	19 21 22 26
2.5. The case of Greece	29
2.6. Overview of existing academic literature	30
CHAPTER 3 - A SURVEY FOR BUSINESS SUSTAINABILITY	33
3.1 The need to use a questionnaire	33

3.2 The questionnaire's preliminary decisions	34
3.3 Deciding on the form of the questions	35
3.4 The pretest of the questionnaire	36
3.5 The structure of the questionnaire	37
3.6 Conducting the survey	38
CHAPTER 4 - A SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS MODEL	44
4.1. The basic principles of the model	44
4.2. Incentives for aligning businesses practices with the SDGs	46
4.3. Model building steps	47
4.4. Data collection for our model	48
4.5. Creation of the indicator's trendlines	54
4.6. The main concept of the corporate sustainability model	59
4.7. A cost-effectiveness factor in the corporate sustainability model	63
4.8. The sustainable development business model	75
CHAPTER 5 – INDICATORS' DISTRIBUTION IN THE DIMENSIONS OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT	77
5.1. Indicators' harmonious combinations	77
5.2. The appropriate mixture of the SDGs at the business level	80
5.3. Mapping the SDG indicators	84
CHAPTER 6 - A CASE STUDY FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT	88
6.1. The implementation of the sustainability model in EEAE	88
6.2. The EEAE SDG indicators selection	89
6.3. Calculating EEAE indicators' trend value (T _B)	92

6.4. The results from the application of the sustainability model	104
CHAPTER 7 – CONCLUSION	113
REFERENCES	116
LINKS	123
APPENDICES	125
Appendix I – The 2030 Agenda goals and targets	125
Appendix II – The indicators' trend value	160
Appendix III – Our survey's questionnaire	195
Appendix IV - The results of the questionnaire	203
Appendix V- The demographics of the survey	222

In memory of my father.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The fulfilment of this PhD was a challenging journey which began with enthusiasm and remained undiminished until these words are written. Through this intellectual path, I was honoured to be supported by an excellent supervisory committee. First and foremost, I wish to thank my direct supervisor, Professor Stella Sofianopoulou. This thesis would not have been possible without the time she spent, the support, the patient guidance and the advice she has provided me all these years. She spent endless hours proofreading my research and giving me excellent suggestions, which always resulted in improved versions of documents. She has guided me into the fascinating world of research, illuminating my pathway to a dissertation and helping me in every stage of it. As her constant encouragement was vital in making this thesis a reality, I feel privileged to have worked with her and I declare thankful forever!

At this point, I would also wish to thank the other two members of my supervisory committee, Mr Sidiras Dimitrios and Mr Tolis Athanassios, Professors at the University of Piraeus and the National Technical University of Athens respectively. I am grateful for their scientific advice and suggestions, as well as their decisive contribution to the awarding of my PhD.

I would also wish to thank the Chairman of the Greek Atomic Energy Commission (EEAE), Dr Christos Housiadas, for his support and the particular enthusiasm that showed for the sustainability matter in EEAE, granting me all the necessary data for the conduct of a case study in EEAE.

On a practical level, completing this work would have been more difficult were it not for my colleagues at work, especially those in my department. A big thanks for all their valuable help, especially in the last months of our daily work. In addition, I would like to thank Thymios, Kostas and Sotiris, my distinguished colleagues who listened to my concerns and well advised me variously.

Finally, I would be remiss if I didn't express my gratitude to my relatives, particularly to my brother who supported me with his knowledge of Mathematics. Last but not least, I wish to express my gratitude to my beloved ones, for their patience and acceptance of my emotional ups and downs during this research.

CHAPTER 1 - INTRODUCTION

1.1. General definitions of sustainability

The concept of sustainability is based on the interdependence between human societies and the natural environment. Social existence's nature, combined with the perpetual need for economic development, is placing pressures upon natural resources and may threaten the continued health and prosperity of human societies. The most frequently quoted definition of sustainable development comes from the report "Our Common Future", also known as the Brundtland Report: "Sustainable development is the development that meets the needs of the present, without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs" (United Nations Report of the World Commission on Environment and Development, 1987).

As a basic principle, sustainable development is a common objective both of the public and the private sector organizations. Due to the vagueness of the Brundtland Report's definition, referring to the adoption of sustainability at the operational level, this thesis will have achieved much of its purpose if it manages to interconnect this definition with procedures, in order to facilitate businesses to form their sustainable development priorities, throughout their operating process.

A popular elucidation of sustainable development consists of the "three circles model" of economic, social, and environmental considerations, often referred to as the three pillars of sustainability and, within the corporate agenda, the "triple bottom line" (Barkemeyer et al., 2011). The triple bottom line is a concept that posits that businesses should commit to measuring their social and environmental impact, in addition to their financial performance. The triple bottom line attempts to measure a business' level of commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and its impact on the environment over time. CSR is an opportunity for enterprises to combine economic, social, and environmental objectives, in order to enhance their sustainable development prospects (Commission of the European Communities, 2009). Since the last decade, sustainable development has gained widespread political and public authority and has arguably become

"the common currency of almost all players in the environmental arena" (Dobson, 1999). Analysis of worldwide media coverage demonstrates the increasing levels of public discourse on either sustainability or sustainable development (Barkemeyer et al., 2009).

On the other side, the concept of sustainability itself has attracted a considerable amount of criticism. In his discussion of key criticisms directed at sustainable development, Robinson (Barkemeyer et al., 2014) focuses on three major aspects. First, the vagueness of the concept of sustainable development, giving room for very different interpretations; second, a hypocritical approach to the label of sustainable development, closely related to the difficulty of measuring whether a specific activity is furthering sustainable development or not; third, that sustainable development, in fact, is an oxymoron, proposing increased industrial output in the light of scarce resources and environmental limits to growth. Additionally, despite the plethora of innovative research frameworks and remarkable accomplishments, the engineering of a lucid vision is still a missing framework in the science of sustainability. Kronenberger points out, "The trouble with our age is all signposts and no destination (Kim & Oki, 2011).

A sustainable future will require a purpose-driven transformation of society at all scales, guided by the best foresight, with insight based on hindsight that science can provide. Donella Meadows (Stutz, 2010) explained the role of vision quite clearly: "Vision is the most vital step in the policy process. If we don't know where we want to go, it makes little difference that we make great progress".

In any case, the promotion of sustainable consumption accompanied by the prevention and reduction of environmental pollution should be a goal, in order to break the link between economic growth and environmental degradation. For this reason, we should ensure that the right business policies are developed, assessed, and implemented on the basis of the best available knowledge with an economic efficiency perspective (European Environment Agency, 2006). This means that, among other things, we should pay attention (Parrado & Löffler, 2010) to targets such as:

- Ensuring efficient, cost-effective, planned, and sustainable maintenance of buildings, offices, and equipment.
- Ensuring efficient, cost-effective, and sustainable use of transport and energy resources.

 Developing an integrated policy for managing physical assets, including their safe recycling/disposal e.g. by direct management or subcontracting.

In any case, it remains a challenge to focus on the correct policy when we are about to come to a decision. As Caldwell (Farrell, 1999) noted, "Policy has several different connotations, but all carry the implication of the choice. Were there no choice, there would be little occasion for policy".

1.2. Overview of the research and problem statement

The achievement of sustainable development, on an operational, local, national, or global scale, is an extremely complex issue. First of all, the concept of sustainable development itself is characterized by ambiguity and possibly arbitrary decisions. In order to ensure the future generations' ability to meet their needs, we have to take the "right" decisions in the present. However, adjusting the level of development in the present, so as not to disrupt this potential for the next generations to come, is not only a critical but also a controversial issue.

This can be explained by the fact that the sustainable development goals, even if they are measurable, are not legally binding. At a global level also, there is no universally accepted norm or agreement to serve compulsory sustainability goals. In any case, anyone could say that defining today's needs, is certainly characterized by a degree of subjectivity and depends to a great extent on self-interested goals and on different social, political, and economic perceptions. Needless to say that, decisions at this level are mainly driven by corporate, sectoral, national, or union interests. And it is anything but easy to find a balance between social, political, and economic perceptions, legislation, private and public sector initiatives, and consumer choices. It is also difficult to find the right "mix of sustainability", either on the local or at the global level. Questions such as, "when is sustainabile development achieved", "at what rate", and "how close, or far, are we to sustainability", are always relevant and invite us to give clearer answers.

1.3. Research aim and objectives

The research aim of this thesis is to contribute to the development of a model, for applying the rules of sustainable development in businesses and transform the theoretical principles of sustainability into practical rules at the business (corporate) level.

The business world – ranging from agriculture to fossil fuel exploitation and from transportation to utilities and financial service industries – significantly contributes to the transgression of the nature's limits, so it has an important role to play in overcoming this tragedy (Hummels & Argyrou, 2021). Although the idea of sustainable development is not recent, we strongly believe that there are favourable social and economic conditions as well as critical space for giving a clearer view of sustainability at the business level. Thus, rules will be created to enable companies to set their priorities and shape their sustainable development policy, which may be then adapted to their procedures.

Obviously, the purpose of the aforementioned model is to help businesses discover (time-dependent), the degree of their commitment to sustainability principles. Furthermore, to give indications of the pillars of sustainability (environmental, economic, and social), that progress has been made or to sound an alarm when further progress is vitally important. The creation of this sustainability model, as well as its practical implementation, could potentially qualify it as another tool for decision-making.

In addition, another concern for this model is to emerge into a simple and clear-tofollow guide, which will arouse all the reader's interest. After all, sustainable development as a field of scientific research, refers to all stakeholders and not only to those of the business world.

1.4. Research questions

Trying to answer specific questions such as "whether we are on the path of sustainability", "to what extent" and "what more could we do to achieve it", are some of

the key issues to deal with and address in this thesis. At this point, we must clarify that in the next chapters, we will focus exclusively on the business level. Even though some could claim that the interdependencies between businesses and the sectors they belong are too strong, sustainability at levels beyond the operational one won't be an area of research in this thesis. Nevertheless, for the purposes of this thesis, we will accept that for achieving sustainability at the corporate level, a bidirectional sustainable development relationship between the corporate and the national (or even the international level) should exist. After all, the decisions made at the broadest level (national or international), directly affect the nexus of sustainability at all levels, first and foremost at the business level. Subsequently, it becomes obvious that decisions taken at the national level will significantly determine sustainability's effectiveness in businesses.

Moreover, it is generally accepted that on a personal level, most of us would like to contribute to the protection of the environment. To contribute to maintaining social cohesion, addressing social inequalities, to ensure that resources are saved for the future generations and encourage the use of environmentally friendly energy sources. In brief, to think sustainably and contribute to the safeguarding of the rights of the future generations. In a similar way, that is the main issue for the businesses. So, what's the reason that some businesses do not act in a sustainable way? Are there still businesses in which gender balance in leadership positions is not ensured? Are there still companies where access to education is not a reality for everyone? Why there is still environmental degradation, exploitation and poor working conditions, and why not always fair wages?

In the following chapters, we will shed light on the above "inconsistencies" and will focus on parameters that may provide solutions. Mainly, we will point out the areas that may be improved, from a sustainable development point of view. In order for the future generations to enjoy, what previous generations enjoyed (and even more).

1.5. Motivations, importance, and rationale of the research

Our research is carried out to encourage stakeholders to discover the more practical side of business sustainability principles. Moreover, to give some answers and develop a practical model to help businesses realize how close or far are moving from a "set" target point of sustainability. As a result, we consider that the findings of this research will benefit the scientific community, especially those who work on this specific subject.

It should not be a secret, that the author, as a Ph.D. candidate, got discouraged quite a few times during the writing of this thesis. Tough situations such as intensive working conditions, the last decade's financial crisis, the shift of business interest from a sustainability-driven concept towards the satisfaction of basic needs (due to the crisis), and finally the ambiguity of the core concept of sustainable development, which may be translated into lack of rewarding benefit for the businesses that invest in it, were some of the main challenges that contributed to delaying and bringing doubt for this thesis completion.

However, despite the obstacles, this "journey" was joyful and the desire to get through this intellectual joy, made me defend my Ph.D. Full of insatiable curiosity, which still remains, mainly as to whether this thesis will have the desired impact on the scientific community, we tried to draw novel conclusions about this research topic. In each case, we wish that our research will contribute to a better understanding of the business sustainability case, adding one more tool to the decision-making process.

1.6. Structure of the dissertation

The core of this thesis is the appropriate goals selection, referring to the priorities defined across the SDGs, in order the businesses to gain new growth possibilities while lowering their risk profiles. While developing this thesis, we judged that it would be more productive to divide its contents into 7 main chapters.

The first Chapter is introductory, in which we state the sustainability's definitions, directed mainly to the business level, the research aims and objectives of this thesis as well as the gap this research is intended to cover. The second Chapter includes the necessary information about the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), as well as their evolution, the implementation and the effect the SDGs have in the European Union and Greece level respectively.

The third chapter is dedicated to a survey for sustainability, conducted by the University of Piraeus in 2014, in order to shed light on the opinion of the executives of Greek businesses towards sustainable development. The business executives were also asked to give a weighting factor to a series of sustainability indicators, evaluating them according to their "business sense of importance" and enabling us to create a new coefficient to be used in our model. The results of the survey are presented analytically in the Annex IV of this thesis.

In Chapter 4, we evolve our sustainable development business model with the selection of the appropriate SDG indicators, in order for each business to positively contribute to the sustainable development. The core concept of the theory is that the business attitude towards indicators of interest, should be always superior to the corresponding attitude of an EU average, respecting the business costs that will be incurred from the shift to sustainability.

In Chapter 5, as sustainability is not just environmentalism, profitability or cost reduction, we make a reference to the mixture of the SDGs, which should be evenly distributed to all three pillars of sustainability (economic, environmental, and social), while in the chapter 6 we set our model into practice, using data derived by the Greek Atomic Energy Commission (EEAE).

In Chapter 7, conclusions and points of further research are recorded, while in the Appendix we may find information about the filtering of the SDG indicators in order to be used at the operational level, the business indicators' trend value as well as detailed information on the survey of Chapter 3.

Entering the main body of this thesis, we wish you a pleasant reading.

CHAPTER 2 - LITERATURE REVIEW ON SUSTAINABILITY -THE ROLE OF INDICATORS

2.1. An overview of sustainability

Despite sustainability being a relatively new field, it has influences from older fields of science. Among such traditional scientific fields, we could prioritize "ecology and preservation of the natural environment", "economic development", and "social justice and cohesion". Many of the ideas of "sustainable development" came to the scientific community's attention in 1983, when the United Nations assigned the performance of "The New World Commission on Environment and Development" to the former Norwegian prime minister Gro Harlem Brundtland.

The main issue for Brundtland's Commission was to find a method to balance prosperity combined with ecology, as it seemed that development at the cost of ecology and social equity would not lead to long-lasting prosperity. After four years of research, the Brundtland Commission released its final report, which was named "Our Common Future". In their report, sustainable development is defined as "*the development that meets the needs of the present, without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs*". Since then, regarding the description of "sustainable development", this definition has prevailed over any other.

In order to give another reference, we could say that sustainability is the capacity to endure. It's not just environmentalism, but also includes the proper use of social and economic resources. Therefore, sustainability, as a holistic approach recognizes the environmental, economic, and social dimensions, as the main pillars of the long-term maintenance of well-being and prosperity.

Thus, these three dimensions (environmental, economic, and social), are defined as the three pillars of sustainability (in Figure 1 we can see the graphic illustration of the three pillars of sustainability).



Figure 1: The three pillars of sustainability

2.2. The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) evolution and implementation, and how they relate to Business & Policies

Sustainability indicators have received increasing attention during the last decades (since the Rio Earth Summit, June 1992), reflecting growing concern by the public and policymakers over environmental trends. Indicators represent an attempt to quantify these trends, and to determine if the perception that environmental conditions are deteriorating is indeed correct (Sherbinin, 2003). Moreover, indicators translate physical and social science knowledge into manageable units of information, which can facilitate the decision-making (UN Commission on Sustainable Development) while measuring and calibrating progress toward Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

As far as sustainable development indicators are concerned, they point to areas where the links between the economy, environment and society are weak (Sustainable Measures). From the perspective of environmental research and regulatory policy, two fundamental questions arise that underscore the need for using indicators to show progress toward sustainability (Kates et al., 2001): • How can today's operational systems for monitoring and reporting on environmental and social conditions, be integrated or extended to provide more useful guidance for efforts to navigate a transition toward sustainability?

• How can today's relatively independent activities of research planning, monitoring, assessment and decision support, be better integrated into systems of adaptive management and social learning?

According to the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD 2003), measurement helps decision-makers and the public define social goals, link them to clear objectives and targets, and assess progress toward meeting those targets (Sherbinin 2003; UN Commission on Sustainable Development). It provides an empirical and numerical basis for evaluating performance, calculating the impact of our activities on the environment and society and connecting past and present activities to attain future goals.

Furthermore, indicators can provide an early warning, sounding the alarm in time to prevent economic, social and environmental damage. They are also important tools to communicate ideas, thoughts and values (UN Commission on Sustainable Development). Based on the three pillars concept, a sustainability indicator can be defined as a measurable aspect of environmental, economic, or social systems, that is useful for monitoring changes in system characteristics relevant to the continuation of human and environmental wellbeing. The use of sustainability indicators and corresponding metrics is essential for an integrated systems approach to the addressing challenges of sustainability (Fiksel et al., 2012).

When carefully chosen, indicators can help managers and policymakers to:

- Anticipate and assess conditions or historical trends
- Benchmark against other systems
- Track progress
- Provide early warning information to prevent adverse outcomes
- Support decision-making
- Establish improvement goals
- Formulate strategies

The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, which was adopted by all United Nations Member States in 2015, provides a timeless master plan for peace and prosperity on the planet. In order to form a mechanism for the implementation of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, a solid framework of indicators was required. The global indicator framework was adopted by the General Assembly on 6 July 2017 and is contained in the Resolution adopted by the General Assembly on Work of the Statistical Commission pertaining to the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development. According to the Resolution, the indicator framework will be refined annually and reviewed comprehensively by the Statistical Commission. It consists of 17 main Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), which represent an urgent call for action. The SDGs are defined in a list of 169 SDG targets, while progress toward these targets is monitored by 232 indicators (United Nations, n.d., https://unstats.un.org/sdgs/indicators/Global%20Indicator%20Framework%20after%202 022%20refinement_Eng.pdf) as shown in Figure 2.



As the choice of the appropriate indicators is heavily dependent upon the stakeholder's purposes, worldview, and system of values, it is obvious that the identification and implementation of the appropriate mix of the SDGs can provide a solid basis for decision-making at all levels of an Organization (either of the public or of the private sector).

2.3. Milestones in the pursuit of Sustainable Development - The 2030 Agenda

The World Commission on Environment and Development (WCED) in 1987, where the sustainable development definition was first introduced, was followed by important events as shown in Figure 3. These events depict the milestones in the international pursuit of sustainable development and facilitated the adoption of the Agenda 2030 for Sustainable Development.



Specifically, in 2015 the UN General Assembly adopted a new global sustainable development agenda under the title "Transforming our World: the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development." A total number of 17 main Sustainable Development Goals depicted 4 (SDGs), in Figure (Dpicampaigns, 2020, as http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/%20sustainable-development-goals) combined with 169 quantitative and qualitative linked targets or strategic objectives, form the basis of the 2030 Agenda. These targets aim to end poverty, safeguard the environment, promote prosperity and bring peace, by calling for the implementation of the Agenda at the global level (UN SDSN Secretariat, Getting Started with the SDG, A Guide for stakeholders, December 2015). The SDGs expand upon the former eight (8) UN Millennium Development Goals, which were substantiated to fight poverty in any aspect in the world (Goal 1: Eradicate extreme poverty and hunger, Goal 2: Achieve universal primary education, Goal 3: Promote gender equality and empower women, Goal 4: Reduce child mortality, Goal 5: Improve maternal health, Goal 6: Combat HIV/AIDS, malaria and other diseases, Goal 7: Ensure environmental sustainability, Goal 8: Develop a global partnership for development).

Subsequently, the SDG's broader concept, in terms of importance and scope, urges for global action to achieve the economic, social, and environmental goals. The Agenda emphasizes in forming the appropriate policies, to protect the environment and confront climate change, in combination with policies that will reduce poverty and advance sustainable development for all. Governments are required to take measures and set up national frameworks for achieving the 17 Goals, even if they are not legally binding.



The SDGs are monitored at many different levels, including global, regional, national, local, and thematic levels. The UN publishes the report on "Progress Toward the Sustainable Development Goals" on an annual basis, which is followed by a report on the SDGs for the general public. Based on chosen metrics from the global indicator framework, the latter gives a general picture of the 17 SDGs' development. An international collaboration, to mobilize the necessary resources, is essential for the SDGs to be achieved globally.

The mobilization of resources for sustainable development is thus another crucial component of the 2030 Agenda, along with the setting of goals and targets and the creation of a list of global indicators. The Third International Conference on Financing for Development, which took place in July 2015 in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, was a significant turning point in the intergovernmental negotiations for financing sustainable development. The Conference resulted in a Document, as its final product, which outlines specific initiatives for mobilizing methods of implementation as part of the 2030 Agenda (*https://www.un.org/esa/ffd/publications/aaaa-outcome.html*). Thus, in order to track the 2030 Agenda's implementation, indicators at the level of UN world regions and at the national level were added to the global indicator framework. For instance, indicator sets have been created for Africa, Latin America, and the Caribbean, as well as the Asia-Pacific area. Based on regional relevance and data accessibility for a recently created UNECE SDG Dashboard, the UN Economic Commission for Europe (UNECE) chose 80 indicators, from a worldwide list, for the European level.

In the Appendix I of this thesis we can see the "Global indicator framework for the Sustainable Development Goals and targets of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development", as contained in the Annex of the resolution adopted by the UN General Assembly on 6 July 2017, Work of the Statistical Commission pertaining to the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, annual refinements contained in E/CN.3/2018/2, E/CN.3/2019/2, 2020 Comprehensive Review changes and annual refinements contained in E/CN.3/2020/2, annual refinements contained in E/CN.3/2021/2, annual refinements contained in E/CN.3/2022/2 and decisions (53/101) by the 53rd United Nations Statistical Commission (E/2022/24-E/CN.3/2022/41).

2.4. Sustainable development in the European Union

Since 1997, the European Union (EU) has made sustainable development one of its guiding principles and a top priority for its policy (European Commision, 2011). During the last decades, the Commission and numerous EU Member States have stepped up their efforts to encourage the adoption of Corporate Social Responsibility (European Parliament,

2011) focusing on stakeholder communication (Commission of the European Communities 2009).

According to "The European Green Deal" and the staff working document (SWD) "Delivering on the UN's Sustainable Development Goals — A Comprehensive Approach," the EU has made a firm commitment to achieving the goals of the 2030 Agenda. As a result, the EU welcomed the adoption of the 2030 Agenda, as shown in Figure 5, and declared its commitment to implementing the SDGs and fully incorporating these objectives into the European policy framework. *[Eurostat, Sustainable Development in the EU, Monitoring report on progress towards the SDGs in an EU context (2021 edition].*



The EU strategy for implementing the SDGs has been impacted by a number of significant policy texts. A statement from 2016 'Next steps for a sustainable European future: European action for sustainability' formally declared the SDGs' inclusion in the European policy framework. A 2019 paper titled "Towards a Sustainable Europe by 2030" also emphasized the complicated issues the EU is dealing with and identified the competitive advantages that the EU would gain by adopting the SDGs. The European

Consensus on Development, which established the EU common vision and action framework for development cooperation, was agreed in 2017 in response to the 2030 Agenda concerning the EU's external operations. Additionally, since 2017 the EU has been focusing on how the SDGs could be implemented in its annual SDG monitoring report. *[Eurostat, Sustainable Development in the EU, Monitoring report on progress towards the SDGs in an EU context (2021 edition]*.

The EU SDG indicator framework, which is organized along the 17 UN SDGs, encompasses the social, economic, and environmental aspects of sustainability as they are embodied in Agenda 2030. The indicators were chosen based on their policy importance for the EU, subject to data availability for the EU countries. Six main indicators have been allocated to each SDG, chosen to represent the SDG's overall targets and aspirations. Thirty-seven of the indicators are "multi-purpose," which means they are used to track multiple goals, while sixty-seven of them are allocated to a single SDG. This improves the narrative of this monitoring report and enables the connection between several targets to be highlighted. The EU SDG indicator framework is subject to periodical review, so as to be updated in cases of new policy-making, application of different methodologies, and use of new technologies. *[Eurostat, Sustainable Development in the EU, Monitoring report on progress towards the SDGs in an EU context (2021 edition)].*

2.4.1. Tracking sustainable development in the EU

As it is of the main interest for the EU to track, from an EU point of view, the development towards the SDGs, Eurostat in close collaboration with other Commission services [like the European Environment Agency and Member State organizations in the European Statistical System (ESS), Council Committees and Working Parties, as well as the civil society] has led the development of the SDG indicator framework *(https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/sdi/indicators)*.

The evaluation process considers both the direction and rate of an indicator's change, with respect to the sustainable development objective. The approach emphasizes in changes over time and is typically based on the "compound annual growth rate" (CAGR) formula, which evaluates the rate and direction of an indicator's evolution. The CAGR uses data from the first and the last year of an examined time period, so as to calculate the indicator's average annual rate of change (in percent).

Depending on whether a quantifiable EU policy aim exists, the assessment of indicator trends is displayed as arrows, as shown in Figure 6. Whether the indicators are progressing in a sustainable direction or not, is shown by the direction of the arrows. At this point, it should be clarified that progress towards the sustainable development is represented with an upward arrow, while a downward arrow shows the opposite.

Symbol	With quantitative target	Without quantitative target	
1	Significant progress towards the EU target	Significant progress towards SD objectives	
1	Moderate progress towards the EU target	Moderate progress towards SD objectives	
\$	Insufficient progress towards the EU target	Moderate movement away from SD objectives	
Ļ	Movement away from the EU target	Significant movement away from SD objectives	
:	Calculation of trend not possible (for example, time series too short)		

If applicable, indicator trends are evaluated over two time periods:

• The long-term, which is based on how the indicator has changed over the previous 15 years (data mainly refer to 2005-2020 or 2006-2021). If data are available for at least 10 consecutive years, the long-term trend can also be estimated for shorter time series.

• The short-term, which is based on how the indicator has changed over the previous 5-year period (data mainly refer to 2015-2020 or 2016-2021). The short-term trend may, exceptionally, be estimated for shorter time periods provided that data are available for at least three consecutive years.

2.4.2. Indicator's trend evaluating methods in the EU

The assessment method focuses on changes over time while considering whether an indicator has progressed faster or slower, in relation to the sustainable development aim.

The observed values for each indicator should ideally be compared to the theoretical trends required to achieve either a quantitative goal specified or a scientific threshold.

This strategy, nevertheless, can only be used for a selected few indicators, where the EU has a specific quantifiable and measurable aim. To prevent ad hoc value judgments, a plain and straightforward method is used across the remaining indicators. The two strategies are described in greater depth below, in two groups. The first is for indicators with quantitative targets and the latter is for indicators without such targets.

a) Indicators with quantitative targets

In the case of a quantitative target, the theoretical rate of change, necessary to achieve the target in the target year, is contrasted with the actual rate of change of the indicator (based on the CAGR). The indicator indicates considerable progress toward the EU target if the actual rate is 95% or higher than the required rate. If that rate is between 60% and 95%, then the trend indicates moderate progress, and if the ratio falls below 60% then there is no progress made towards the EU target. Negative values indicate that the trend is moving out from the EU target.



The thresholds for comparing an indicator trend to a quantitative goal that calls for a rise in the indicator values are shown in Figure 7 above. This comparison does not take into account the potential future developments of an indicator and is performed for both the long-term (last 15 years) and short-term (past 5 years) periods. The CAGR formula is used to calculate the real and required indicator trends, and includes the following steps (a.1 to a.3):

a.1 ACTUAL (OBSERVED) GROWTH RATE (CAGR_α)

(a.1)
$$CAGR_a = \left(\frac{y_t}{y_{t_0}}\right)^{\frac{1}{t-t_0}} - 1$$

where: $t_0 = base year$ t = most recent year $y_t_0 = indicator$ value in base year $y_t = indicator$ value in most recent year

a.2 REQUIRED (THEORETICAL) GROWTH RATE TO MEET THE TARGET (CAGR_r)

(a.2)
$$CAGR_r = \left(\frac{x_{t_1}}{y_{t_0}}\right)^{\frac{1}{t_1 - t_0}} - 1$$

where:

 $t_0 = base year$

 $t_1 = target year$

 y_{t0} = indicator value in base year

 x_{t1} = target value in target year

a.3 RATIO OF ACTUAL AND REQUIRED GROWTH RATE (Ra/r)

(a.3)
$$R_{a/r} = \frac{CAGR_a}{CAGR_r}$$

Ratio of actual and required growth rate	Symbol
≥ 95 %	1
< 95 % and ≥ 60 %	1
$< 60\%$ and $\ge 0\%$	\$
< 0 %	Ļ

Figure 8 below shows the thresholds applied for the Ra/r ratio and the resulting symbols.

b) Indicators without quantitative targets

In contrast to the prior category, in the absence of a quantitative target, it is only possible to compare the indicator trend with the desired direction. If an indicator develops in the proper direction, it is moving towards the SD objectives; if it develops in the incorrect direction, it is moving away from the SD objectives. The CAGR-based observed indicator's rate of change is then contrasted with the following thresholds:

- A change greater of 1% per year is considered 'substantial' and if the change is going in the right direction, "substantial progress toward SD objectives" has been made. If the change is going in the incorrect direction, "substantial movement away from SD objectives" has occurred.
- An annual change in the desired direction which is between 0 and 1% is referred to as "moderate progress towards SD objectives", while a change with these percentages in the opposite direction is considered as "moderate movement away from SD objectives".

Eurostat has been using the 1% limit in its monitoring reports for more than ten years. It has the discernment to guarantee that there has been a major shift in the right direction. Additionally, it enables the presentation of a detailed picture with a sufficient number of indicators belonging to all four categories, as shown in Figure 9. The following method is used to evaluate trends for indicators without quantifiable targets over both the long-term (15 years) and the short-term (5 years) time frames:

b. COMPOUND ANNUAL GROWTH RATE (CAGR)

(b)
$$CAGR = \left(\frac{y_t}{y_{t_0}}\right)^{\frac{1}{t-t_0}} - 1$$

where:

 $\begin{array}{l} t_0 = base \ year \\ t = most \ recent \ year \\ yt_0 = indicator \ value \ in \ base \ year \\ y_t = indicator \ value \ in \ most \ recent \ year \end{array}$



Figure 9 above depicts the thresholds for evaluating an indicator whose desired direction is upward, while it is reversed for indicators where the desired direction is a decrease.

2.4.3. An overview of the EU's progress toward the SDGs

To form an overall picture of whether the EU has achieved progress towards sustainable development or not (in terms of the objectives and targets defined by the EU),

indicator trends are evaluated based on their average annual growth rate over the previous five years. Referring to the indicators with quantitative EU targets (15 of the total 17), that currently exist in the environmental area, energy consumption, and education, they are evaluated depending on their progress. The other indicators (2 out of the 17) are evaluated based on the direction and pace of change.

Over the period 2015 to 2021 (depending on the data availability), and based on the majority's goal progress as well as mean scores, we conclude that the EU has made progress towards the most SDGs. This progress was not proportional against all indicators, as progress in some goals was significant (6 SDGs), while in others was slower (9 SDGs). The remaining (2 SDGs) are more or less neutral or show a slight removal from the sustainable development objective.

In Figure 10 below, the EU's progress towards the SDGs over the past 5 years is schematically analyzed so as to better understand the trends over the last years (mainly the last five years, depending on the data availability).



2.5. The case of Greece

Greece, as an EU country member since 1981, remains fully committed to the Agenda 2030. The 17 SDGs have been adopted by the Greek Government and are embedded in national policy, in line with European policy. According to the introductory speech of the Prime Minister of Greece in the second voluntary report entitled "Greece's 2022 Voluntary National Review, on the implementation of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development", *all SDGs are monitored equally in order to report progress without shying away from any vulnerabilities*.

For Greece, the SDGs provide an important opportunity for economic growth and transition to a new development model, balancing equally among the three pillars – economic, social and environmental. The SDGs implementation goes far beyond the governmental responsibilities, and embraces all social partners, starting from the local government and the private sector, continuing to the Academic community, NGOs, and civil organizations. The transition to a new development model means that all citizens shall benefit, recognizing the finite nature of certain natural resources.

During the last decade, a major reform took place in Greece, as the share of Renewable Energy Sources in energy consumption – transportation, electricity, cooling and heating – was doubled, from 10.1% in 2010 to 21.7% in 2020. On the other hand, income inequalities were reduced to pre-economic crisis levels of 5.23% in 2020 and poverty declined to 17.7% in 2020, the lowest rate in 11 years (Presidency of the Hellenic Government, 2022). Greece is also reported as one of the two (2021) countries in the European Union (EU) that managed to not move away from any of the 17 Goals, while improving, within a year, its performance in SDGs 2, 7, 10 and 12 (to above the EU average). Policies for clean energy continued to advance largely unretarded and public service digitization accelerated significantly.

On the other hand, the pandemic influenced Greece's efforts to achieve the SDGs, as plans to increase the accessibility and efficacy of health services were negatively impacted. Weak demographic trends, greater female and young unemployment, and a poor record on gender equality are also facts of special concern. Finally, the judicial and waste management systems have moved beyond their operational limit, causing complications to the society, the economy and the environment.

The Greek Voluntary National Review (VNR) on the implementation of the 2030 Agenda is, to a significant extent, the country's roadmap toward achieving the SDGs. Furthermore, in VNR the progress made at the national level for all 17 Goals is analyzed, while key challenges come to the foreground for each SDG. The progress is mainly assessed through data of relevant SDG indicators that, have been mainly provided by the Hellenic Statistical Authority (ELSTAT).

2.6. Overview of existing academic literature

In Chapter 3 of this thesis, our journey to create a sustainable development business model begins. However, in this section we will review the most relevant scientific literature as well as pay a tribute to all those researchers who have already tackled the issue of sustainability at the operational level. The purpose of our thesis is to supplement these reports so as to further strengthen their arguments, or to shed light on their findings.

The common place of recent sustainability research is that the business leaders are called to support the adoption of sustainable development practices in their operations. Elkington (Elkington, 1999) suggests that businesses have a moral responsibility to ensure that sustainability is on their growth agenda. A few years ago, sustainability was seen by most companies as an issue hardly central to a company's core business. Business managers in the past, were less likely to feel responsible for delivering the SDGs, as they thought that this was а government's territory (United Nations, n.d., http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/sustainable-development-goals/). But nowadays, as companies face a highly unpredictable business landscape, this tends to change. In this sense, businesses have to confront and adapt to a range of urgent matters that include climate change issues, uncertainties associated with rising energy costs, intense competition for raw materials, shrinking natural resources, and financial reforms and regulations. At the same time, the social and environmental impact of a company is coming under greater scrutiny with demands of higher accountability and transparency from all stakeholders. Hence, embedding sustainability into decision making and formulation of core strategies is becoming a mainstream approach to business-as-usual. Additionally, it is a priority for businesses to bring scalable and profitable solutions to market, in a way to be beneficial for the society and business performance simultaneously (Ghosh & Rajan, 2019). Businesses may be profit-seeking entities, but their long-term profits will not be achievable if their social and environmental issues are not properly managed. Hence, to address the concept of sustainability, the whole company, as well as all its stakeholders in the value chain, should become involved in a new way of thinking and acting (Hilton, 2003).

According to the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, any business plays a critical role in the achievement of these goals (Agarwal et al., 2017). The United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) and the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) have recently set up a new joint initiative aiming at enabling businesses to incorporate SDG reporting into their existing processes, empowering them to take acion (United Nations Global Compact, 2018).

Moreover, the private sector is under ever-increasing pressure to improve the use of resources on important issues, ranging from climate change to sustainable development (Chakravorti, 2017). A report of the Business and Sustainability Development Commission, lays out the business case for the SDGs and explains why corporations will benefit from factoring the Global Goals into their business strategies (The Business and Sustainable Development Commission, 2016). Particularly, when businesses achieve the Global Goals, they are offered a compelling growth strategy, while the Global Goals need business. Unless private companies seize the market opportunities they open up to themselves, and demonstrate progress on the whole Global Goals package, the abundance of benefits they are offered will not be achieved. Moreover, sustainability opens up new opportunities and big efficiency gains; it drives innovation and enhances reputation. Businesses accompanied by a good reputation for sustainability practices, attract and retain employees, consumers, customers and investors. That is why sustainable companies around the globe are thriving and delivering attractive returns to shareholders.

These optimistic and encouraging voices contradict with many studies which prove that sustainability has a high degree of subjectivity, is often vague in concept and can cause diffusion of interpretation and confusion in practice (Moore et al., 2017). Potentially, this is the reason that Glavic and Lukman suggested that defining sustainable development in a practical way, can be somewhat uncertain, since there are several interpretations that can be deployed (Glavič & Lukman, 2007). Besides, research into the use of the SDG framework has identified that the ammount of the targets (N=169) and indicators (N=232) is numerous and complicated. A research study (Mansell et al., 2019) concluded that a new approach was needed to reduce the scientific and statistical complexity of the SDG measurement framework. In support of the above, the UK's Office for National Statistics (ONS) online portal, responsible for reporting UK's progress against global SDG indicator measurement, showed that, in April 2019, had data only for 163 of the 232 indicators (Mansell et al., 2020).

In conjunction with all these studies and reports, our thesis intends to add its own perspective of sustainability, focusing on the operational level. The challenge is changing business attitudes towards new sustainability practices and business models (Sachs, 2012). And our case is to prove that beyond any obstacles, new opportunities are emerging. We are referring to tangible rules by the model presented in Chapter 4, which when satisfied it is certain that the businesses will move to the right direction, that is towards a sustainable business world.

CHAPTER 3 - A SURVEY FOR BUSINESS SUSTAINABILITY

3.1 The need to use a questionnaire

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an opportunity for each enterprise to combine economic, social and environmental objectives, in order to enhance their sustainable development prospects (Commission of the European Communities 2009). In this direction, it is important that each enterprise should implement an efficient, cost-effective and sustainable use of physical and non-physical assets, as well as consumables, without ignoring maintenance and safe recycling or disposal. At this point, we should not omit to emphasize the attention that should be paid to human resources, in terms of treating the workforce in a way that its mental balance and physical integrity would be ensured.

Another important factor we should highlight is the interaction between each organization and its stakeholders. Each enterprise is not only committed to its business interests but has to interact flawlessly with a wide nexus in its external surrounding. The surrounding includes the social, cultural, political, economic and technological context and still a group of factors that operate directly or close to the organization, such as clients, suppliers, competitors, unions, NGOs and media. The stakeholders influence each other and their interaction enables the development of common policies and practices against mutual problems or critical issues and abnormalities.

In order we "keep our fingers on the pulse" of what businesses consider as significant relating to sustainability, a survey was conducted in Greece from January to March 2014. Throughout the survey, we expected to perceive the adoption of the principles of sustainable development on the corporate level as well as to generate a new parameter for the SDG indicators, which will be named the "Indicator's Significance Factor (S)" and will be described in detail in the next sections.

For the purposes of the survey, in order to monitor progress toward sustainable development on the corporate level, we decided to use a wide range of indicators that weren't chosen by the current framework of sustainability, as the nowadays framework was adopted later in 2017. For indicators that were not foreseen and weren't included in

our questionnaire, but they are business indicators based on today's framework, values will be given indirectly as will be described later in Section 3.7.

3.2 The questionnaire's preliminary decisions

The construction of the questionnaire had to be preceded by defining the exact information that should be derived from it, as well as to come up with the characteristics of the ideal respondents. Regarding the qualitative characteristics of the respondents, we considered that the ideal target group for our research should consist of a number of managers and senior officers both in public and private entities. Our choice, except for their familiarity with the concept of sustainable development, was especially based on the fact that the senior officer's educational level would be adequate to meet the requirements of our research.

Referring to the information to be collected through the questionnaire, our main concern for our research was to get the real "picture" of the implementation of the principles of sustainable development on the corporate level. To achieve this, we used two different groups of questions. The first group would give information about the knowledge and familiarity of the respondents, regarding sustainable development's definition and principles. Some information would also be drawn relative to the implementation of sustainable development practices, in the organization where each respondent worked. On the other hand, while the first's group questions aimed to give information about the respondent's knowledge of sustainability, the second group's questions aimed to give direct information about the respondent's "corporate attitude" toward sustainable development. Practically, by answering the second group's questions, the respondents would evaluate their business practices toward sustainability. Such assessment, by asking directly the senior officers, would give our research a great advantage that would lie to the fact that we would leverage information directly from those who draw up their corporate's sustainability policy or act on behalf of their management or board of directors.

Having settled down on the exact information to be derived and the respondent's characteristics, it only remained to choose the appropriate method for collecting the data.

As our target was to collect, at least, three hundred answered questionnaires from a wide geographically distributed sample, we ended up that the best method for our case would be to conduct an online survey. The online survey would give us the potential to elaborate to a wider extent than that of a personal interview, reaching our respondents wherever they were, by sending the questionnaire directly to their email (In Section 3.6 "Conducting the survey", a detailed a detailed description of the process is given, regarding the sending of the questionnaire to the respondent's email). This could be practically applied by using a web-based questionnaire, so we just should choose something among the web-based survey tools.

Having conducted market research, we decided that the appropriate software platform was that of the company QuestionPro. Our decision was particularly based on the capability of this tool, to ensure the validity and uniqueness of each response. By characterizing a response as unique, we mean that each respondent won't have the possibility to give multiple answers to each question. The QuestionPro tool would also enable the restriction of multiple responses from the same respondents, ensuring the respondent's authentication and restricting the unauthorized ones to participate. Needless to say, by setting up authentication we ensured our data's validity by keeping away the unrelated respondents (as well as their "junk" responses).

Moreover, a remarkable advantage of the QuestionPro web-based tool was that it would function not only on a PC, but even on a mobile phone or tablet. It would also give the ability for offline use, through an application, gaining in this way an advantage to those who were attracted by cutting-edge technology or wished to respond while commuting.

3.3 Deciding on the form of the questions

By form of the questions, we mean not only the style of each question, but its necessity and its capability to give the appropriate information. For ease of question replying, data processing, coding and analyzing, we resulted to embed Likert-scale questions in our research. Likert-scale questions give the advantage of integrity, limiting the influence of the researcher. On the contrary, they may emerge with some false answers,
for reasons of convenience or for avoiding expressing an opinion. To narrow this phenomenon down, we formed the questions in simple words to make them comprehensible. One other point of interest was each question's order, therefore we decided to place the simpler questions in the beginning, arising in this way the respondent's interest. We also judged that the questions should be divided into sections, grouping together the questions of common interest while for the respondent's convenience, we would embed a short introductory text prior to each group of questions. Finally, the codependent questions would be placed in a row while the most "difficult" questions would be placed at the end of the questionnaire.

3.4 The pretest of the questionnaire

Having stated some important stages, referring to the building of the questionnaire, it would be fundamental for our research that a systematic review should precede its final form. This had to do with the questionnaire's pretesting, to ensure that it would be comprehensible for its readers, bringing to surface problems such as misunderstanding of individual terms or vague questions and concepts.

In our case, we applied the on-field pretesting technique, testing the questionnaire with the aid of twenty reviewers, who were chosen randomly by a sample of university professors, managers and clericals. At the first stage of pretesting, they were asked to answer the questionnaire and to determine whether the questions as well as the whole concept was understandable. In the next stage of pretesting, the reviewers were called to express their opinion about their understanding of the purpose of the questionnaire. Depending on their responses, we were able to decide if some questions were superfluous and should be replaced by others, or even omitted.

3.5 The structure of the questionnaire

The questionnaire, which was designed from scratch, consisted of three main parts. A brief note summary, followed by the main body of the questionnaire and closing with the demographics. In the brief note introduction, the respondents were informed that the questionnaire was a part of a doctoral thesis at Piraeus University, where research was conducted on the application of models of sustainable development in businesses and organizations. They were also informed that their selection was random, by a group of senior officers both in public and private entities. Thus, they were called to give responses to a series of questions, having to do with the understanding and the practical implementation of sustainable development principles. They were also called to evaluate a series of indicators, depending on the importance that their organization gives to each of them. Lastly, the participants were informed of the confidentiality of the survey, emphasizing that the complete data derived from their answers, was intellectual property of the University of Piraeus and would not be used for any other purpose or by a third party.

The next stage of the questionnaire, which was its main part, consisted of a series of questions referring to the concept of sustainable development and was divided into two main parts for ease of management, convenience in data handling and ease of understanding. The first part included general questions which would reveal the participant's knowledge and familiarity with the concept of sustainable development. The questions would also reveal the implementation of sustainable development practices by each respondent's enterprise. On the contrary, the second part would give us information about the "significance" that each respondent's enterprise was giving to a series of sustainability indicators.

To conduct our research, the indicators were divided into four main groups according to the economic, environmental, social or joint dimensions that each of them represented. Our target was to translate physical and social science knowledge into manageable units, so as to facilitate the decision-making process. Moreover, to measure and calibrate progress towards sustainable development goals and provide an empirical basis for evaluating performance, calculating the impact of business activities on the environment and society, and connecting past and present activities to attain future goals. The last part of the questionnaire consisted of demographic questions. The demographic questions were chosen to give general information for the sample, like gender, age, marital status, level of education, profession, etc. In Appendix II of this thesis, we quote the questionnaire as it was used in our survey.

3.6 Conducting the survey

To determine the extent of the organization's adoption of the principles of sustainable development, a survey was conducted in Greece from January 30th to March 30th, 2014. The survey was conducted online and distributed using email invitations via the QuestionPro website. A number of 405 responses were received, based on a total sample that exceeded 4.500 email invitations.

Regarding the sample of the survey, it consisted of senior officers and assistants in public and private entities and as was previously stated, they were asked to answer the questionnaire by an invitation sent to their email. A serious number of businesses' emails had been collected in the interim period (prior to the conducting of the survey) in direct collaboration with business chambers, which helped us by granting the companies' names, as well as their email. For the purposes of our thesis, it was critical to have a distributed sample, regarding the geographic area of the companies in order to cover the wider possible area of Greece. So, the interaction with the business chambers was characterized as significantly productive, considering the total number of above 4.000 emails we were granted. However, it was not a trouble-free procedure as, due to the legislation, the privacy of data had to be respected. To be more specific, we faced a refusal in being granted personal business emails or even business telephone numbers. This was the main reason that the emails we were granted, mostly included general email addresses instead of the direct email addresses of the representatives or directors of each business. This fact resulted in sending an invitation for the survey to the general email of each business, asking them to fill in our questionnaire. In this case, the recipient of the email had two choices. To reply directly to the questionnaire or to forward the email invitation to his/her manager, in order he/she replied due to competence. This proved to be an ineffective method, considering that nearly 10% percent of the total replied, from a sample of almost 4.500 email invitations. At this point, we shall clarify that from nearly 4.500 email invitations, only 1.589 recipients viewed the questionnaire and from those who viewed it, only 1.163 started to answer it. Regarding those 426 recipients, who didn't even open the questionnaire, we may explain it as their lack of interest in the concept of sustainable development or their denial of answering any questionnaire.

On the contrary, concerning those 758 recipients who started to answer the questionnaire, but abandoned it before submitting, we may explain it as their refusal to give answers to too many questions (nearly 50) or we may attribute it to their lack of interest in issues addressed in that survey. Needless to say, we were aware of the serious possibility for the respondents to be discouraged due to numerous questions, but we kept the number of questions at that level, as the use of as many sustainability indicators as possible, was critical for our research's conclusions. In Figure 11 below, the survey's statistics are graphically illustrated, while in Appendix II, III and IV of this thesis, we quote the questionnaire (as was used in the survey), and its results as well as its demographics.



3.7 The results of the survey

By analyzing the answers of the survey, what we mainly extract as information is the attitude of the businesses towards sustainable development principles. Giving businesses the possibility to give a weighting factor to a series of sustainability indicators, evaluating them according to their "business sense of importance", enabled us to create a new coefficient for each sustainability indicator, which was named "Indicator's Significance Factor (S)".

Specifically, the "S" value is a coefficient deriving from the mean value (Boone & Boone 2012) of each indicator, by the respondent's replies to questions 16 to 53 of our questionnaire. For the readers' convenience, in Figure 12 below, we can see for example that the majority of the respondents (35,93%) claimed that the indicator "Participation of women in leadership positions" is considered as "Important" in their business with a mean value of 3,43.

Participation of women in leadership positions			
Not at all important	21	5,28%	
A little important	46	11,56%	
Neutral	129	32,41%	
Important	143	35,93%	
Very important	59	14,82%	
Total	398		
Mean	3,43		
Standard Dev.	1,05		
Variance	1.10		

In order to quantify the "S" index, our Likert scale responses were matched with values, ranging from 1 to 5 as follows in Table 1.

Indicator's importance	Value
Not at all important	1
A little important	2
Neutral	3
Important	4
Very important	5

 Table 1: Quantifying the indicator's importance to form the coefficient "S"

Calculating each indicator's mean value, what we get is the "Indicator's Significance Factor (S)" for all the sustainable development indicators, as they were recorded in Questions 16 to 53 in our survey. The "S" values for them are imprinted in Table 2 below.

Question	The questionnaire's sustainable development indicator	Indicator's Significance Factor (S)
16	Greenhouse gas emission	2,97
17	Solid waste management / policy	3,56
18	Liquid waste management /policy	3,42
19	Material recycling within the organization, to which you are employed (such as paper collection bins, used batteries cans etc.)	3,91
20	Air quality within the workplace (referring to odors, dust, etc.)	3,73
21	Sound level intensity within the workplace (referring to noise)	3,64
22	Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well	3,14
23	Natural heritage protection (referring to natural, not manmade areas)	3,34
24	Employee's net earnings	3,58
25	Employee's additional earnings (for using a private car / paying parking expenses / mobile telephone, etc.)	3,06
26	Employee's participation in the profits of their organization (bonus, shares, bonds etc.)	2,30
27	Innovation's rewarding	3,05
28	Labor's productivity (the results obtained in relation to the number of employees)	3,58
29	Net profit of the organization	3,78

 Table 2: The indicator's Significance Factor (S) values

Question	The questionnaire's sustainable development indicator	Indicator's Significance Factor (S)
30	Organization's grant programs (National, E.U or International Grant Programs)	3,05
31	Sponsorships	2,71
32	Investing in research and development	3,19
33	Tertiary education graduate's employment	3,63
34	Disabled people employment, as well as infrastructure development for their access to work	2,89
35	Participation of women in leadership positions	3,43
36	Employee participation in the decision - making process	3,21
37	Service quality	4,24
38	Facilities within the workplace (nursery, restaurant, etc.) and the existence of basic services near the workplace (schools, shops, public services, etc.)	2,51
39	Safety at work (provision of occupational accidents, medical examinations of the workforce)	3,84
40	Safety and quality of the public transport network (accidents restriction, adequate policing etc.)	3,25
41	Social awareness actions	3,04
42	Cultural heritage preservation (monuments, architectural buildings, signs, etc.)	3,00
43	Social partner's (stakeholder's) participation in the decision- making process	2,68
44	Workforce training	3,77
45	Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency)	2,65
46	Additional insurance or retirement programs	2,61
47	Number of leave days	3,47
48	Corruption and abuse (referring to power and material abuse)	3,80
49	Bureaucracy	3,72
50	Distance travelled to the workplace	3,10
51	Traffic congestion	2,99
52	Quality control	3,88
53	Renewable energy source usage	2,95

At this point, it should be clarified that, though the data we used for calculating the values of the coefficient "S" derive from a survey held in 2014, we strongly believe that, as the social, political and economic conditions since yet in Greece have not changed significantly, the values of the coefficient "S" will not have changed significantly either. For indicators that were not foreseen and weren't included in our questionnaire, but are business indicators based on today's framework, values shall be given indirectly. For instance, for the health indicators as well as many of the education indicators, which had not been included in the questionnaire, we consider that according to the Greek Constitution, the EU Charter of Fundamental Rights as well as EU and National laws, "Health care" and "Education" are considered as fundamental human rights and consequently the corresponding indicators shall take the maximum "S" value (specifically the value 5).

CHAPTER 4 - A SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS MODEL

4.1. The basic principles of the model

The sustainable development model, applicable to the business level, has been the core purpose of this thesis. Adapting the definition of sustainability at the business level, we could say that "business sustainable development" means adopting business strategies and activities that meet the needs of the enterprise and its stakeholders today while protecting, sustaining, and enhancing the human and natural resources that will be needed in the future (International Institute for Sustainable Development in conjunction with Deloitte & Touche and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, 1992).

The consideration that if an organization adopts sustainable practices, even on a small scale, can have significant impacts in the long term, has been the strongest motivation to implement such a model in our thesis. After all, it's not a coincidence what the "Friends of the Earth" (an international environmental organization focusing on the United Kingdom) had written: "*if every UK office worker used just one less staple per year, 120 tons of steel would be saved*".

Having settled down to embody such a sustainability model in our thesis, our main concerns for this model were:

- a) To build a tool which helps businesses to choose the appropriate SDG indicators, in order to achieve their sustainability goals.
- b) To build a model that calls businesses to choose the right mix of SDG indicators, that will cover all three pillars of sustainability.
- c) To include another tool in the business decision-making process, through which the businesses as well as stakeholders' interests, concerns and expectations, will be met.
- d) To enable a sustainability monitoring process, related to the organization's economic, social and environmental priorities.

- e) To enable the sustainability reporting process, regarding the organizations' area of success.
- f) To build an easy-to-implement model, which will not necessarily require special software but a commonly used spreadsheet software.

By the implementation of the proposed sustainability business model a significant part of the sequence of the SDG Compass, particularly steps 1 to 4 as presented in Figure 13, will have been achieved, giving an advantage to those businesses which develop such procedures within their operational scope (SDG Compass, 2015). Additionally, the necessary conditions will be created so that business strategies will align with global priorities, while businesses will enjoy the benefits of strengthening their linkage with the stakeholders, capitalizing on new business opportunities, encouraging sectoral synergies, and using a common language for achieving their common goal.

As mentioned before, the aim of proposing this "sustainability" model is to enrich the already existing corporate decision-making tools and when implemented by policymakers, corporate managers, or management engineers, to enable the integration of economic, environmental, and social objectives of their business.



4.2. Incentives for aligning businesses practices with the SDGs

The implementation of the SDGs at the national level is without doubt a governmental case. But, it would be impossible to achieve the goals without a meaningful contribution by the business sector. This is justified by the fact that the "UN's 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development" is calling on businesses "to apply their creativity and innovation to solving sustainable development challenges. Based on another interpretation of why businesses need the SDGs, it has been reported that "*businesses cannot thrive in societies that fail, and long-term success hinges on the SDGs being realized*" (The World

Business Council for Sustainable Development, n.d., https://sdgessentials.org/what-the-sdgs-mean-for-business.html).

Obviously, concerning the adoption of the SDGs, businesses have an enhanced role to play as they contribute to economic expansion. When businesses align themselves with the SDGs, they will most likely prosper in the long run. The SDGs' implementation supports stable societies and markets, two main factors for corporate success as well. According to the Business & Sustainable Development Commission, by implementing sustainable practices cost savings, revenue new streams and millions of jobs can be generated in the long run. Concluding, we could admit that business prosperity and adoption of the SDGs are entirely interconnected.

By the above mentioned, it is implied that the appropriate goal selection, referring to the priorities defined across the SDGs, is essential for the businesses in order to gain new growth possibilities while lowering their risk profiles. By using the appropriate measurable and time frame indicators, businesses can overcome sustainable development challenges and enhance the achievement of their goals. In this Chapter, we will advance new techniques for the SDGs selection at the corporate level, that will enhance the sustainability rule's implementation in the decision-making process.

4.3. Model building steps

The indicator framework of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, which was adopted by all United Nations Member States in 2015 and by the General Assembly on 6 July 2017, consists of 17 main Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), which represent an urgent call for action. The SDGs are defined in a list of 169 SDG targets, while progress toward these targets is monitored by 232 indicators, as presented in Appendix I of this thesis.

When looking at the indicators, it is obvious that the majority of them are primarily indicators of national and less of business interest. By making thorough filtering, regarding the indicators that could be used on the business level, we end up with a number of only 76 indicators out of a total number of 232 to be business oriented. In Appendix 1, one can

find the list of the SDGs while the "inappropriate" business indicators are presented in red colour (highlighting in white the reason for their unsuitability for business use). On the contrary, the 76 indicators, which are suitable for business use, are highlighted in green colour.

4.4. Data collection for our model

Having divided the SDG indicators into business-oriented and "non-appropriate" for business use ones, our next step was to focus to the data mining for the 76 businessappropriate indicators. Measuring progress on meeting SDG targets also requires making extra efforts to improve the quality of data, explore new sets of metrics and the use of these to provide indicators of progress that may help to construct impact assessment of different policies (Goyeneche et al., 2022).

For the preparation of our thesis, we decided that the data would refer to the 27 EU countries (excluding the UK, which has not been a member of the Union since 2020). In this way, the data would be relevant to the Greek business reality as Greece adapts to European legislation and generally follows the EU framework. Another benefit, of the use of data referring to all EU countries, has to do with their availability, as the statistical office of the European Union (Eurostat) has a dedicated section on sustainability that provides the key findings of the most recent Eurostat monitoring of the EU's progress towards the SDGs (https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/sdi/database).

Consequently, our main source of data was the database of Eurostat (<u>https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/main/data/database</u>), though not all data were found in it. This means that for the indicators' data that weren't found in Eurostat's database, we turned to mine them in the corresponding database of the United Nations (<u>https://unstats.un.org/sdgs/dataportal/database</u>) as well as that of the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (<u>https://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/social-issues-migration-health/the-short-and-winding-road-to-2030_af4b630d-en</u>). At this point, it is worth mentioning that, alongside with these actions, we submitted a written request to the Greek Statistical Authority (ELSTAT) to be granted with further SDG data but such data

were not provided to us. As ELSTAT policy is to always provide such data, especially for research purposes, we assume that no additional data exist (beyond those being published on ELSTAT website).

By the above-described "mining procedure", we eventually found data for 64 of 76 SDG business-oriented indicators, as shown in Table 3. The data, dating upon availability from 2010 to 2021, concerned exclusively the countries of the EU (not including the UK) and were analyzed on an annual basis, using the simple linear regression model (with the help of MS Excel) in order to create the indicator's trends.

Table 3: The 64 indicators where data exist

	SDG multators (where data exist)
1	1.5.1 Number of deaths, missing persons and directly affected persons attributed to disasters per 100,000 population
2	1.5.2 Direct economic loss attributed to disasters in relation to global gross domestic product (GDP)
3	2.3.1 Volume of production per labour unit by classes of farming/pastoral/forestry enterprise size
4	2.4.1 Proportion of agricultural area under productive and sustainable agriculture
5	3.1.1 Maternal mortality ratio
6	3.1.2 Proportion of births attended by skilled health personnel
7	3.2.1 Under-5 mortality rate
8	3.2.2 Neonatal mortality rate
9	3.3.2 Tuberculosis incidence per 100,000 population
10	3.3.4 Hepatitis B incidence per 100,000 population
11	3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease
12	3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate
13	3.5.1 Coverage of treatment interventions (pharmacological, psychosocial and rehabilitation and aftercare services) for substance use disorders

SDG indicators (where data exist)

	SDG indicators (where data exist)
14	3.5.2 Alcohol per capita consumption (aged 15 years and older) within a calendar year in litres of pure alcohol
15	3.8.1 Coverage of essential health services
16	3.8.2 Proportion of population with large household expenditures on health as a share of total household expenditure or income
17	3.9.1 Mortality rate attributed to household and ambient air pollution
18	3.9.2 Mortality rate attributed to unsafe water, unsafe sanitation and lack of hygiene (exposure to unsafe Water, Sanitation and Hygiene for All (WASH) services)
19	3.9.3 Mortality rate attributed to unintentional poisoning
20	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (<i>a</i>) in grades $2/3$; (<i>b</i>) at the end of primary; and (<i>c</i>) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex
21	4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education)
22	4.2.2 Participation rate in organized learning (one year before the official primary entry age), by sex
23	4.3.1 Participation rate of youth and adults in formal and non-formal education and training in the previous 12 months, by sex
24	4.4.1 Proportion of youth and adults with information and communications technology (ICT) skills, by type of skill
25	4.5.1 Parity indices (female/male, rural/urban, bottom/top wealth quintile and others such as disability status, indigenous peoples and conflict-affected, as data become available) for all education indicators on this list that can be disaggregated
26	5.5.2 Proportion of women in managerial positions
27	6.3.1 Proportion of domestic and industrial wastewater flows safely treated
28	6.4.1 Change in water-use efficiency over time
29	6.4.2 Level of water stress: freshwater withdrawal as a proportion of available freshwater resources
30	7.2.1 Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption
31	7.3.1 Energy intensity measured in terms of primary energy and GDP
32	8.2.1 Annual growth rate of real GDP per employed person
33	8.4.2 Domestic material consumption, domestic material consumption per capita, and domestic material consumption per GDP

	SDG indicators (where data exist)
34	8.5.1 Average hourly earnings of employees, by sex, age, occupation and persons with disabilities
35	8.5.2 Unemployment rate, by sex, age and persons with disabilities
36	8.6.1 Proportion of youth (aged 15-24 years) not in education, employment or training
37	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status
38	8.9.1 Tourism direct GDP as a proportion of total GDP and in growth rate
39	8.10.1 (<i>a</i>) Number of commercial bank branches per 100,000 adults and (<i>b</i>) number of automated teller machines (ATMs) per 100,000 adults
40	8.10.2 Proportion of adults (15 years and older) with an account at a bank or other financial institution or with a mobile-money-service provider
41	9.2.1 Manufacturing value added as a proportion of GDP and per capita
42	9.2.2 Manufacturing employment as a proportion of total employment
43	9.3.1 Proportion of small-scale industries in total industry value added
44	9.4.1 CO ₂ emission per unit of value added
45	9.5.1 Research and development expenditure as a proportion of GDP
46	9.5.2 Researchers (in full-time equivalent) per million inhabitants
47	10.1.1 Growth rates of household expenditure or income per capita among the bottom 40 per cent of the population and the total population
48	10.3.1 Proportion of population reporting having personally felt discriminated against or harassed in the previous 12 months on the basis of a ground of discrimination prohibited under international human rights law
49	10.5.1 Financial Soundness Indicators
50	10.c.1 Remittance costs as a proportion of the amount remitted
51	11.5.1 Number of deaths, missing persons and directly affected persons attributed to disasters per 100,000 population
52	11.6.2 Annual mean levels of fine particulate matter (e.g. PM2.5 and PM10) in cities (population weighted)
53	12.2.2 Domestic material consumption, domestic material consumption per capita, and domestic material consumption per GDP
54	12.4.2 (<i>a</i>) Hazardous waste generated per capita; and (<i>b</i>) proportion of hazardous waste treated, by type of treatment
55	12.5.1 National recycling rate, tons of material recycled
56	12.6.1 Number of companies publishing sustainability reports
57	12.b.1 Implementation of standard accounting tools to monitor the economic and environmental aspects of tourism sustainability

	SDG indicators (where data exist)
58	13.1.1 Number of deaths, missing persons and directly affected persons attributed to disasters per 100,000 population
59	13.2.2 Total greenhouse gas emissions per year
60	14.3.1 Average marine acidity (pH) measured at agreed suite of representative sampling stations
61	15.2.1 Progress towards sustainable forest management
62	16.1.1 Number of victims of intentional homicide per 100,000 population, by sex and age
63	16.1.3 Proportion of population subjected to (a) physical violence, (b) psychological violence and (c) sexual violence in the previous 12 months
64	16.b.1 Proportion of population reporting having personally felt discriminated against or harassed in the previous 12 months on the basis of a ground of discrimination prohibited under international human rights law

In Figure 14 below we can see the 12 indicators for which no data were found.



In order to provide complete information about the source of each indicator's data, we must point out that the Eurostat database was used for the SDG indicators 2.4.1, 3.3.2, 3.3.4, 4.1.2, 4.2.2, 4.3.1, 4.4.1, 5.5.2, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.2.1, 8.6.1, 8.8.1, 8.9.1, 8.10.1, 8.10.2, 9.2.1, 9.2.2, 9.3.1, 9.4.1, 9.5.1, 9.5.2, 10.1.1, 10.3.1, 10.5.1, 10.c.1, 11.5.1, 11.6.2, 12.2.2,

12.4.2, 12.5.1, 12.6.1, 12.b.1, 13.1.1, 13.2.2, 14.3.1, 15.2.1, 16.1.1 and 16.1.3. On the contrary, the OECD database was used for the SDG indicators 3.1.1, 3.9.1, 3.9.2 and 6.3.1 while the UN database was used for the rest of the indicators.

We should also highlight that the COVID-19 pandemic, having a universal effect on several aspects of our life, did have an effect on this thesis too. The pandemic may have revealed new forms of data mining and demonstrated the value of innovation to fill data gaps for greater accuracy, timeliness, and granularity, by the use of non-traditional sources – including citizen science, social media, and earth observation data (Sachs et al., 2022). For our data though, we had to omit the value of SDG indicator 1.5.1 for the year 2020, as it was disproportionately large compared to the values of the previous years. In Figure 15 statistics concerning our data are presented, where we can see that from the total pool of 232 indicators, only 76 are appropriate for use on the corporate level, while data were found for 64. At this point, it should be mentioned that of the 64 indicators, indicators 1.5.1, 11.5.1 and 13.1.1 are identical but allocated to diferrent goals. The same applies to indicators 1.5.2 and 11.5.2, indicators 8.4.2 and 12.2.2 as well as indicators 10.3.1 and 16.b.1.



4.5. Creation of the indicator's trendlines

In this section we will deal with the relationship of the indicators with the years, specifically to determine the statistical relationship that exists between them. Statistical relationships, although do not provide the precision of a functional one, are the best way to study a phenomenon or problem since phenomena are governed by laws of chance and uncertainties that cannot be expressed in a functional relationship, which always idealizes reality (Papaioannou & Loukas, 2002).

The statistical methodology that uses the relationship between two or more quantitative variables, so that one can be determined by the other is called Regression Analysis. As dependent variable (y), we consider the value of each indicator and as independent value (x), the value of the years. Our purpose is to create a straight line which will graphically represent the general trend with which each indicator evolves over the years, by using the simple linear regression method. This straight line will be an equation of the form $y = b_1X + b_0$ where b_0 , b_1 are the unknown parameters of the model, y_i where i=1, 2, ..., 10 are the values of each indicators (the dependent variable), x_i , where i=1, 2, ..., 10 are considered the years (independent value). The parameters b_0 and b_1 of the model are called regression coefficients, where b_1 is the slope of the regression line and shows the change (**Trend**) in the mean value of the distribution of y for each unit increase in value x.

It is understood that a proper methodology for regressing time series would involve collecting large samples of data, testing for stationarity with unit root tests, detrending and stationarizing nonstationary time series depending on the type of nonstationarity, and then estimating regression models on the stationarized variables. Nevertheless, given the extremely small sample sizes available in this section, the naive approach adopted provides a valuable overview.

Using Excel, each indicator's trend is represented in Appendix II, depicting essentially the change in the mean value of the indicator over the years. By having analyzed, individually each one of these indicators, we observed the existence of two different groups of them. The first group of indicators, as shown in Figure 16, includes those whose positive trend states that the correct actions are taken towards achieving the

goals of sustainable development, while the second group, as shown in Figure 17, includes the indicators whose negative trend indicates the correct actions are taken by a business towards sustainability. Referring to the trend value so as to be fully comprehensible, the exact trend value of indicator 2.4.1 in Figure 16 is "0.4097", while the exact trend value of indicator 3.1.1 in Figure 17 is "-0.2108".

Lastly, for this thesis convenience, we name the indicators whose positive trend shows improvement as "Positive trend SDG indicators" while the indicators whose negative trend shows the same, as "Negative trend SDG indicators". It is worth mentioning that the total number of the first group amounts to 28 indicators, while the total number of the second group to 36. As shown in Table 4, the indicators are assorted into groups, with the third column of this table being each indicator's trend value (T_{EU}).





Table 4: Trend values of the SDG indicators

Positive trend SDG	Negative trend SDG indicators	EU Trend Value
indicators		(T _{EU})
	1.5.1, 11.5.1, 13.1.1	-0.3862
	1.5.2, 11.5.2	0.000008
2.3.1		10,848
2.4.1		0,4097
	3.1.1	-0,2108
3.1.2		-0,0168
	3.2.1	-0,1016
	3.2.2	-0,0534
	3.3.2	-0,749
	3.3.4	-0,0391
	3.4.1	-1,2019
	3.4.2	-1,1907

Positive trend SDG	Negative trend SDG indicators	EU Trend Value
indicators		(TEU)
3.5.1		-1,8403
	3.5.2	-0,0538
3.8.1		1,6296
	3.8.2	0,0767
	3.9.1	2,6667
	3.9.2	3,3437
	3.9.3	-0,1926
4.1.1		-1,04
4.1.2		0,3507
4.2.2		0,2119
4.3.1		0,2266
4.4.1		0,2
	4.5.1	-0,0059
	5.5.2	-1,764
6.3.1		-0,3831
6.4.1		8,531
	6.4.2	-0,2497
7.2.1		0,6648
	7.3.1	-12,398
8.2.1		285,49
	8.4.2, 12.2.2	0.00000001
8.5.1		-0,73
	8.5.2	-0,5032
	8.6.1	-0,2993
	8.8.1	-0,0588
8.9.1		0,2715
8.10.1		-0,7562
8.10.2		2,3125

Positive trend SDG	Negative trend SDG indicators	EU Trend Value
indicators		(Teu)
9.2.1		0,1038
9.2.2		-0,0323
9.3.1		-0,5329
	9.4.1	-0,0034
9.5.1		0,0263
9.5.2		0,0384
10.1.1		0,0108
	10.3.1, 16.b.1	-1,225
10.5.1 (a)		-2,083
	10.5.1(b)	-1,8271
	10.5.1(c)	-0,3978
10.5.1 (d)		-0,0901
10.5.1 (e)		0,7524
10.5.1 (f)		0,0568
	10.c.1	-0,473
	11.6.2	-0,5072
	12.4.2	13,029
12.5.1		1,0191
12.6.1		7,5524
12.b.1		-0,0542
	13.2.2	-1,1209
	14.3.1	0,0019
15.2.1		47,02
	16.1.1	-0,0455
	16.1.3	-0,285

4.6. The main concept of the corporate sustainability model

The core concept of our model is to show progress, as well as areas for improvement. To not simply adjust the metrics of progress, but to open up and make more transparent the debate on what progress is, whose interests it serves, and with what results (Pintér et al., 2018). In our case, progress is assessed from a business perspective, so in order for each business to positively contribute to the sustainable development principles, the business indicator's trend value (T_B) should be superior to the corresponding value of the EU average (T_{EU}). Comparing the two trends, T_B to T_{EU} does not necessarily ensure that business sustainability will be achieved within a certain time horizon. However, since SDGs are still not legally binding and as no specific time point for their achievement has been set, trend comparison is an undisputed method to capture the deviation of each business sustainability performance from an average reference value. Antoine de Saint-Exupéry quoted "the time for action is now and it's never too late to do something" and this is our own worldview as well.

Despite that, though the United Nations' Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) are an urgent call for action by all countries while balancing social, economic, and environmental sustainability, they are eventually addressed to all actors in society. But, both academia and professionals recognize the particular importance of businesses in order to achieving global development (Mio et al., 2020).

According to the aforementioned, the condition of the T_B being superior to the T_{EU} is satisfied:

- a) for the "positive trend SDG indicators", when $T_B > T_{EU}$ while
- b) for the "negative trend SDG indicators", when $T_B < T_{EU}$.

In both the above cases, the business moves faster and contributes more to sustainability than the average of the EU countries, thus speeding up the achievement of the common goal.

In the opposite case, that is when:

- c) for the "positive trend SDG indicators", when $T_B < T_{EU}$ while
- d) for the "negative trend SDG indicators", when $T_{B} > T_{EU}$.

the business moves slower and contributes less than the average of the EU countries, resulting in delaying the achievement of their common sustainability goal. In Table 5 below, we can see the four cases diagrammatically.

For "Positive trend SDG Indicators"	For "Negative trend SDG indicators"	Diagnosis
(a) If $T_{EU} > T_B$	(b) If $T_{EU} < T_B$	The business contributes to sustainability less
		than the average of the EU countries,
		resulting in delaying the achievement of their
		common goal.
(c) If $T_{EU} < T_B$	(d) If $T_{EU} > T_B$	The business contributes to sustainability
		more than the average of the EU countries,
		resulting in speeding up the achievement of
		their common goal.

Table 5: The positive and negative trend SDG indicators' cases

By the above, it is obvious that in cases "a" and "b" the business needs to adjust the selected indicator's policy, in order to achieve the SDG objectives, while in cases "c" and "d" the business contributes positively to the achievement of the common goal.

For	"Positive	For	"Negative	Business actions to be taken
trend	SDG	trend	SDG	
Indicat	tors"	indicators"		
(a)	$If T_{EU} > T_B$	(b)	$If \; T_{EU} < T_B$	The business needs to adjust its policy (referring to
				the selected indicator), in order to achieve the SDG
				objectives
(c)	$If T_{EU} {<} T_B$	(d)	$If T_{EU} > T_B$	The business contributes positively to the
				achievement of the SDG objectives (referring to the
				selected indicator), so keep up the good work

Table 6: Values of the positive and negative trend SDG indicators

By the above Table 6, we realize that each business would definitely contribute to the sustainable development goals, even in a small percentage, if it managed to optimize all its T_B , so as to be superior compared to the general trend value of the corresponding indicator of the EU (T_{EU}). In order for businesses to focus on the right sustainable development indicators, that is to indicators whose trend values must be improved, in our proposed sustainability model, the businesses are called to:

- a) Select a subset from the pool of 64 indicators of Table 3. The indicators to be chosen should directly relate to their operations activities and should be accompanied by data. These indicators should also be subject to improvement, as indicators for which the optimum value has been achieved or their change is not allowed due to the current institutional framework are not eligible indicators in our model.
- b) Categorize the selected indicators to "Positive" or "Negative trend SDG indicators").
- c) Calculate their business indicator's Trend (T_B). The data for the calculation of the business indicator's trend (T_B) will be collected by the initiative of the businesses themselves. These refer to data from the previous years (in our case since 2010), and according to their nature may be found in sources such as their financial statements or accounting books, business event and log books, administrative or any type of board minutes or any other available sources. For example, the workplace accidents of the previous years are usually recorded in an incident book of the business, under the supervision of a safety technician. On the other hand, the number and gender of the members of the Board of Directors are recorded in the business board minutes, the financial data are recorded in the relevant company's statements etc. From the above mentioned, it becomes clear that in case a company cannot find data for some indicators, then it will not be able to calculate that indicator's trend value and consequently choosing such an indicator is of no use.
- d) Compare the selected indicators trends (T_B to the T_{EU}) and allocate them in categories "a" to "d" as described in Table 5 and
- e) Consider as "first line" (eligible) indicators those of categories "a" and "b", while set aside those of the categories' "c" and "d" (not eligible).

Summarizing our thesis so far, by using the EU countries' data which gave us the rate of change of SDG indicators' over time, we may highligh the business indicators which need to be improved. Indicators of categories "a" and "b" (as described in Table 4.8), will be the eligible for our model, which practically means that a business policy readjustment is required in order for the businesses to achieve sustainable development goals. In the next stage of our model, businesses are called to prioritize the eligible indicators in the light of achieving the SDGs at the lowest possible cost.

In Table 7 below, the path to the indicators' eligibility (as described in detail in the previous paragraphs of this section) is summarized, characterizing the indicators (in the first column) as "Low Performance Indicators" or "High Performance Indicators", depending on their performance compared to the EU average trend.

Indicators Status	For "Positive trend SDG Indicators"	For "Negative trend SDG indicators"	Diagnosis	Business actions to be taken	Indicator's eligibility rule
Low- Performance Indicators	(a) If T _{EU>} T _B	(b) If T _{EU} < T _B	The business contributes to sustainability less than the average of the EU countries, resulting in delaying the achievement of their common goal.	The business needs to adjust its policy (referring to the selected indicator), in order to achieve the SDG objectives	This indicator must be selected. It will be further used in our proposed sustainability business model
High- Performance Indicators	(c) If T _{EU <} T _B	(d) If T _{EU >} T _B	The business contributes to sustainability more than the average of the	The business contributes positively to the achievement	It's not a priority to select this indicator, not

 Table 7: Indicator's eligibility rules concerning our model

		EU countries,	of the SDG	eligible for
		resulting in	objectives	our model
		speeding up	(referring to	
		the	the selected	
		achievement of	indicator), so	
		their common	keep up the	
		goal.	good work	
	1			1

4.7. A cost-effectiveness factor in the corporate sustainability model

In the previous section, we have demonstrated that the "Low-Performance Indicators" are the eligible ones, as business indicators that need to be improved prompting businesses to readjust their policy. In this section, the "Low-Performance Indicators" will be further processed, under the prism of economic factors, in order for the businesses to achieve their SDG objectives in a cost-effective way.

As readjusting business policy entails a business process reformation, it is a case of the upper management making the corresponding reforming decisions. Although it is not improbable that these decisions may prove costless, the reforming of the business policy usually involves additional costs (to a greater or lesser extent) and further investments.

In most cases, the costs for business reforms includes the business staff training, new equipment, additional employees, or all of these together. Consequently, it makes perfect sense for a business to focus on improving the "Low-Performance Indicators", but prioritize those that do not increase disproportionately the business costs. In order to achieve this, businesses should prioritize in particular "Low-Performance Indicators", with regard to the principle of cost minimization which is based on the theory that the resources that will be used for improving the indicators should be just the necessary (minimal quantity) and at the most economical price.

This conception becomes even more important if we consider that many businesses are keen to adopt more sustainable ways of working but are fearful of the price tag. Moreover, the most common tensions that seem to emerge when firms decide to implement sustainable practices in their business networks, are of an economic nature. Economic tensions refer to conflicts among the stakeholders, which involve expectations or demands from one stakeholder to the others, in order to invest or bear the costs into technologies or new processes that would be aligned with specific sustainable business practices. The result is the stakeholders are often perceiving these expectations as asymmetric or unfair. For example, several firms had increased their research and development budgets, or invested into new environmentally friendly or modernized technologies, at the expense of postponing, freezing, or sometimes completely abandoning efforts to develop or expand their current sales, service, or production organizations (Tura et al., 2019).

In addition, uncertainty about regulation and taxation, the high upfront cost of climate investments and the availability of skilled staff are factors that lead firms to cite the upfront costs as an obstacle to investment. At the same time, firms often do not consider climate change investment to be a core business investment activity (European Investment Bank, 2021, https://data.europa.eu/doi/10.2867/904099).

There are various reasons of low sustainability reporting too; high reporting cost, lack of resources, inconsistency in disclosure practices, difficulty in measuring performance and difficulty in rousing the companies to be proactive in sustainability reporting (Shad et al., 2019).

In this section, despite the less optimistic reports that support that in the long run, the current population size and resource use are not sustainable with any one goal or combination of the goals (Henderson & Loreau, 2023), we put measures in place to address sustainable business practices considering financial parameters, such as the rewarding efficiency of a business shift towards the goals of sustainable development, combined with the cost that will be required for their reformation so as to achieve the SDGs. Complementary, we will prove that when further expenses are required for achieving the SDGs, then each business case is to ensure that the benefits associated with their achievement (coming from the business process adjustment) should be at least equal to the cost that was required for it. In each case, when there are both potentially positive and negative outcomes to consider, the business are called to choose, including making trade-offs between contradictory goals and business strategies. Moreover, we cannot ignore that

the cost for the SDGs' achievement, combined with their future results, involves elements of risk. The main factors for evaluating risk, apart from its magnitude, consist of financial, sustainability, resilience, ethical and legal criteria, the effectiveness of controls in reducing or managing the risk, the maximum impact if controls are not present or fail, the timing of the consequences, the costs of controls and stakeholder views (IEC 31010:2019, 2019). By the aforementioned, it becomes clear that this wide range of risk evaluating factors, intensified by the fact that the attainable costs and benefits by the achievement of the SDGs may vary among the stakeholders, creates an environment of decision-making under uncertainty. As risk assessment techniques aim to help us understand uncertainty, the business actions towards the SDGs will be evaluated by weighing the risk arising from the estimate of the cost of achieving the Sustainable Development Goals. This will be implemented by a cost-benefit analysis with the help of a risk matrix, where consequence and likelihood can be combined to give a level of risk and put risks in a rank order. The consequence/likelihood matrix will consist of two scales, the first being the impact rating and the second being the likelihood one.

The impact rating will reflect the additional business cost of the adoption of new sustainable development practices, by taking into consideration the time of maintaining a positive cash flow so that a business shall be able to continue to pay its operating or other expenses and debts. At this point, we should notice that the main types of a business cash flow consist of operating, investing and financing cash flow. Operating cash flow is the net cash generated from a company's regular business operations. Investing cash flow is cash generated from a company's investment-related activities while financing cash flow is the cash linked to financing activities between a company and its investors, owners, or creditors so as to fund the company. We should also highlight that a cash flow position refers to an organization's level of cash relative to its liabilities. A stable cash position enables a company to cover its current liabilities with a combination of cash and liquid assets. A business' healthy cash position, beyond its current liabilities, means more cash is coming in than going out, which is essential for any business to sustain long-term growth. In our case, business practices towards the SDGs are evaluated in terms of the costs involved by their implementation, in the sense of financial security over time.

Consequently, business actions towards the SDGs, are evaluated according to the effect they will have on the cash reserves of each business.

On the contrary, the likelihood rating will be a combinatory factor, as the product of the assessment of achieving cost savings or revenue growth (by adopting new sustainable development practices) combined with the estimated time of achievement. In this case, the resulting value will essentially be an assessment (by the business policy makers) regarding whether the achievement of the sustainable development goals will bring about cost savings or revenue growth combined with an estimation of the time this will be achieved. By the risk matrix below, a new coefficient which is called the "SDGs cost-effectiveness factor (F)" will be derived. For implementing the "F" coefficient in our model, it is critical to determine particular values such as the estimated cost required for the business reformation (in order to achieve the SDGs), the estimated completion time as well as the financial footprint of such sustainable business practices (which translates to cost savings or revenue growth). In order for the executives of all businesses to be able to implement the model of our thesis, we will consider that the possibility of the businesses engaging to the SDGs practices as well as their probability of achieving the goals is indifferent to the size of the businesses. The same admission applies for the time of achievement, so the time that a business needs to reach its SDGs is indifferent to its size too. We will also consider that critical financial data such as the cost of achieving the objectives of Sustainable Development as well as the potential savings, although they are significantly differrent depending on the business size, they nevertheless can be used commonly for all businesses when expressed as a percentage of their past years' financial data. Concerning cost savings or revenue growth, business executives shall provide an estimate of the change in a given time frame (as a percentage change) either on the cost savings or on the revenue growth, resulted from a set of business actions towards the SDGs, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year. Consequently, the change in cost or profit data will be of the form of a percentage interval with a progressive step of 20%, while the time of achievement will be defined as immediate, short, mid and long term.

The "F" coefficient, which actually express the SDGs business cost footprint versus their potential to bring about savings in a specific time frame, takes values between -4 to 80 as we may see in Table 8 below. As a rule, the smaller the value of the coefficient "F",

the more likely it is that the examined business SDG indicator should be selected, while the higher the value of "F" the lower the probability of the indicator's selection. Consequently, the lower the "F", the better for an indicator's selection, specifying that the negative values of "F" express financial loss so it is vitally important to omit such indicator's selection.

 Table 8: A cost effectiveness risk matrix

IMPACT RATING

		Review of business practices requiring no investment cost (1)	Review of business practices requiring low investment cost (2)	Review of business practices requiring moderate investment cost (3)	Review of business practices requiring high investment cost (4)
	Immediate achievement of high scale cost savings or high scale revenue growth (1x1)	1	2	3	4
LIKELIHOOD RATING	Immediate achievement of relatively high scale cost savings or relatively high scale revenue growth (1x2)	2	4	6	8
	Immediate achievement of moderate scale cost savings or moderate scale revenue growth (1x3)	3	6	9	12
	Immediate achievement of relatively low scale cost	4	8	12	16

	savings or relatively low scale revenue growth (1x4)				
-	Immediate achievement of low scale cost savings or low scale revenue growth (1x5)	5	10	15	20
-	Short-term achievement of high scale cost savings or high scale revenue growth (2x1)	2	4	6	8
-	Short-term achievement of relatively high scale cost savings or relatively high scale revenue growth (2x2)	4	8	12	16
-	Short-term achievement of moderate scale cost savings or moderate scale revenue growth (2x3)	6	12	18	24
-	Short-term achievement of relatively low- scale cost savings or relatively low scale revenue growth (2x4)	8	16	24	32
-	Short-term achievement of low- scale cost savings or low scale revenue growth (2x5)	10	20	30	40

Mid-term achievement of high scale cost savings or high scale revenue growth (3x1)	3	6	9	12
Mid-term achievement of relatively high scale cost savings or relatively high scale revenue growth (3x2)	6	12	18	24
Mid-term achievement of moderate scale cost savings or moderate scale revenue growth (3x3)	9	18	27	36
Mid-term achievement of relatively low scale cost savings or relatively low scale revenue growth (3x4)	12	24	36	48
Mid-term achievement of low scale cost savings or low scale revenue growth (3x5)	15	30	45	60
Long-term achievement of high scale cost savings or high scale revenue growth (4x1)	4	8	12	16
Long-term achievement of relatively high scale cost savings or relatively high scale revenue growth (4x2)	8	16	24	32
Long-term achievement of moderate scale cost savings or moderate	12	24	36	48

scale revenue growth (4x3)				
Long-term achievement of relatively low scale cost savings or relatively low scale revenue growth (4x4)	16	32	48	60
Long-term achievement of low scale cost savings or low scale revenue growth (4x5)	20	40	60	80
Financial loss either on the short or on the long run (-1)	-1	-2	-3	-4

Below, a definition of the alternative options of the matrix is described, which refers to both the impact and the likelihood ratings.

Impact rating definitions

- **Business practices review requiring no investment cost**: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which do not incur additional business cost.
- **Business practices review requiring low investment cost**: A set of business actions towards the SDGs that require additional costs for their implementation, but do not result in business cash shortages for the upcoming twelve or more months.
- Business practices review requiring moderate investment cost: A set of business actions towards the SDGs that require additional costs for their implementation, but do not result in business cash shortages for the upcoming six to twelve months.

• Business practices review requiring high investment cost: A set of business actions towards the SDGs that require additional costs for their implementation, but do not result in business cash shortages for the upcoming six months.

Likelihood rating definitions

- Immediate achievement of high scale cost savings or high scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result in immediate cost savings or revenue growth of more than 80% (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Immediate achievement of relatively high scale cost savings or relatively high scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result an immediate cost savings or a revenue growth by 60% to 80% (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Immediate achievement of moderate scale cost savings or moderate scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result an immediate cost savings or a revenue growth by 40% to 60% (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Immediate achievement of relatively low scale cost savings or relatively low scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result an immediate cost savings or a revenue growth by 20% to 40% (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Immediate achievement of relatively low scale cost savings or relatively low scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result an immediate cost savings or a revenue growth up to 20% (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Short-term achievement of high scale cost savings or high scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth of more than 80% within a year (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Short-term achievement of relatively high scale cost savings or relatively high scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth by 60% to 80% within a year (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Short-term achievement of moderate scale cost savings or moderate scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth by 40% to 60% within a year (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Short-term achievement of relatively low-scale cost savings or relatively low scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth by 20% to 40% within a year (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).

- Short-term achievement of low- scale cost savings or low scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth up to 20% within a year (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Mid-term achievement of high scale cost savings or high scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth of more than 80% within a period of one to five years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Mid-term achievement of relatively high scale cost savings or relatively high scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth by 60% to 80% within a period of one to five years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Mid-term achievement of moderate scale cost savings or moderate scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth by 40% to 60% within a period of one to five years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Mid-term achievement of relatively low scale cost savings or relatively low scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth by 20% to 40% within a period of one to five years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross

revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).

- Mid-term achievement of low scale cost savings or low scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth up to 20% within a period of one to five years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Long-term achievement of high scale cost savings or high scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth of more than 80% within a period of five or more years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Long-term achievement of relatively high scale cost savings or relatively high scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth by 60% to 80% within a period of five or more years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Long-term achievement of moderate scale cost savings or moderate scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result a cost savings or a revenue growth by 40% to 60% within a period of five or more years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Long-term achievement of relatively low scale cost savings or relatively low scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result in cost savings or revenue growth by 20% to 40% within a period of five or more years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of

direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).

- Long-term achievement of low scale cost savings or low scale revenue growth: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which result in cost savings or revenue growth up to 20% within a period of five or more years (as an assessment of the annual percentage change of direct or indirect costs or of the annual percentage change of the gross revenue respectively, compared to the corresponding data of the previous year).
- Financial loss either on the short or on the long run: A set of business actions towards the SDGs which incur financial loss, either on the the short or on the long run.

4.8. The sustainable development business model

Aggregating the data of Section 4.6, by which we obtain values for the "SDGs costeffectiveness factor (F)", with the data of Section 3.7 and 4.5, by which we get values for the "Indicator's Significance Factor (S)" as well as the values for the indicator's trendlines, in Figure 18 below, we present the formula of our sustainability model, which can be applied by businesses in order they adopt the principles of sustainable development.

$$D = \frac{|\text{Trend } EU - Business \text{ Trend}|}{\text{SDGs cost} - \text{effectiveness factor (F)}} x \text{ Indicator's Significance Factor (S)}$$

Figure 18: The sustainable development business model

By applying this formula, businesses will be able to choose indicators presenting the highest D value, while the specific model ensures the selection of business indicators of sustainable development characterized as:

a) <u>urgent</u>, as they indicate the largest deviation from the values of the corresponding EU indicators (referring to the European Union practices of sustainable development),

b) <u>cost effective</u>, whose choice would bring about the smallest possible cost to the business (or the greatest possible benefit will be obtained), and

c) <u>significant</u>, as they have been ranked by more of 400 executives of Greek businesses (according to their significance).

In Chapter 6 of this thesis, the above model will be applied by using data which were drawn from EEAE, the Greek national authority, responsible for the control, regulation and supervision in the fields of nuclear energy, nuclear technology, radiological and nuclear safety and radiation protection.

CHAPTER 5 – INDICATORS' DISTRIBUTION IN THE DIMENSIONS OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

5.1. Indicators' harmonious combinations

Beyond the measurement and monitoring challenges, a deeper reflection will be needed on how to capture the interlinkages between different goals, targets and indicators and their overall coherence. Most of the goals have economic, social and environmental aspects, yet the targets and indicators often offer a partial perspective on them. While data availability is clearly a major limitation to broadening the scope of some indicators, the framework itself should capture the possible interlinkages between the many goals (OECD, 2022).

Additionally, wondering about the contribution rule-constructing could make to business sustainability, we should highlight that rules have been structured even for the freest expressions of human creation. A source of inspiration, for the completion of our business sustainability model, was a fundamental rule of "painting" theory. It seems like a paradox, but even in the art of painting, which represents the absolute freedom of expression, basic rules exist. In the late 17th century, Sir Isaac Newton, best known for his physics knowledge and his breakthroughs, mapped the colour spectrum into a wheel. This colour wheel was divided into segments, with the primary colours (red, blue, yellow) to be placed exactly at the vertices of an equilateral triangle (at a 120-degree arc). The subdivisions of these segments were essentially the mixtures of each colour with its neighbour colour, while the main purpose of the colour wheel was to show how colours combine well with each other. In Figure 19 we can see the colour wheel with its primary colours (red, blue, yellow) and its subdivisions.



The colour combinations theory was based on the practice of combining colors using a geometric shape within the color wheel, as presented in Figure 20. For artists and designers though, the breakthrough of the wheel is that it gives harmonious colour combinations and determines the colours that are well combined together.



Specifically, when the geometric shape which intersects the wheel is a straight line, then the two opposite colours at the ends of the line are harmoniously combined with each other. Respectively, when the geometric shape lying on the wheel is a triangle, then the three colours at the triangle's vertices are well combined with each other. Note that this theory applies to rectangular shapes too (either square or rectangle). To form a complete picture of the colour combination theory, we shall note that by rotating the geometric shape (e.g. the line, triangle, rectangle) into the wheel, then new harmonious colour combinations emerge, as graphically illustrated in Figure 21.



Giving additional information, we should mention that there are harmonious colour combinations arising from either an equilateral triangle (revolving in the colour wheel as shown in Figure 21) or from an isosceles triangle (revolving in the colour wheel as shown in Figure 22).



Having analyzed a basic colours theory, the imaginative ones could make deductions between the triadic colour wheel and the so-called "triangle of sustainability" (as shown in Figure 23). Hence, according to the colours theory, the suitable (harmonious) three colours derive from the application of a simple process, specifically by the rotation of a triangle into a classified wheel. By a similar process, harmonious combinations of the SDGs could be defined.



5.2. The appropriate mixture of the SDGs at the business level

In business contexts, sustainability refers to more than just environmentalism. It calls for a shift from traditional to transformational development to occur. Transformational development, in contrast to traditional development, aims to change the current unsustainable (in terms of economic, social, or resource usage) situation into a sustainable (or at least more sustainable), ongoing situation. Traditional development relies on an ongoing flow of external resources to continue improving people's lives or protecting the environment. In other words, it aims to address the core issues and leave behind a resilient legacy that requires little to no more effort and no sustained external input. Traditional development frequently emphasizes creating opportunities for "beneficiaries," or those who gain from development practices, whereas transformational development views people and organizations as crucial partners in the transformation and unquestionably a part of the overall solution because they are seen as an integral part of the system that needs to be transformed (Stibbe & Prescott, 2020). Harvard Business School lists two ways to measure sustainable business practices: the effect a business has on the environment, and the effect a business has on society, with the goal of sustainable practice being to have a positive impact on at least one of those areas (Harvard Business School Online, 2018, https://online.hbs.edu/blog/post/what-is-sustainability-in-business). In support of the aforementioned, it's not a coincidence what is often mentioned in the relevant scientific literature, that "sustainability is not just environmentalism". Respectively, we could claim that "sustainability is not just profitability or cost reduction" and this justifies that in order for businesses to approach evenly the goals of sustainable development, a mixture of the SDGs, by all three pillars of sustainability (economic, environmental, and social), is wise to be selected.

By supporting this theory, that is, it is wise for a business to have an equable approach to all the pillars of sustainability, we will develop a simple process for selecting the appropriate indicators with social, economic and environmental impact. Observing the newly released United Nations' SDGs allocation, as shown in Figure 24, we notice that the majority of the SDGs belong to the social pillar of sustainability, which numbers 8 of the 17 total goals. The other 8 SDGs have been allocated evenly between the economic and the environmental pillar, while the one remaining SDG (that is SDG 17 which refers to "The partnerships for the Goals") is considered as a transcendental of the three pillars of sustainability. For this particular goal (SDG 17), let the readers forgive us for not dealing with it in this thesis. In order to support our non-engagement with this SDG, we should remind that SDG17 did not give any indicator suitable for use at the business level.

Combining the allocation of the SDGs of Figure 24 with the circular graphic illustration of the SDGs (as shown in the left part of Figure 25), gives a new illustration of the SDGs as presented in the right part of Figure 25.



This new segmented wheel would not simply depict the SDGs in ascending order, depending on their given number, but it would also allocate the SDGs to the pillars they belong to (as shown clearly in Figure 26). For instance, by the new segmentation of the SDGs wheel, we can see changes in the SDGs order. Indicatively, we can see that SDG 6, SDG 8, SDG 9, SDG 10, SDG 11, and SDG 16 have been moved to another section of the wheel, forming new groups depending on the pillar they belong to.



In the next section, it will be shown that what a business gains using SDGs wheel of Figure 26, is a convenient path for linking the appropriate indicators whose selection was presented in section 4.7 and will come, as far as possible, from all three pillars of sustainability aiming for an even indicators' distribution.



5.3. Mapping the SDG indicators

The initial step for businesses, during the SDGs selection process, is to define priorities and link them to certain goals, related to their business activities. By the term prioritization of the SDGs, we mean examining which of them will have the biggest impact on the business (conceals a great opportunity or a big danger), in the medium- to long term. Once the key SDGs are identified, it is important to link those goals to actual business targets and KPIs (indicators), as well as to monitor and report their progress. The SDGs represent an urgent call to action for business and have been described as a crowded-sourced purchase order from the future: So how should business leaders respond to this call to action? The first option is to defend the status quo: to tell a story about what the company is already doing on topics relating to the SDGs, rather than seeking out opportunities to change. The second option open to business leaders is to be selective and focus on just one or a few of the SDGs (Walker et al., 2019).

In our case, we are now given the opportunity to incorporate a sustainability model into action, which will place businesses one step closer to a holistic approach to business sustainability. By embedding a geometric shape (e.g. line or triangle) into the "SDGs wheel", SDG linkages will emerge and businesses will take advantage of the use of a variety of SDGs (chosen from more than one sustainability pillar). Consequently, we hope that businesses that will use our sustainability tool will contribute multi-dimensionally to their sustainability prospects. They will be given the opportunity to move beyond "just environmentalism", beyond "just financial indicators" and to deal with a complex of goals, creating an impact at a two or at three-pillar level of sustainability.

Having analyzed the basic principles of our sustainability model, in the figure that follows (Figure 27) we can see an example of an organization that defined its SDGs, prioritizing as its primary goal SDG 5. In short, it is about an organization that aims to achieve gender equality, by ending all forms of discrimination, violence, and any harmful practices against women. The choice of this goal will be graphically represented by putting a sphere into the blue-coloured arc of the sustainability wheel, right in front of SDG 5 (as shown in Figure 28). Summarizing, a social-oriented SDG was chosen from the blue arc area (SDG 5). In searching for the rest of the SDGs, in order to achieve the maximum

commitment to the principles of sustainability, the right decision for the business is to add goals either from the red or from the green area (and even better, from both of them).



Analytically, in order to select multidimensional SDGs, the next chosen SDG would be better among SDG 8 and SDG 12 (the red arc) or/and something among SDG 6 and SDG 15 (the green arc). In our example, let's assume that our business chose as its next two goals SDG 12 and SDG 13. So, we deal with a business that is interested in using the natural environment and resources in a way that discontinues to have destructive impacts on the planet, while taking urgent action to combat climate change and its impacts.

In the figure that follows we can see that the choice of these goals should be graphically represented by putting a sphere into the red-coloured arc (on the sustainability wheel), right in front of SDG 12 and by also putting a sphere into the green-coloured arc, right in front of SDG 13 (as shown in Figure 28). We may also notice that the spheres may move freely into limited arc areas (blue, red, and green arc), and it's not prohibited to have more than one sphere in each arc. These spheres may be linked to each other, forming geometric shapes. A straight line is formed between two SDGs, while a triangular shape is

formed between three SDGs, etc. In a few words, the geometric shapes to be formed have as many sides as the number of the SDGs (3 SDGs=triangle, 4 SDGs=rectangle, etc).



What businesses can benefit from the model described, is the choice of a variety of goals, respecting to sustainability's three pillars. According to our model's theory, these goals should be the SDGs with the biggest impact on business operation, that is the indicators showing the highest D value (as presented in section 4.7). In the next Chapter of this thesis, all this information will be gathered and presented in the form of a case study, using data from EEAE, the Greek national authority, competent for the control, regulation and supervision in the fields of nuclear energy, nuclear technology, radiological and

nuclear safety and radiation protection (EEAE, n.d., https://eeae.gr/en/eeae/profile/who-we-are).

CHAPTER 6 - A CASE STUDY FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

6.1. The implementation of the sustainability model in EEAE

The appropriate goals selection, referring to the priorities defined across the SDGs, is essential for the businesses in order to gain new growth possibilities while lowering their risk profiles. By selecting the right "measurable" and "time frame" SDG indicators, businesses can overcome "sustainable development" challenges and improve their sustainability performance.

In this section, we will focus on a case study, conducted by the authors in Greek Atomic Energy Commission (EEAE). The required data were provided by EEAE financial and administrative services during February 2023. EEAE story goes back to 1954 when for the first time an organization was founded in Greece in order to promote peaceful nuclear energy and technology applications, under the name "Greek Atomic Energy Commission". In 2014, with the introduction of Law 4310/2014, EEAE took the form of a Legal Entity of Public Law, acquiring an enhanced supervisory and regulatory role.

The selection of EEAE, as a business suitable for conducting our case study, was mainly based on the fact that the author of this thesis, as the CFO in EEAE would have direct access to the data needed, in a reasonable time. Secondly, the Chairman of EEAE agreed to perform the study and showed particular enthusiasm for the sustainability matter in EEAE. As already mentioned in the previous chapters of this thesis, a critical milestone for each business dealing with the sustainability matter is the selection of the appropriate SDG indicators. However, the process of selecting indicators presupposes a holistic study of the organization's purpose and responsibilities. In our case, EEAE is the authority, competent for the control, regulation and supervision in the fields of nuclear energy, nuclear technology, radiological and nuclear safety and radiation protection in Greece and is supervised by the Minister of Development and Investments. EEAE responsibilities include:

• Regulatory – legislative work.

• Inspections for radiation protection and safe operation.

• In situ measurements of electric and magnetic fields emitted by electric power installations (power lines, transformers etc), and of electromagnetic fields in the vicinity of antenna base stations.

• Personal dosimetry of the occupationally exposed workers to ionizing radiation in Greece and update of the national dose registry.

• Coordination of the environmental radioactivity monitoring program in Greece, operation of the telemetric environmental monitoring network, conduction of spectroscopic analyses in food and consumer goods and radon measurements.

• Operation of an ionizing radiation calibration laboratory, which has developed the national dosimetry standards and provides calibration services of ionizing radiation devices.

• Preparation of and response to radiological/nuclear emergencies.

• Contribution to combating illicit trafficking in radioactive materials.

• Training in radioprotection and nuclear protection at national and international levels.

• Update of the national data base related to radioprotection issues.

• Representation before – participation in committees of national, European and international organizations.

• Participation in European and national research and development programs and

• Public information (EEAE, n.d., https://eeae.gr/en/eeae/responsibilities).

Having thoroughly described the profile and the purpose of EEAE, in the next section we will delve into the process of selecting the EEAE-appropriate SDG indicators.

6.2. The EEAE SDG indicators selection

In order for each business to focus on the right sustainable development indicators, that is to indicators whose trend values must be improved, we remind that the businesses are firstly called to select a subset from the pool of 64 indicators of Table 3. These indicators should directly relate to each business activity and should also be accompanied by data. They should also be subject to improvement, as the indicators for which the optimum value has already been achieved, or their change is not allowed due to the institutional or legislative framework, are not eligible for our model.

Scrutinizing EEAE operations, procedures, its purpose and responsibilities, we came to the selection of 13 indicators as shown n detail in Table 9 below.

	SDG indicators	Description
1	5.5.2	Proportion of women in managerial positions
2	7.2.1	Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption
3	7.3.1	Energy intensity measured in terms of primary energy and GDP
4	8.5.1	Average hourly earnings of employees, by sex, age, occupation and persons with disabilities
5	8.8.1	Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status
6	9.5.1	Research and development expenditure as a proportion of GDP
7	9.5.2	Researchers (in full-time equivalent) per million inhabitants
8	10.3.1	Proportion of population reporting having personally felt discriminated against or harassed in the previous 12 months on the basis of a ground of discrimination prohibited under international human rights law
9	10.5.1	Financial Soundness Indicators
10	12.2.2	Domestic material consumption, domestic material consumption per capita, and domestic material consumption per GDP
11	12.5.1	National recycling rate, tons of material recycled
12	12.6.1	Number of companies publishing sustainability reports
13	16.1.3	Proportion of population subjected to (a) physical violence, (b) psychological violence and (c) sexual violence in the previous 12 months

 Table 9: SDG indicators selected in EEAE

Having settled down with the thirteen EEAE SDG indicators, it proved that two of them are not applicable for our model. Particularly, as indicators should be both accompanied by data and be subject to improvement, we observed that the SDG indicator 8.5.1 "Average hourly earnings of employees, by sex, age, occupation and persons with disabilities" is not subject to improvement due to the inflexible regime of the payroll in a Legal Entity of Public Law (the legislative framework of payroll in Public Entities is determined at the national level, and is not subject to modifications by the EEAE Board of Directors). Accordingly, for the SDG indicator 9.5.1 "Research and development expenditure as a proportion of GDP", no sufficient data were available.

Apart from these two non-applicable indicators, we 've noticed that the SDG indicator 10.3.1 "Proportion of population reporting having personally felt discriminated against or harassed in the previous 12 months on the basis of a ground of discrimination prohibited under international human rights law" as well as the indicator 16.1.3 "Proportion of population subjected to (a) physical violence, (b) psychological violence and (c) sexual violence in the previous 12 months" are not subject to improvement, as an optimum value has already been achieved for both of them. Consequently, SDG 10.3.1 and 16.1.3 are not eligible for our model too, though EEAE should be proud for the achievement and therefore could directly include them in a business sustainability report, in case such a report is released.

To summarize, we end up with 9 eligible SDG indicators, as shown in Table 10, so as to be further examined using our model.

	SDG indicators	Description
1	5.5.2	Proportion of women in managerial positions in EEAE
2	7.2.1	Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption in EEAE
3	7.3.1	Energy intensity in EEAE
4	8.8.1	Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries in EEAE
5	9.5.2	Researchers (in full-time equivalent) in EEAE

 Table 10: The eligible EEAE SDG indicators to be examined with our model

	SDG indicators	Description
6	10.5.1	Liquid assets to short term liabilities in EEAE
7	12.2.2	Material consumption per employee in EEAE
8	12.5.1	Tons of material recycled in EEAE
9	12.6.1	Sustainability reports published in EEAE

6.3. Calculating EEAE indicators' trend value (T_B)

Having settled down with the eligible EEAE indicators, the next step is to categorize the eligible indicators to "Positive" or "Negative trend SDG indicators", as it has been described in Section 4.5 and calculate their Trend (T_B). For calculating the T_B , we used data that were derived from the financial statements, the payroll statements, the incident's book as well as the decisions of the Board of Directors. The data referred to years between 2016 and 2021 so as to have the same range as the data of the corresponding EU indicators.

In Table 11 below, we may see the classification of the indicators into the two categories, "Positive" or "Negative trend indicators".

	SDG indicators	Description	Positive trend / Negative trend
1	5.5.2	Distance for a fair distribution of women in managerial positions in EEAE	-
2	7.2.1	Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption in EEAE	
3	7.3.1	Energy intensity measured in EEAE	-
4	8.8.1	Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries in EEAE	
5	9.5.2	Researchers (in full-time equivalent) in EEAE	

Table 11: Classification of the "positive" and "negative trend" EEAE SDG indicators

	SDG indicators	Description	Positive trend / Negative trend
6	10.5.1	Liquid assets to short term liabilities in EEAE	
7	12.2.2	Material consumption per employee in EEAE	-
8	12.5.1	Tons of material recycled in EEAE	
9	12.6.1	Sustainability reports published in EEAE	

On the following pages, we will state the above indicator's data, as well as their trends (T_B), by using Excel. In detail, for each indicator we have:

DISTANCE FOR A FAIR DISTRIBUTION OF WOMEN IN MANAGERIAL POSITIONS IN EEAE (5.5.2)

	Women in	Total managerial		Deviation from the
Year	managerial positions	positions	Percentage	optimal value (50%)
2016	4	11	36,36%	13,64%
2017	4	11	36,36%	13,64%
2018	4	11	36,36%	13,64%
2019	4	11	36,36%	13,64%
2020	5	11	45,45%	4,55%
2021	5	11	45,45%	4,55%

Table 12: Number of women in managerial positions in EEAE

By Table 12, we conclude that EEAE applies a relatively fair distribution between men and women in managerial positions, however, although not much, there is still room for improvement. Regarding the T_B of the indicator 5.5.2 in EEAE, as we may see in Figure 29 below, it takes the value -0,0208, thus meaning T_B (5.5.2) = -0,0208.



Figure 29: Calculating the SDG indicator's 5.5.2 trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

• <u>RENEWABLE ENERGY SHARE IN EEAE TOTAL FINAL ENERGY</u> <u>CONSUMPTION (7.2.1)</u>

Year	Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption	
2016	0,00%	
2017	0,00%	
2018	0,00%	
2019	0,00%	
2020	0,00%	
2021	0,00%	

Table 13: Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption in EEAE

By Table 13, we may see that EEAE has not yet switched to renewable energy sources in order to become energy independent, by producing a part of its own consumption. The advantages of renewable energy use are significant, including financial savings, especially at a time when energy prices are unstable and constantly increasing. Another advantage is that renewable energy brings about improvement in the image of the business, while it causes its carbon footprint reduction.

Concluding, it is obvious that due to the non-existence of renewable energy sources policy in EEAE, the T_B value of SDG 7.2.1 is null, thus meaning $T_{B(7,2,1)}=0$.

• ENERGY INTENSITY IN EEAE (7.3.1)

Year	Energy Consumption (kW)	Profit (in €)	Energy intensity
2016	242819	1.863.661,61€	0,1303
2017	225185	2.384.203,82 €	0,0944
2018	235357	2.064.380,59€	0,1140
2019	234420	2.804.267,08 €	0,0836
2020	230619	2.109.782,34 €	0,1093
2021	234761	1.681.974,18€	0,1396

 Table 14: Energy consumption for profits in EEAE

Energy intensity is indeed a measure of the energy efficiency of an economy and is calculated as units of energy per unit of GDP. High energy intensities indicate a high cost of converting energy into GDP, while low energy intensity indicates a lower price of converting energy into GDP. In order to apply something equivalent in the business level, we took into account the EEAE energy consumption as well as its net results for the years 2016-2021. Consequently, we come up to the data as stated in the column named "Energy intensity" in Table 14 above, while the T_B of the SDG 7.3.1 is $T_{B(7.3.1)} = -0,0008$ as shown in Figure 30.



Figure 30: Calculating the SDG indicator's 7.3.1 trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

• FATAL AND NON-FATAL OCCUPATIONAL INJURIES (8.8.1)

Although EEAE is s undoubtedly a safe working environment, as safety culture is a priority at all levels of decision-making and exercise of functions (EEAE, n.d., https://eeae.gr/en/eeae/profile/safety-is-our-priority), in the years 2017-2019 minor accidents occurred at work, characterized by the Greek Legislation as non-fatal occupational injuries.

The exact figures are shown in Table 15 where in years 2016, 2017 and 2021 no occupational injuries have occurred. By using Excel we then get the value of T_B for the SDG 8.8.1 to be TB (8.8.1) = 0,0012 as shown in Figure 31.

Year	Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries	Total number of employees	Percentage
2016	0	78	0,00%
2017	0	78	0,00%
2018	1	74	1,35%
2019	1	74	1,35%
2020	1	72	1,39%
2021	0	71	0,00%

Table 15: Occupational injuries in EEAE



Figure 31: Calculating the SDG indicator's 8.8.1 trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

• <u>RESEARCHERS (IN FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT) PER THE TOTAL</u> <u>NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (9.5.2)</u>

EEAE is currently employing nearly 70 qualified persons; most of them hold higher education degrees, postgraduate qualifications and specialization skills in scientific knowledge and expertise. Researchers in EEAE are considered the special scientific personnel, in accordance with article 16 of the national Law No 4386/2016. The exact number of them as well as their percentage to the total number of employees is recorded in Table 16, while by using Excel we get that $T_{B(9.5.2)} = 0,0099$ as shown in Figure 32.

Year	Researchers (in full-time equivalent)	Total number of employees	Percentage
2016	10	78	12,82%
2017	10	78	12,82%
2018	10	74	13,51%
2019	12	74	16,22%
2020	12	72	16,67%
2021	12	71	16,90%

 Table 16: Researchers (in full-time equivalent) in EEAE



Figure 32: Calculating the SDG indicator's 9.5.2 trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

• FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (10.5.1)

Although EEAE, as a Legal Entity of Public Law, is a non-profit organization, its cash reserves should be sufficient to ensure its viability for the years to come. For this reason, we chose as an economic indicator of sustainability, the particular SDG indicator "Liquid assets to short-term liabilities", with its values recorded in Table 17.

	Liquid assets to short term liabilities	Return on assets (%)
2016	23,33	8,24%
2017	19,03	8,62%
2018	19,06	6,92%
2019	19,27	8,57%
2020	29,91	8,23%
2021	32,65	5,04%

Table 17: "Liquid assets to short term liabilities" and "Return on assets" in EEAE

The first column of the above table shows that the cash deposit of EEAE is able to cover the short-term obligations, while the second the percentage of profit derived from the exploitation of its assets.

By using Excel, we get that $T_{B(10.5.1)} = 2,27$ as shown in Figure 33.



Figure 33: Calculating the SDG indicator's 10.5.1 "Liquid assets to short term liabilities" trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

<u>DOMESTIC MATERIAL CONSUMPTION / CONSUMPTION PER</u> <u>EMPLOYEE (12.2.2)</u>

The main materials used by all the employees in EEAE are mainly A4 paper, printer toners and disposable plastic cups for water. As their possible overconsumption would place an increasing strain on the environment, it was crucial for our thesis purpose to gather these particular materials' consumption data during the years 2016 to 2021.

Considering the absolute numbers of the three tables below, anyone could argue that the materials' consumption trend is declining. However, we should not overlook that, due to the Covid-19 pandemic, during the years 2020 and 2021 a large part of the employees in EEAE worked from home. This fact urges us to suggest the use of additional data in order reach to safe conclusions. This is particularly concerning A4 paper and plastic cups, as on the contrary the toner consumption in the year 2020 shows clearly an increasing trend, regardless of the reduction of the employees.

By Tables 18 to 20, we can see the data for A4 paper, printer toners and disposable plastic cups for water, while in Figure 34 to 36 the trendlines for each material, with the values of their T_B to be as follows:

 $T_{B (12.2.2, A4 paper)} = -0,0067$ (more data needed in order to reach to safe conclusions) $T_{B (12.2.2, Toner)} = 0.0491$

 $T_{B(12.2.2, Plastic cups)} = -2,5264$ (more data needed in order to reach to safe conclusions)

Year	A4 paper (packs)	Total number of employees	A4 paper packs / employee
2016	95	78	1,22
2017	90	78	1,15
2018	95	74	1,28
2019	90	74	1,22
2020	90	72	1,25
2021	80	71	1,13

 Table 18: A4 paper consumption in EEAE

At this point, it is worth mentioning that from 2022 onwards, EEAE exclusively uses single-use paper cups, instead of plastic ones. This is a very important information, not only for the environmental awareness in EEAE but mainly because it is proven that the quantity alone does not always reflect the reality. In other words, the material that burdens the environment should be taken into account.



Figure 34: Calculating the SDG indicator's 12.2.2 (A4 paper consumption) trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

Year	Toner (number)	Total number of employees	Toner / employees
2016	141	78	1,81
2017	71	78	0,91
2018	142	74	1,92
2019	136	74	1,84
2020	133	72	1,85
2021	114	71	1,61

Table 19: Toner consumption in EEAE



Figure 35: Calculating the SDG indicator's 12.2.2 (toner consumption) trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

Year	Plastic cups (number)	Total number of employees	Plastic cups / employees
2016	11.000	78	141
2017	16.500	78	212
2018	15.000	74	203
2019	15.000	74	203
2020	9.750	72	135
2021	12.000	71	169

 Table 20: Plastic cups consumption in EEAE.



Figure 36: Calculating the SDG indicator's 12.2.2 (plastic cups consumption) trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

• TONS OF MATERIAL RECYCLED (12.5.1)

Since the past two decades, EEAE has implemented a material recycling program. This recycling program includes paper, plastics, metals, toner and batteries. Unfortunately, data is kept only from 2020 onwards, while data for the previous years were given to us as an estimate as shown in Table 6.21. Similarly to the previous indicator, relative caution should be required before drawing conclusions about the materials' recycling trend, as Covid-19 pandemic has also affected this indicator's rate.

Using Excel, the $T_{B(12.5.1)}$ = -0,0234 as shown in Figure 37, but more data are required in order to reach into more safe conclusions.

Year	Materials recycled (in kg)	Materials recycled (in tons)
2016	1380 (in estimate)	1,38 (in estimate)
2017	1400 (in estimate)	1,4 (in estimate)
2018	1420 (in estimate)	1,42 (in estimate)
2019	1450 (in estimate)	1,45 (in estimate)
2020	1125	1,125
2021	1375	1,375

Table 21: Materials recycled in EEAE



Figure 37: Calculating the SDG indicator's 12.5.1 trend value (T_B) in EEAE.

• SUSTAINABILITY REPORTS PUBLISHED (12.6.1)

Year	Sustainability reports published
2016	0
2017	0
2018	0
2019	0
2020	0
2021	0

 Table 22: Sustainability reports published in EEAE

By Table 22, we may see that EEAE has not ever published sustainability reports, so the T_B value of SDG 12.6.1 is stable as $T_{B(12.6.1)} = 0$.

Having calculated the EEAE selected indicators Trend Value (TB), in Table 23 below we may see the indicators classification (please see Section 4.5 for reference), as well as the EEAE and EU Trend Value.

	SDG indicators	Positive or Negative Trend SDG indicator	EEAE Trend Value (TB)	EU Trend Value (TEU)
1	5.5.2		-0,0208	-1,764
2	7.2.1		0	0,6648

Table 23: Classification and trends of the SDG indicators (TB, TEU)

	SDG	Positive or Negative	EEAE Trend Value	EU Trend Value	
	indicators	Trend SDG indicator	(Тв)	(Teu)	
3	7.3.1		-0,0008	-12,398	
4	8.8.1		0,0012	-0,0588	
5	9.5.2		0,0099	0,0384	
6.i	10.5.1		2,27	-2,083	
7.i	8.4.2 / 12.2.2	Ļ	-0,0067	0.00000001	
7.ii	8.4.2 / 12.2.2	Ļ	2,5264	0.00000001	
7.iii	8.4.2 12.2.2	-	-0,0491	0.00000001	
8	12.5.1		-0,0234	1,0191	
9	12.6.1		0	7,5524	

In the next section, we will compare the selected indicators trends (T_B to the T_{EU}) so as to allocate them in categories "a" to "d" (as described in Section 4.6). Subsequently, after we have calculated the above indicators' values "F" (as detailed in sections 4.6) and assigned them the value "S" (as detailed in section 3.7 respectively), our model could be implemented to reveal the first-line indicators, as indicators of immediate priority in terms of implementation of business sustainable development practices.

6.4. The results from the application of the sustainability model

Having calculated the T_{EU} , by using EU data which performs the rate of change of SDG indicators over the last years, as well as the T_B by using EEAE data, in Table 24 below we highlight the EEAE indicators which need to be improved. Low-performance indicators (as described in Section 4.5), will be eligible for our model, which practically means that EEAE policy readjustment is required in order to achieve its sustainable

development goals. At this point, we should notice that more data are required for the SDG indicator 12.2.2, which is A4 paper as well as plastic cups consumption, as the Covid-19 pandemic contributed to a large part of the employees working from home during the years 2019 and 2020. It is obvious that in case that additional data prove the opposite in the future, the SDG indicator's 12.2.2 eligibility status should change.

	SDG indicators	Positive or Negative Trend SDG indicator	Тв	TEU	Indicators Status	Eligibility Status
1	5.5.2	Ļ	-0,0208	-1,764	Low- Performance	Yes
2	7.2.1	1	0	0,6648	Low- Performance	Yes
3	7.3.1	Ļ	-0,0008	-12,398	Low- Performance	Yes
4	8.8.1	Ļ	0,0012	-0,0588	Low- Performance	Yes
5	9.5.2		0,0099	0,0384	Low- Performance	Yes
6.i	10.5.1	1	2,27	-2,083	High- Performance	No
7.i	8.4.2 / 12.2.2	Ļ	-0,0067	0,00000001	High- Performance	No
7.ii	8.4.2 / 12.2.2	Ļ	2,5264	0,00000001	High- Performance	No
7.iii	8.4.2 12.2.2	Ļ	-0,0491	0,00000001	Low- Performance	Yes
8	12.5.1	1	-0,0234	1,0191	Low- Performance	Yes

Table 24: Eligibility status of the SDG indicators

	SDG indicators	Positive or Negative Trend SDG indicator	Тв	TEU	Indicators Status	Eligibility Status
9	12.6.1	1	0	7,5524	Low- Performance	Yes

By the information of Table 24, we arrive at the conclusion that the SDG indicator 10.5.1, which represents the financial soundness of EEAE should be omitted, yet EEAE's employees may feel secure about the Agency's viability for many years to come. The same happens with the SDG indicator 12.2.2 referring to the A4 paper and the plastic cups.

Two steps before the end, the "F" values of the eligible indicators should be calculated. Using the consequence/likelihood matrix of Section 4.6, and with the assistance of financial services of EEAE, a cost-benefit analysis was conducted for each of the eligible indicators. We remind you that the analysis is focused on EEAE's stable cash position beyond its liabilities, combined with an assessment of the achievement of cost savings or revenue growth by the estimated time of achievement.

Particularly, referring to the "F" values of the SDG indicators:

- 5.5.2, "Distance for a fair distribution of women in managerial positions in EEAE", although there is little room for improvement, as 5 out of 11 managerial positions in EEAE are occupied by women, we may see that a transformation to a fairer distribution would cause low scale cost savings in the long run, which corresponds to value 20, that is $F_{5.5.2} = 20$.
- 7.2.1, "Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption", judging by the fact that EEAE has the potential to place Solar PV panels on its roof, which is nearly $500m^2$ and taking into account that the annual electricity demand would be covered by the solar energy would be nearly the one-third of the total final energy consumption. However, we must not overlook the fact that this is an expensive investment which takes nearly ten years to pay back so we deal with an investment which causes low-scale cost savings in the long run, which corresponds to a value of 40, that is $F_{7.2.1} = 40$.

- 7.3.1, "Energy intensity in EEAE", we could suggest the use of smart automation in the corridors, i.e. motion detection systems that will turn off the lights in case there are no employees present. Acquiring such systems is not an expensive investment, so we deal with an investment which causes low-scale cost savings in the long run, which corresponds to a value of 40, that is F_{7.3.1} = 40.
- 8.8.1, "Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries in EEAE", we should first clarify that EEAE is a very safe place to work. Safety is a priority at all levels of decision-making and exercise of functions (EEAE, n.d., https://eeae.gr/en/eeae/profile/safety-is-our-priority) while EEAE provides the means which enable the employees to safely exercise their duties. However referring to safety there is always room for improvement, so we would recommend strengthening of the employees' safety culture with the appropriate training programs as well as the maintenance of the scientific equipment, the means used by the employees as well as the facilities, at the highest possible levels. These are actions that require a large cost, however, the benefit will be even greater since it contributes to ensuring the physical integrity of the employees that are the main asset in EEAE. Consequently, we could claim that we deal with a review of business practices requiring moderate investment cost, which causes an immediate achievement of high-scale cost savings which corresponds to value 3, that is $F_{8.8.1} = 3$.
- 9.5.2, "Researchers (in full-time equivalent) in EEAE", we should note that nearly 70 employees work in EEAE, while most of them hold higher education degrees, postgraduate qualifications and specialization skills in scientific knowledge and expertise. During 2021, there were 12 researchers (in full-time equivalent) in a total number of 71 employees in EEAE. Increasing the number of researchers will cause average costs to the budget of the Organization, with little impact on the EEAE revenues in the long run, especially since EEAE is a non-profit organization. This fact returns a value of F_{9.5.2} = 48 as it is about a low-scale revenue growth in the long run.
- 12.2.2 (or 8.4.2) "Toner consumption per employee in EEAE" as well as 12.5.1 "Tons of material recycled in EEAE", these are two indicators whose improvement can only be achieved through targeted programs, mainly by training the employees
to act with a more ecological culture. These actions do not cost much, but they do not bring much savings. As a result, we could assign the indicators a value of 10, that is $F_{12.2.2} = F_{12.5.1} = 10$, as an immediate achievement of low scale cost savings, requiring low investment cost

• 12.6.1, "Sustainability reports published in EEAE", we deal with a long-term achievement of low scale cost savings, requiring low investment cost that is $F_{12.6.1} = 40$.

One step by the end, the eligible indicators should be mapped with the "significance" values of Table 2, so as to derive their "S" values. This proved to be an easy procedure for the SDG indicators 5.5.2, 7.2.1, 8.8.1, 9.5.2, 12.2.2 and 12.5.1 as were included as indicators in our 2014 questionnaire. On the contrary, for SDG indicators 7.3.1, 10.5.1 and 12.6.1 that were not included in our questionnaire, we had to make reasonable deductions in order to give them a significance ("S") value. Consequently, as indicator 7.3.1 "Energy intensity in EEAE" resembles to our questionnaire's 28th indicator "Labor's productivity" we will give it an equal value which is 4, while for the indicator 10.5.1 "Liquid assets to short-term liabilities in EEAE" which resembles our questionnaire's 29th indicator "Net profit of the organization" we will give it an equal value, which is also 4. Finally, for indicator 12.6.1 "Sustainability reports published in EEAE", it would be unrealistic, since we consider that the issue of sustainable development in business is of the utmost importance, not to give it the value 5.

Summarizing all the above information in order we implement our model for the eligible indicators, we aggregate the data in Table 25 below.

Table 25: Summarizing the values of the eligible SDG indicators

SDG indicators	Тв ЕЕАЕ	Teu	Indicators Status	"F" value	"S" value
5.5.2	-0,0208	-1,764	Low-Performance	20	3,43
7.2.1	0	0,6648	Low-Performance	40	2,95
7.3.1	-0,0008	-12,398	Low-Performance	40	3,58
8.8.1	0,0012	-0,0588	Low-Performance	3	3,84
9.5.2	0,0099	0,0384	Low-Performance	48	3,19
8.4.2 / 12.2.2	0,0491	1E-08	Low-Performance	10	3,56
12.5.1	-0,0234	1,0191	Low-Performance	10	3,91
12.6.1	0	7,5524	Low-Performance	40	5

By applying the formula of Section 4.7 for each indicator, which is:

$D = \frac{|\text{Trend } EU - Business \text{ Trend}|}{\text{SDGs cost} - \text{effectiveness factor (F)}} x \text{ Indicator's Significance Factor (S)}$

we get the value "D" as detailed in Table 26 below.

Table	26:	"D"	values	of	the	eligible	SDG	indicators
-------	-----	-----	--------	----	-----	----------	-----	------------

SDG indicators	Description	"D" value
5.5.2	Distance for a fair distribution of women in managerial positions in EEAE	0,2989588

SDG indicators	Description	"D" value
7.2.1	Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption	0,049029
7.3.1	Energy intensity in EEAE	1,1095494
8.8.1	Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries in EEAE	0,0768
9.5.2	Researchers (in full-time equivalent) in EEAE	0,001894063
8.4.2 / 12.2.2	Toner consumption (per employee in EEAE)	0,017479596
12.5.1	Tons of material recycled (EEAE)	0,4076175
12.6.1	Sustainability reports published (EEAE)	0,94405

Listing the indicators in descending order, according to their "D" value, we may draw conclusions about the EEAE's priority indicators, as shown in Table 27 below.

SDG indicators	Description	"D" value
7.3.1	Energy intensity in EEAE	1,10955
12.6.1	Sustainability reports published (EEAE)	0,94405
12.5.1	Tons of material recycled (EEAE)	0,40762
5.5.2	Distance for a fair distribution of women in managerial positions in EEAE	0,29896
8.8.1	Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries in EEAE	0,0768
7.2.1	Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption	0,04903
8.4.2 / 12.2.2	Toner consumption (per employee in EEAE)	0,01748
9.5.2	Researchers (in full-time equivalent) in EEAE	0,00189

 Table 27: Prioritizing the eligible SDG indicators

From Table 27 we conclude that in order for EEAE to enhance its sustainable development prospects, it is an immediate priority to deal with SDG 7.3.1 "Energy intensity", followed by indicator 12.6.1 "Sustainability reports published", followed by SDG 12.5.1 "Tons of material recycled" and in like manner. Finally, considering the sustainability wheel of Figure 26, in order for EEAE to implement a balanced policy towards the three pillars of sustainability, it would be "sustainable" to choose not only the

best "D" value indicators, but also indicators from different pillars. In our case, it happens that SDG 7.3.1 as well as SDG 12.6.1 belong to two different pillars, which are the society and economy related ones, so these two SDGs, in the absence of indicators from the environment's pillar, constitute our final choice, as shown in Figure 38.



Figure 38: EEAE SDG pillars selection.

In any case, however, the upper management of each Organization with the assistance of their financial and technical teams, will make the final decision of the indicators' selection, weighing the distance they wish to cover, the investment costs as well as risk involved in this change effort. It is our hope that the management of each Organization will show the required goodwill to implement our model. And we take it for granted that the EU will assist, providing incentives and significant de-risking and

coinvestment vehicles to encourage private investment in sustainable assets (United Nations, 2018). The same for the World Bank, which has already implemented the cost, related to SDGs, in its Agenda as well as measures that include shifting the financing debate from simply more spending to ensuring spending efficiency, as well as building recognition for the vital role of policy reforms and cross-sectoral synergies in the development of strategy to achieve the SDGs (Vorisek & Yu 2020).

CHAPTER 7 – CONCLUSION

As the "UN's 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development" is calling on businesses to apply their creativity and innovation for solving sustainable development challenges, it is important for businesses to act urgently. Antoine de Saint-Exupéry quoted "the time for action is now and it's never too late to do something" and this is our own worldview as well. If all businesses operated sustainably, consider the overall impact this would have on establishing just and equitable societies.

The main consideration of our thesis was to create a sustainability model that would demonstrate the businesses' sustainability status, as well as highlight the business "areas" that need to be improved. A careful and thorough examination in general scientific areas, combined with the sustainability practices was the source of our model creation in order to give evidence, even if this was done unintentionally, of the implementation of the principles of sustainability in the business level.

In cases where corrective measures are required, businesses should readjust their policy to become sustainable. On the contrary, if business practices are consistent with those of sustainable development, businesses are given a good opportunity to issue a sustainability report and take advantage of new business opportunities. By launching initiatives on sustainability related issues, businesses may show that they are not only part of the problem but an essential part of solution, since they may contribute to solve sustainability issues (International Training Center of the ILO, 2019).

It is a reality that to the path of the creation of our model, we met obstacles. The main challenge in monitoring progress relates to the lack of adequate data available to develop indicators, including the gender dimension, and to assess progress for more than half of the environment-related indicators. Another challenge to SDG realization is the lack of analytical tools robust enough to both bring together new datascience techniques such as artificial intelligence, new technologies such as cloud computing, and big data to generate knowledge (UN Environment Programme, 2021, https://www.unep.org/resources/publication/measuring-progress-environment-and-sdgs). But as an epilogue, we are happy with our model. It's about the joy of creating and giving

to the businesses something tangible to deal with, in order to fulfill their sustainability interests enabling them to select indicators characterized as:

a) <u>urgent</u>, as they indicate the largest deviation from the values of the corresponding EU indicators (referring to the European Union practices of sustainable development),

b) <u>cost effective</u>, whose choice would bring about the smallest possible cost to the business (or the greatest possible benefit will be obtained), and

c) <u>significant</u>, as they have been ranked by more of 400 executives of Greek businesses (according to their significance).

However, although contented, we cannot rest on our laurels. There are points for further research and investigation, as particularly listed below.

• Sustainability data need to be periodically updated, based on relevant business data, or on sectoral data or even better on sectoral data by business size class (though such data are difficult to be found). In case of the existence of sectoral data by business size class, our model corresponds perfectly as a "tug of war" between the average target value and the corresponding business one.

• For sustainability indicators for which a company has achieved values close to the optimal possible value (the successive last years), the rate of these indicators will not change in a similar grade compared to the average. This will give a distorted state, that the business index should be significantly improved and consequently that business action is required in the direction of sustainable development. In this case, our model should not be implemented, so this should be a case of the business executives to initially assess the room for sustainable improvement.

• Important events, such as the Covid-19 pandemic, should be seriously considered as they affect the data disproportionately, resulting in the model returning distorted values. We are also aware that the data of the questionnaire were not analyzed in depth and in some cases the data samples for calculating regression trends were not big enough to allow for a proper data analysis. It should be pointed out however, that data analysis was not the main goal in this thesis, but the focus was to highlight and implement the proposed sustainability model, in a manner easily understood and possibly adopted by businesses.

• Last but not least, as the number of business indicators (76) out of the total number of UN indicators (232), is relatively small, the competent authorities such as the UN or the

International Labour Organization (ILO) should reconsider the enrichment and the standardization of the UN indicators, in a manner to make them plentiful for business use.

REFERENCES

Agarwal, N., Gneiting, U., & Mhlanga, R. (2017). Raising the bar: Rethinking the role of business in the sustainable development goals. OXFAM.

Barkemeyer, R., Holt, D., Preuss, L., & Tsang, S. (2011). What Happened to the 'Development' in Sustainable Development? Business Guidelines Two Decades After Brundtland. *Sustainable Development*, DOI: 10.1002/sd.521.

Boone, H. N., & Boone, D. A. (2012). Analyzing Likert Data. The Journal of Extension, 50(2), 48

Chakravorti B. (2017). How companies can champion sustainable development. Harvard Business Review.

Commission of the European Communities. COM. (2009). Mainstreaming sustainable development into EU policies: 2009 Review of the European Union Strategy for Sustainable

Dobson, A. (1999). Fairness and Futurity: Essays on Environmental Sustainability and Social Justice.

Elkington, J. (1999). Cannibals with forks: the triple bottom line of 21st century business. Choice Reviews Online, 36(07), 36–3997. https://doi.org/10.5860/choice.36-3997

European Commission. COM (2011) 17 final. Regional Policy contributing to Sustainable Growth in Europe 2020

European Environment Agency. (2006). Renewed Strategy, by the Council of the European Union, No. 10917/06. https://www.eea.europa.eu/policy-documents/10917-06.

European Investment Bank, (2021). EIB investment report 2020/2021 : building a smart and green Europe in the COVID-19 era, European Investment Bank. https://data.europa.eu/doi/10.2867/904099

European Parliament. European Parliament resolution of 7 September 2010 on developing the job potential of a new sustainable economy (2010/2010(INI)), *Official Journal of the European Union*, C 308 E/6, 2011.

Eurostat. (2021). Sustainable development in the European Union — Monitoring report on progress towards the SDGs in an EU context — 2021 edition. https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/products-flagship-publications/-/ks-03-21-096

Eurostat. (2022). Sustainable development in the European Union — Overview of progress towards the SDGs in an EU context — 2022 edition. https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/products-catalogues/-/ks-06-22-017

Farrell, A. (1999), Sustainability and decision-making. *Policy Studies Review*, *Fall/Winter*, 16, (3/4), 36-74.

Fiksel, J., Eason, T., & Frederickson, H. (2012). A Framework for Sustainability Indicators at EPA. https://www.epa.gov/sustainability/report-framework-sustainabilityindicators-epa

Ghosh, S., & Rajan, J. (2019). The business case for SDGs: an analysis of inclusive business models in emerging economies. International Journal of Sustainable Development and World Ecology, 26(4), 344–353. https://doi.org/10.1080/13504509.2019.1591539

Glavič, P., & Lukman, R. K. (2007). Review of sustainability terms and their definitions. Journal of Cleaner Production, 15(18), 1875–1885. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2006.12.006 Goyeneche, O. Y. R., Ramirez, M., Schot, J., & Arroyave, F. (2022). Mobilizing the transformative power of research for achieving the Sustainable Development Goals. Research Policy, 51(10), 104589. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.respol.2022.104589

Greek Atomic Energy Commision. 2020. Annual Activity Report 2019. Athens: Greek Atomic Energy Commision. <u>https://eeae.gr/en/eeae/annual-reports</u>

Harvard Business School Online. Spiliakos, A. (2018). What Does Sustainability Mean in Business? | Business Insights Blog. https://online.hbs.edu/blog/post/what-issustainability-in-business

Henderson, K., & Loreau, M. (2023). A model of Sustainable Development Goals: Challenges and opportunities in promoting human well-being and environmental sustainability. Ecological Modelling, 475, 110164. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecolmodel.2022.110164

Hilton, S. C. S. (2003). How brands can change the world. Journal of Brand Management, 10(4), 370–377. https://doi.org/10.1057/palgrave.bm.2540132

Hummels, H., & Argyrou, A. (2021). Planetary demands: Redefining sustainable development and sustainable entrepreneurship. Journal of Cleaner Production, 278, 123804. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2020.123804

IEC 31010:2019. (2019, July 1). Risk management – Risk assessment techniques, Edition 2.0, ISO. https://www.iso.org/standard/72140.html

International Institute for Sustainable Development in conjunction with Deloitte &Touche and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development. (1992). LeadershipandAccountabilityforthe90s.https://www.iisd.org/system/files/publications/businessstrategy.pdf

International Training Center of the ILO. (2019). Employers' and business member organizations and sustainable development goals "A handbook for EBMOs". https://www.ilo.org/actemp/publications/WCMS_727277/lang--en/index.htm

Kates, R. W., Clark, W. C., Corell, R., Hall, J. M., Jaeger, C. C., Lowe, I., McCarthy, J. J., Schellnhuber, H. J., Bolin, B., Dickson, N. M., Faucheux, S., Gallopin, G. C., Grübler, A., Huntley, B., Jäger, J., Jodha, N. S., Kasperson, R. E., Mabogunje, A., Matson, P., ... Svedin, U. (2001). Sustainability Science. Science, 292(5517), 641–642. http://www.jstor.org/stable/3083523

Kim, J. B., & Oki, T. (2011). Visioneering: an essential framework in sustainability science. Sustainability Science. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11625-011-0130-8</u>

Mansell, P., Philbin, S. P., & Broyd, T. (2020). Development of a New Business Model to Measure Organizational and Project-Level SDG Impact—Case Study of a Water Utility Company. Sustainability, 12(16), 6413. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12166413

Mansell, P., Philbin, S. P., & Plodowski, A. (2019). Why Project Management is Critical to Achieving the SDGs, and How This Can be Achieved. ResearchGate. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/333457131_WHY_PROJECT_MANAGEMEN T_IS_CRITICAL_TO_ACHIEVING_THE_SDGs_AND_HOW_THIS_CAN_BE_ACHI EVED

Mio, C., Panfilo, S., & Blundo, B. (2020). Sustainable development goals and the strategic role of business: A systematic literature review. Business Strategy and the Environment, 29(8), 3220–3245. https://doi.org/10.1002/bse.2568.

Moore, J. E., Mascarenhas, A., Bain, J., & Straus, S. E. (2017). Developing a comprehensive definition of sustainability. Implementation Science, 12(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s13012-017-0637-1

119

OECD (2022), The Short and Winding Road to 2030: Measuring Distance to the SDG Targets, OECD Publishing, Paris, <u>https://doi.org/10.1787/af4b630d-en</u>

Papaioannou T. – Loukas S. (2002). Introduction to Statistics, Stamoulis Publishing. Athens

Parrado, S. Löffler, E. European Public Administration Network (EUPAN). (2010). Towards sustainable public administration. Madrid

Pintér, L., Kok, M., & Almassy, D. (2018). Measuring Progress in Achieving the Sustainable Development Goals. In The MIT Press eBooks. https://doi.org/10.7551/mitpress/9780262035620.003.0005

Presidency of the Hellenic Government. (2022). Voluntary National Review 2022, Greece | High-Level Political Forum. https://hlpf.un.org/countries/greece/voluntarynational-review-2022

Sachs, J. D. (2012). From Millennium Development Goals to Sustainable Development Goals. The Lancet, 379(9832), 2206–2211. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0140-6736(12)60685-0

Sachs, J., Lafortune, G., Kroll, C., Fuller, G., Woelm, F. (2022). From Crisis to Sustainable Development: the SDGs as Roadmap to 2030 and Beyond. Sustainable Development Report 2022. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

SDG Compass (2015). SDG Compass: The Guide for Business Action on the SDGs. https://sdgcompass.org/

Shad, M. A., Lai, F., Fatt, C. L., Klemeš, J. J., & Bokhari, A. (2019). Integrating sustainability reporting into enterprise risk management and its relationship with business

performance: A conceptual framework. Journal of Cleaner Production, 208, 415–425. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2018.10.120

Sherbinin, A. (2003). The role of sustainability indicators as a tool for assessing territorial. Environmental Competitiveness. International Forum for Rural Development, London.

Stibbe, D. & Prescott, D. (2020) THE SDG PARTNERSHIP GUIDEBOOK: A practical guide to building high impact multi-stakeholder partnerships for the Sustainable Development Goals, The Partnering Initiative and UNDESA. https://sdgs.un.org/publications/sdg-partnership-guidebook-24566

Stutz, J. (2010). The three-front war: pursuing sustainability in a world shaped by explosive growth. Sustainability: Science, Practice and Policy, 6(2), 49–59. https://doi.org/10.1080/15487733.2010.11908049

The Business and Sustainable Development Commission. (2016). Better Business Better World Executive Summary. <u>https://sdgresources.relx.com/reports/better-business-</u> <u>better-world-executive-summary</u>

Tura, N., Keränen, J., & Patala, S. (2019). The darker side of sustainability: Tensions from sustainable business practices in business networks. Industrial Marketing Management, 77, 221–231. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.indmarman.2018.09.002

UNEP - UN Environment Programme. (2021). Measuring Progress: Environment and the SDGs. https://www.unep.org/resources/publication/measuring-progressenvironment-and-sdgs

United Nations. (2018). The European Commission Action Plan, Financing Sustainable Growth Assessment of the reform areas for PRI Signatories. https://www.unpri.org/download?ac=5173

121

United Nations. (2021). The Sustainable Development Goals. https://unstats.un.org/sdgs/report/2021/The-Sustainable-Development-Goals-Report-2021.pdf

United Nations (1987). "Our Common Future". Report of the World Commission on Environment and Development

United Nations Global Compact. (2018). Reporting on the SDGs—Shape the future of corporate reporting on the SDGs. https://www.unglobalcompact.org/take-action/action/sdg-reporting

Vorisek, D. L., & Yu, S. (2020). Understanding the Cost of Achieving the Sustainable Development Goals. In World Bank, Washington, DC eBooks. https://doi.org/10.1596/1813-9450-9164

Walker, J., Pekmezovic, A., & Walker, G. (2019). Sustainable Development Goals: Harnessing Business to Achieve the SDGs through Finance, Technology and Law Reform. John Wiley & Sons.

LINKS

Dpicampaigns. (2020, September 19). Take Action for the Sustainable Development Goals - United Nations Sustainable Development. United Nations Sustainable Development. http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/%20sustainable-developmentgoals

EEAE (n.d.). Responsibilities - Ελληνική Επιτροπή Ατομικής Ενέργειας. https://eeae.gr/en/eeae/responsibilities

EEAE (n.d.). EEAE Safety Culture - Ελληνική Επιτροπή Ατομικής Ενέργειας., https://eeae.gr/en/eeae/profile/safety-is-our-priority

EEAE (n.d.). Who we are - Ελληνική Επιτροπή Ατομικής Ενέργειας. https://eeae.gr/en/eeae/profile/who-we-are

Eurostat. (n.d.). Sustainable development goals - Eurostat. https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/sdi

Harvard Business School Online. (2018). What Is Sustainability in Business?. https://online.hbs.edu/blog/post/what-is-sustainability-in-business

The World Business Council for Sustainable Development (n.d.). What the SDGs mean for business. SDG Essentials for Business. https://sdgessentials.org/what-the-sdgs-mean-for-business.html

UnitedNations.(2022).ProgresstowardstheSDGs.https://unstats.un.org/sdgs/files/report/2022/E202255StatisticalAnnexIandII.pdf

United Nations. (n.d.). The 17 Goals | Sustainable Development. https://sdgs.un.org/goals United Nations (n.d.). Global indicator framework for the Sustainable Development Goals.

https://unstats.un.org/sdgs/indicators/Global%20Indicator%20Framework%20after%202 022%20refinement_Eng.pdf

APPENDICES

Appendix I – The 2030 Agenda goals and targets

Goals and targets (from the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development)	Indicators	
Goal 1. End poverty in al	l its forms everywhere	
1.1 By 2030, eradicate	1.1.1 Proportion of the	
extreme poverty for all	population living below the	
people everywhere,	international poverty line by	
currently measured as	sex, age, employment status	
people living on less than	and geographic location	
\$1.25 a day	(urban/rural)	Not applicable in a high-income economy
1.2 By 2030 reduce at	1.2.1 Proportion of	
least by half the	population living below the	
proportion of men	national poverty line, by sex	
women and children of	and age	Not applicable at the business level
all ages living in poverty	1.2.2 Proportion of men,	
in all its dimensions	women and children of all ages	
according to national	living in poverty in all its	
definitions	dimensions according to	
	national definitions	Not applicable at the business level
1.3 Implement nationally	1.3.1 Proportion of	
appropriate social	population covered by social	
protection systems and	protection floors/systems, by	
measures for all	sex, distinguishing children,	
including floors and by	unemployed persons, older	
2020 achieve substantial	persons, persons with	
coverage of the poor and	disabilities, pregnant women,	
the vulnerable	newborns, work-injury victims	
	and the poor and the vulnerable	Not applicable at the business level
1.4 By 2030, ensure that	1.4.1 Proportion of	
all men and women, in	population living in households	
particular the poor and	with access to basic services	Not applicable at the business level
the vulnerable, have		
equal rights to economic		
resources, as well as	1.4.2 Proportion of total	
access to basic services,	adult population with secure	
ownership and control	tenure rights to land, (a) with	
over land and other forms	legally recognized	
of property, inheritance,	documentation, and (b) who	
natural resources,	perceive their rights to land as	
appropriate new	secure, by sex and type of	
technology and financial	tenure	
services, including		
microfinance		Not applicable at the business level

	1.5.1 Number of deaths,	
	missing persons and directly	
	affected persons attributed to	
	disasters per 100,000	
1.5 By 2030, build the	1.5.2 Direct economic loss	
resilience of the poor and	relation to global gross	
those in vulnerable	domestic product (GDP)	
situations and reduce	1.5.3 Number of countries	
their exposure and	that adopt and implement	
vulnerability to climate-	national disaster risk reduction	
related extreme events	strategies in line with the	
social and environmental	Sendai Framework for Disaster	
shocks and disasters	Risk Reduction 2015–2030	Not applicable at the business level
shoeks and disasters	1.5.4 Proportion of local	
	governments that adopt and	
	implement local disaster risk	
	reduction strategies in line with	
	national disaster risk reduction	
1 - Deserve al aviet	strategies	Not applicable at the business level
na Ensure significant	1.a.1 Total official	
from a variety of sources	from all donors that focus on	
including through	poverty reduction as a share of	
enhanced development	the recipient country's gross	
cooperation, in order to	national income	Not applicable at the business level
provide adequate and		
predictable means for		
developing countries, in	1.a.2 Proportion of total	
particular least developed	government spending on	
countries, to implement	essential services (education,	
programmes and policies	health and social protection)	
to end poverty in all its		
dimensions		Not applicable at the business level
1.b Create sound policy		
national regional and		
international levels based		
on pro-poor and gender-	1 b 1 Pro-poor public social	
sensitive development	spending	
strategies, to support		
accelerated investment in		
poverty eradication		
actions		Not applicable at the business level
Goal 2. End hunger, achie	eve food security and improved	
nutrition and promote su	stainable agriculture	
2.1 By 2030, end hunger	2.1.1 Prevalence of	Not employed at the husiness loved
and ensure access by all		Not applicable at the business level
people, in particular the	2.1.2 Prevalence of	
vulnerable situations	moderate or severe food	
including infants to safe	insecurity in the population,	
nutritious and sufficient	based on the Food Insecurity	
	Experience Scale (FIES)	

2.2 By 2030, end all forms of malnutrition, including achieving, by 2025, the internationally agreed targets on stunting and wasting in children under 5 years of age, and address the nutritional needs of adolescent girls, pregnant and lactating women and older persons	2.2.1 Prevalence of stunting (height for age <-2 standard deviation from the median of the World Health Organization (WHO) Child Growth Standards) among children under 5 years of age 2.2.2 Prevalence of malnutrition (weight for height >+2 or <-2 standard deviation from the median of the WHO Child Growth Standards) among children under 5 years of age, by type (wasting and overweight) 2.2.3 Prevalence of anaemia in women aged 15 to 49 years, by pregnancy status (nerventage)	Not applicable at the business level
2.3 By 2020, double the	2.3.1 Volume of production	Not applicable at the busiless level
agricultural productivity and incomes of small- scale food producers, in	per labour unit by classes of farming/pastoral/forestry enterprise size	
particular women, indigenous peoples, family farmers, pastoralists and fishers, including through secure and equal access to land, other productive resources and inputs, knowledge, financial services, markets and opportunities for value addition and non-farm employment	2.3.2 Average income of small-scale food producers, by sex and indigenous status	
2.4 By 2030, ensure sustainable food production systems and implement resilient agricultural practices that increase productivity and production, that help maintain ecosystems, that strengthen capacity for adaptation to climate change, extreme weather, drought, flooding and other disasters and that progressively improve land and soil quality	2.4.1 Proportion of agricultural area under productive and sustainable agriculture	
2.5 By 2020, maintain the	2.5.1 Number of (a) plant	
cultivated plants and	resources for food and	
farmed and domesticated	agriculture secured in either	Not applicable at the business level

wild species, including	conservation facilities	
through soundly managed		
and diversified seed and		
plant banks at the		
plant banks at the		
international lavala and		
International levels, and		
promote access to and	2.5.2 Proportion of local	
fair and equitable sharing	breeds classified as being at	
of benefits arising from	risk of extinction	
the utilization of genetic		
resources and associated		
traditional knowledge, as		
internationally agreed		Not applicable at the business level
2.a Increase investment,	2.a.1 The agriculture	
including through	orientation index for	
enhanced international	government expenditures	Not applicable in a high-income economy
cooperation, in rural	8	Not applicable in a lingh-meetine ceonomy
infrastructure.		
agricultural research and		
extension services.		
technology development	2 a 2 Total official flows	
and plant and livestock	(official development	
gene banks in order to	assistance plus other official	
enhance agricultural	flows) to the agriculture sector	
productive capacity in	nows) to the agriculture sector	
developing countries in		
particular least developed		
countries		Not applicable in a high income economy
2 h Correct and prevent		Not applicable in a lingi-fileonie economy
2.b Correct and prevent		Not applicable in a lingh-income economy
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world		
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world		
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the		Not applicable in a high-income economy
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel alimination of all		Not applicable in a ligh-income economy
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all	2.b.1 Agricultural export	Not applicable in a ligh-income economy
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural ormest subsidies and all	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	Not applicable in a ligh-income economy
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	Not applicable in a ligh-income economy
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with agricultural offert in	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies 2.c.1 Indicator of food price	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and facilitate timely access to	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies 2.c.1 Indicator of food price anomalies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and facilitate timely access to market information,	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies 2.c.1 Indicator of food price anomalies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and facilitate timely access to market information, including on food	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies 2.c.1 Indicator of food price anomalies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and facilitate timely access to market information, including on food reserves, in order to help	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies 2.c.1 Indicator of food price anomalies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and facilitate timely access to market information, including on food reserves, in order to help limit extreme food price	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies 2.c.1 Indicator of food price anomalies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and facilitate timely access to market information, including on food reserves, in order to help limit extreme food price volatility	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies 2.c.1 Indicator of food price anomalies	Not applicable at the business level
2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round 2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and facilitate timely access to market information, including on food reserves, in order to help limit extreme food price volatility Goal 3. Ensure healthy liv	2.b.1 Agricultural export subsidies 2.c.1 Indicator of food price anomalies	Not applicable at the business level

3.1 By 2030, reduce the	3.1.1 Maternal mortality	
global maternal mortality ratio to less than 70 per 100,000 live births	3.1.2 Proportion of births attended by skilled health personnel	
3.2 By 2030, end preventable deaths of newborns and children	3.2.1 Under-5 mortality rate	
all countries aiming to reduce neonatal mortality to at least as low as 12 per 1,000 live births and under-5 mortality to at least as low as 25 per 1,000 live births	3.2.2 Neonatal mortality rate	
3.3 By 2030, end the	3.3.1 Number of new HIV infections per 1,000 uninfected population, by sex, age and key	
epidemics of AIDS,	populations	Not applicable at the business level
tuberculosis, malaria and	per 100,000 population	
diseases and combat	3.3.3 Malaria incidence per	Malaria has been eradicated in Europe
hepatitis, water-borne	3.3.4 Hepatitis B incidence	
communicable diseases	per 100,000 population	
	3.3.3 Number of people	
	requiring interventions against	
	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases	Not applicable at the business level
3.4 By 2030, reduce by	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate	Not applicable at the business level
3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from pop-	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease cancer diabetes or	Not applicable at the business level
3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease	Not applicable at the business level
3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease 3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate	Not applicable at the business level
3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate3.5.1 Coverage of treatment interventions	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non-communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and wellbeing 3.5 Strengthen the 	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease 3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate 3.5.1 Coverage of treatment interventions (pharmacological, psychosocial	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non-communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and wellbeing 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment 	requiring interventions againstneglected tropical diseases3.4.1 Mortality rateattributed to cardiovasculardisease, cancer, diabetes orchronic respiratory disease3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate3.5.1 Coverage of treatmentinterventions(pharmacological, psychosocialand rehabilitation and aftercare	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including paractic days 	requiring interventions againstneglected tropical diseases3.4.1 Mortality rateattributed to cardiovasculardisease, cancer, diabetes orchronic respiratory disease3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate3.5.1 Coverage of treatmentinterventions(pharmacological, psychosocialand rehabilitation and aftercareservices) for substance use	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of 	requiring interventions againstneglected tropical diseases3.4.1 Mortality rateattributed to cardiovasculardisease, cancer, diabetes orchronic respiratory disease3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate3.5.1 Coverage of treatmentinterventions(pharmacological, psychosocialand rehabilitation and aftercareservices) for substance usedisorders3.5.2 Alcohol per capita	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of alcohol 	requiring interventions againstneglected tropical diseases3.4.1 Mortality rateattributed to cardiovasculardisease, cancer, diabetes orchronic respiratory disease3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate3.5.1 Coverage of treatmentinterventions(pharmacological, psychosocialand rehabilitation and aftercareservices) for substance usedisorders3.5.2 Alcohol per capitaconsumption (aged 15 years	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of alcohol 	requiring interventions againstneglected tropical diseases3.4.1 Mortality rateattributed to cardiovasculardisease, cancer, diabetes orchronic respiratory disease3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate3.5.1 Coverage of treatmentinterventions(pharmacological, psychosocialand rehabilitation and aftercareservices) for substance usedisorders3.5.2 Alcohol per capitaconsumption (aged 15 yearsand older) within a calendaryear in litres of pure alcohol	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non-communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and wellbeing 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of alcohol 3.6 By 2020, halve the 	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate3.5.1 Coverage of treatment interventions (pharmacological, psychosocial and rehabilitation and aftercare services) for substance use disorders3.5.2 Alcohol per capita consumption (aged 15 years and older) within a calendar year in litres of pure alcohol	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of alcohol 3.6 By 2020, halve the number of global deaths 	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease 3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate 3.5.1 Coverage of treatment interventions (pharmacological, psychosocial and rehabilitation and aftercare services) for substance use disorders 3.5.2 Alcohol per capita consumption (aged 15 years and older) within a calendar year in litres of pure alcohol 3.6.1 Death rate due to road	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of alcohol 3.6 By 2020, halve the number of global deaths and injuries from road traffic accidents 	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease 3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate 3.5.1 Coverage of treatment interventions (pharmacological, psychosocial and rehabilitation and aftercare services) for substance use disorders 3.5.2 Alcohol per capita consumption (aged 15 years and older) within a calendar year in litres of pure alcohol 3.6.1 Death rate due to road traffic injuries	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non-communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and wellbeing 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of alcohol 3.6 By 2020, halve the number of global deaths and injuries from road traffic accidents 3.7 By 2030, ensure 	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease 3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate 3.5.1 Coverage of treatment interventions (pharmacological, psychosocial and rehabilitation and aftercare services) for substance use disorders 3.5.2 Alcohol per capita consumption (aged 15 years and older) within a calendar year in litres of pure alcohol 3.6.1 Death rate due to road traffic injuries	Not applicable at the business level
 3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well- being 3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of alcohol 3.6 By 2020, halve the number of global deaths and injuries from road traffic accidents 3.7 By 2030, ensure universal access to sexual 	requiring interventions against neglected tropical diseases 3.4.1 Mortality rate attributed to cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes or chronic respiratory disease 3.4.2 Suicide mortality rate 3.5.1 Coverage of treatment interventions (pharmacological, psychosocial and rehabilitation and aftercare services) for substance use disorders 3.5.2 Alcohol per capita consumption (aged 15 years and older) within a calendar year in litres of pure alcohol 3.6.1 Death rate due to road traffic injuries 3.7.1 Proportion of women of reproductive age (aged 15–	Not applicable at the business level

care services, including for family planning, information and education, and the integration of	for family planning satisfied with modern methods 3.7.2 Adolescent birth rate	
reproductive health into national strategies and programmes	(aged 10–14 years; aged 15– 19 years) per 1,000 women in that age group	Not applicable at the business level
3.8 Achieve universal health coverage, including financial risk protection, access to quality essential health-	3.8.1 Coverage of essential health services	
care services and access to safe, effective, quality and affordable essential medicines and vaccines for all	3.8.2 Proportion of population with large household expenditures on health as a share of total household expenditure or income	
2.0 Pr. 2020	3.9.1 Mortality rate attributed to household and ambient air pollution	
substantially reduce the number of deaths and illnesses from hazardous chemicals and air, water and soil pollution and contamination	3.9.2 Mortality rate attributed to unsafe water, unsafe sanitation and lack of hygiene (exposure to unsafe Water, Sanitation and Hygiene for All (WASH) services)	
	3.9.3 Mortality rate attributed to unintentional poisoning	
3.a Strengthen the implementation of the World Health Organization Framework Convention on Tobacco	3.a.1 Age-standardized prevalence of current tobacco use among persons aged 15 years and older	
as appropriate		Not applicable at the business level
3.6 Support the research and development of vaccines and medicines for the communicable	3.b.1 Proportion of the target population covered by all vaccines included in their national programme	Not applicable at the business level
and non-communicable diseases that primarily affect developing	3.b.2 Total net official development assistance to medical research and basic	
countries, provide access to affordable essential medicines and vaccines, in accordance with the	3.b.3 Proportion of health	Not applicable at the business level
Doha Declaration on the TRIPS Agreement and Public Health, which affirms the right of	facilities that have a core set of relevant essential medicines available and affordable on a sustainable basis	
developing countries to use to the full the		Not applicable at the business level

provisions in the		
Agreement on Trade-		
Related Aspects of		
Intellectual Property		
Rights regarding		
flovibilities to protect		
number in and in		
public licardi, and, in		
to modicines for all		
to medicines for all		
3.c Substantially increase		
health financing and the		
recruitment,		
development, training		
and retention of the	3 c 1 Health worker density	
health workforce in	and distribution	
developing countries,		
especially in least		
developed countries and		
small island developing		
States		Not applicable in a high-income economy
3.d Strengthen the	3.d.1 International Health	
capacity of all countries	Regulations (IHR) capacity	
in particular developing	and health emergency	
countries for early	preparedness	Not applicable at the business level
warning risk reduction	3 d 2 Percentage of	The applicable at the business level
and management of	bloodstream infections due to	
national and global health	selected entimicrobial registent	
national and global health	selected antimicrobial-resistant	Not applicable at the hypiness level
FISKS		Not applicable at the business level
Coold Engine in directory		
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a	and equitable quality education	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong lear	ning opportunities for all	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong lear	and equitable quality education ning opportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong lear	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (<i>a</i>) in grades	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (<i>a</i>) in grades 2/3; (<i>b</i>) at the end of primary;	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii)	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning	4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes	And equitable quality education ning opportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (<i>a</i>) in grades 2/3; (<i>b</i>) at the end of primary; and (<i>c</i>) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes	And equitable quality education ning opportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, upper	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes	And equitable quality education ning opportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education)	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes	 And equitable quality education and contract of the equitable quality education and poportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) 4.2.1 Proportion of children 	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes	 and equitable quality education and poportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) 4.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are 	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have	 and equitable quality education ning opportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) 4.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in 	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early	And equitable quality education ning opportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (<i>a</i>) in grades 2/3; (<i>b</i>) at the end of primary; and (<i>c</i>) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) 4.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childbood development	 And equitable quality education ning opportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education, upper secondary education, upper secondary education) 4.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being by 	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary	And equitable quality education ning opportunities for all 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (<i>a</i>) in grades 2/3; (<i>b</i>) at the end of primary; and (<i>c</i>) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) 4.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being, by sex	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are	A contract of the end	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary	 A.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex A.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) A.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being, by sex A.2.2 Participation rate in organized learning (one year) 	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary	 A.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex A.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) A.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being, by sex A.2.2 Participation rate in organized learning (one year heafth primary) 	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary education	 A.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex A.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) A.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being, by sex A.2.2 Participation rate in organized learning (one year before the official primary entry age) by sex 	
 Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary education 	 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) 4.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being, by sex 4.2.2 Participation rate in organized learning (one year before the official primary entry age), by sex 	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary education	 4.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex 4.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) 4.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being, by sex 4.2.2 Participation rate in organized learning (one year before the official primary entry age), by sex 4.3.1 Participation rate of 	
Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary education 4.3 By 2030, ensure equal access for all women and	 A.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex A.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) A.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being, by sex A.2.2 Participation rate in organized learning (one year before the official primary entry age), by sex A.3.1 Participation rate of youth and adults in formal and 	
 Goal 4. Ensure inclusive a and promote lifelong learn 4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes 4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary education 4.3 By 2030, ensure equal access for all women and men to affordable and mento afforda	 A.1.1 Proportion of children and young people (a) in grades 2/3; (b) at the end of primary; and (c) at the end of lower secondary achieving at least a minimum proficiency level in (i) reading and (ii) mathematics, by sex A.1.2 Completion rate (primary education, lower secondary education, lower secondary education, upper secondary education) A.2.1 Proportion of children aged 24–59 months who are developmentally on track in health, learning and psychosocial well-being, by sex A.2.2 Participation rate in organized learning (one year before the official primary entry age), by sex A.3.1 Participation rate of youth and adults in formal and pon-formal education and 	

vocational and tertiary education, including university	training in the previous 12 months, by sex	
4.4 By 2030, substantially increase the number of youth and adults who have relevant skills, including technical and vocational skills, for employment, decent jobs and entrepreneurship	4.4.1 Proportion of youth and adults with information and communications technology (ICT) skills, by type of skill	
4.5 By 2030, eliminate gender disparities in education and ensure equal access to all levels of education and vocational training for the vulnerable, including persons with disabilities, indigenous peoples and children in vulnerable situations	4.5.1 Parity indices (female/male, rural/urban, bottom/top wealth quintile and others such as disability status, indigenous peoples and conflict-affected, as data become available) for all education indicators on this list that can be disaggregated	
4.6 By 2030, ensure that all youth and a substantial proportion of adults, both men and women, achieve literacy and numeracy	4.6.1 Proportion of population in a given age group achieving at least a fixed level of proficiency in functional (<i>a</i>) literacy and (<i>b</i>) numeracy skills, by sex	Not applicable at the business level
4.7 By 2030, ensure that all learners acquire the knowledge and skills needed to promote sustainable development, including, among others, through education for sustainable development and sustainable lifestyles, human rights, gender equality, promotion of a culture of peace and non- violence, global citizenship and appreciation of cultural diversity and of culture's contribution to sustainable development	4.7.1 Extent to which (i) global citizenship education and (ii) education for sustainable development are mainstreamed in (<i>a</i>) national education policies; (<i>b</i>) curricula; (<i>c</i>) teacher education; and (<i>d</i>) student assessment	Not applicable at the business level
4.a Build and upgrade education facilities that are child, disability and gender sensitive and provide safe, non-violent, inclusive and effective learning environments for all	4.a.1 Proportion of schools offering basic services, by type of service	Not applicable at the business level

4.b By 2020, substantially expand globally the number of scholarships available to developing countries, in particular least developed countries, small island developing States and African countries, for enrolment in higher education, including vocational training and information and communications technology, technical, engineering and scientific programmes, in developed countries and other developing countries	4.b.1 Volume of official development assistance flows for scholarships by sector and type of study	
4.c By 2030, substantially increase the supply of qualified teachers, including through international cooperation for teacher training in developing countries, especially least developed countries and small island developing States Goal 5. Achieve gender en	4.c.1 Proportion of teachers with the minimum required qualifications, by education level	Not applicable at the business level
women and girls	luanty and empower an	
5.1 End all forms of discrimination against all women and girls everywhere	5.1.1 Whether or not legal frameworks are in place to promote, enforce and monitor equality and non-discrimination on the basis of sex	Not applicable at the business level
	5.2.1 Proportion of ever- partnered women and girls	

5.3 Eliminate all harmful practices, such as child, early and forced marriage and female genital mutilation	5.3.1 Proportion of women aged 20–24 years who were married or in a union before age 15 and before age 18 5.3.2 Proportion of girls and women aged 15–49 years who have undergone female genital mutilation/cutting, by age	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
5.4 Recognize and value unpaid care and domestic work through the provision of public services, infrastructure and social protection policies and the promotion of shared responsibility within the household and the family as nationally appropriate	5.4.1 Proportion of time spent on unpaid domestic and care work, by sex, age and location	Not applicable at the business level
5.5 Ensure women's full and effective participation and equal opportunities for leadership at all levels of decision-making in political, economic and	5.5.1 Proportion of seats held by women in (<i>a</i>) national parliaments and (<i>b</i>) local governments 5.5.2 Proportion of women in managerial positions	Not applicable at the business level
public life5.6 Ensure universalaccess to sexual andreproductive health andreproductive rights asagreed in accordancewith the Programme of	5.6.1 Proportion of women aged 15–49 years who make their own informed decisions regarding sexual relations, contraceptive use and reproductive health care	Not applicable at the business level
Action of the International Conference on Population and Development and the Beijing Platform for Action and the outcome documents of their review conferences	5.6.2 Number of countries with laws and regulations that guarantee full and equal access to women and men aged 15 years and older to sexual and reproductive health care, information and education	Not applicable at the business level
5.a Undertake reforms to give women equal rights to economic resources, as well as access to ownership and control over land and other forms of property financial	5.a.1 (<i>a</i>) Proportion of total agricultural population with ownership or secure rights over agricultural land, by sex; and (<i>b</i>) share of women among owners or rights-bearers of agricultural land, by type of tenure	Not applicable at the business level
services, inheritance and natural resources, in accordance with national laws	5.a.2 Proportion of countries where the legal framework (including customary law) guarantees women's equal rights to land ownership and/or control	Not applicable at the business level

5.b Enhance the use of enabling technology, in particular information and communications technology, to promote the empowerment of women 5.c Adopt and strengthen sound policies and enforceable legislation for the promotion of gender equality and the empowerment of all women and girls at all levels	5.b.1 Proportion of individuals who own a mobile telephone, by sex 5.c.1 Proportion of countries with systems to track and make public allocations for gender equality and women's empowerment	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
Goal 6. Ensure availabilit of water and sanitation fo	y and sustainable management r all	
6.1 By 2030, achieve universal and equitable access to safe and affordable drinking water for all	6.1.1 Proportion of population using safely managed drinking water services	Not applicable in a high-income economy
6.2 By 2030, achieve access to adequate and equitable sanitation and hygiene for all and end open defecation, paying special attention to the needs of women and girls and those in vulnerable	6.2.1 Proportion of population using (<i>a</i>) safely managed sanitation services and (<i>b</i>) a hand-washing facility with soap and water	Not applicable in a bich income coopony.
6.3 By 2030, improve	6.2.1 Proportion of domestic	Not applicable in a high-income economy
water quality by reducing pollution, eliminating	and industrial wastewater flows safely treated	
release of hazardous chemicals and materials, halving the proportion of untreated wastewater and substantially increasing recycling and safe reuse globally	6.3.2 Proportion of bodies of water with good ambient water quality	Not applicable at the business level
6.4 By 2030, substantially increase water-use efficiency	6.4.1 Change in water-use efficiency over time	
across all sectors and ensure sustainable withdrawals and supply of freshwater to address water scarcity and substantially reduce the number of people suffering from water scarcity	6.4.2 Level of water stress: freshwater withdrawal as a proportion of available freshwater resources	

6.5 By 2030, implement	6.5.1 Degree of integrated	
integrated water	water resources management	Not applicable at the business level
resources management at		The applicable at the busiless level
all levels, including	6.5.2 Proportion of	
through transboundary	transboundary basin area with	
cooperation as	an operational arrangement for	
appropriate	water cooperation	Not applicable at the business level
6.6 By 2020, protect and		
restore water-related	6.6.1 Change in the extent of	
ecosystems, including	water related ecosystems over	
mountains, forests,	time	
wetlands, rivers, aquifers	ume	
and lakes		Not applicable at the business level
6.a By 2030, expand		
international cooperation		
and capacity-building		
support to developing		
countries in water- and	6.a.1 Amount of water- and	
sanitation-related	sanitation-related official	
activities and	development assistance that is	
programmes, including	part of a government-	
water harvesting	coordinated spending plan	
desalination water	ecorumated spending plan	
efficiency wastewater		
treatment, recycling and		
reuse technologies		Not applicable at the business level
Teuse teennologies	6 h 1 Proportion of local	Not applicable at the busiless level
6.b Support and	administrative units with	
strengthen the	astablished and operational	
participation of local	policies and precedures for	
communities in	policies and procedures for	
improving water and		
sanitation management	communities in water and	
	sanitation management	Not applicable at the business level
and modern energy for al	litordable, reliable, sustainable	
 	7.1.1 Proportion of	
	population with access to	
7.1 By 2030, ensure	electricity	Not applicable in a high-income economy
universal access to	7.1.2 Proportion of	
affordable, reliable and	nonulation with primary	
modern energy services	reliance on clean fuels and	
	technology	
7.2 By 2030 increase		
substantially the share of	7.2.1 Renewable energy	
renewable energy in the	share in the total final energy	
global energy mix	consumption	
7.2 Dy 2020 double the		
global rate of	7.3.1 Energy intensity	
improvement in an anom	measured in terms of primary	
cc .		
ATTICIANOV	energy and GDP	
7 a Pu 2020 and	energy and GDP	
7.a By 2030, enhance	energy and GDP 7.a.1 International financial	
7.a By 2030, enhance international cooperation	energy and GDP 7.a.1 International financial flows to developing countries	
7.a By 2030, enhance international cooperation to facilitate access to	7.a.1 International financial flows to developing countries in support of clean energy	
7.a By 2030, enhance international cooperation to facilitate access to clean energy research and	7.a.1 International financial flows to developing countries in support of clean energy research and development and	
7.a By 2030, enhance international cooperation to facilitate access to clean energy research and technology, including	energy and GDP 7.a.1 International financial flows to developing countries in support of clean energy research and development and renewable energy production,	

efficiency and advanced and cleaner fossil-fuel technology, and promote investment in energy infrastructure and clean energy technology		
7.b By 2030, expand infrastructure and upgrade technology for supplying modern and sustainable energy services for all in developing countries, in particular least developed countries, small island developing States and landlocked developing countries, in accordance with their respective programmes of support	7.b.1 Installed renewable energy-generating capacity in developing countries (in watts per capita)	Not applicable in a high-income economy
Goal 8. Promote sustained economic growth, full and decent work for all	l, inclusive and sustainable l productive employment and	
8.1 Sustain per capita economic growth in accordance with national circumstances and, in particular, at least 7 per cent gross domestic product growth per annum in the least	8.1.1 Annual growth rate of real GDP per capita	Not omiliashla at the huginoor lavel
8.2 Achieve higher levels of economic productivity through diversification, technological upgrading and innovation, including through a focus on high- value added and labour- intensive sectors	8.2.1 Annual growth rate of real GDP per employed person	Not applicable at the business level
8.3 Promote development-oriented policies that support productive activities, decent job creation, entrepreneurship, creativity and innovation, and encourage the formalization and growth of micro-, small- and medium-sized enterprises, including through access to financial services	8.3.1 Proportion of informal employment in total employment, by sector and sex	

8.4 Improve	8.4.1 Material footprint,	
progressively, through	material footprint per capita,	
2030, global resource	and material footprint per GDP	
efficiency in consumption	1	
and production and		
endeavour to decouple		
economic growth from		
environmental	8.4.2 Domestic material	
degradation, in	consumption, domestic	
accordance with the	material consumption per	
10-Year Framework of	capita, and domestic material	
Programmes on	consumption per GDP	
Sustainable Consumption		
and Production, with		
developed countries		
taking the lead		
8.5 By 2030, achieve full	8.5.1 Average hourly	
and productive	earnings of employees, by sex,	
employment and decent	age, occupation and persons	
work for all women and	with disabilities	
men, including for young	8.5.2 Unemployment rate.	
people and persons with	by sex, age and persons with	
disabilities, and equal pay	disabilities	
for work of equal value		
8.6 By 2020,	8.6.1 Proportion of youth	
substantially reduce the	(aged 15–24 years) not in	
proportion of youth not in	education, employment or	
employment, education	training	
8.7 Take immediate and		
offective measures to		
eradicate forced labour		
end modern slavery and		
human trafficking and	8.7.1 Proportion and number	
secure the prohibition and	of children aged 5–17 years	
elimination of the worst	engaged in child labour by sex	
forms of child labour.		
forme of other incomity	and age	
including recruitment and	and age	
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and	and age	
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour	and age	
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms	and age	Not applicable in a high-income economy
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms	and age 8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal	Not applicable in a high-income economy
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per	Not applicable in a high-income economy
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and	Not applicable in a high-income economy
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status	Not applicable in a high-income economy
 including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working 	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status 8.8.2 Level of national	Not applicable in a high-income economy
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status 8.8.2 Level of national compliance with labour rights	Not applicable in a high-income economy
 including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all workers, including 	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status 8.8.2 Level of national compliance with labour rights (freedom of association and	Not applicable in a high-income economy
 including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all workers, including migrant workers, in 	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status 8.8.2 Level of national compliance with labour rights (freedom of association and collective bargaining) based on	Not applicable in a high-income economy
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all workers, including migrant workers, in particular women	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status 8.8.2 Level of national compliance with labour rights (freedom of association and collective bargaining) based on International Labour	Not applicable in a high-income economy
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all workers, including migrant workers, in particular women migrants, and those in	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status 8.8.2 Level of national compliance with labour rights (freedom of association and collective bargaining) based on International Labour Organization (ILO) textual	Not applicable in a high-income economy
including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all workers, including migrant workers, in particular women migrants, and those in precarious employment	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status 8.8.2 Level of national compliance with labour rights (freedom of association and collective bargaining) based on International Labour Organization (ILO) textual sources and national	Not applicable in a high-income economy
 including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms 8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all workers, including migrant workers, in particular women migrants, and those in precarious employment 	8.8.1 Fatal and non-fatal occupational injuries per 100,000 workers, by sex and migrant status 8.8.2 Level of national compliance with labour rights (freedom of association and collective bargaining) based on International Labour Organization (ILO) textual sources and national legislation, by sex and migrant	Not applicable in a high-income economy

8.9 By 2030, devise and implement policies to promote sustainable tourism that creates jobs and promotes local culture and products	8.9.1 Tourism direct GDP as a proportion of total GDP and in growth rate 8.10.1 (<i>a</i>) Number of commercial bank branches per	
8.10 Strengthen the capacity of domestic financial institutions to encourage and expand	100,000 adults and (b) number of automated teller machines (ATMs) per 100,000 adults	
access to banking, insurance and financial services for all	8.10.2 Proportion of adults (15 years and older) with an account at a bank or other financial institution or with a mobile-money-service provider	
8.a Increase Aid for Trade support for developing countries, in particular least developed countries, including through the Enhanced Integrated Framework for Trade-related Technical Assistance to Least Developed Countries	8.a.1 Aid for Trade commitments and disbursements	Not applicable in a high-income economy
8.b By 2020, develop and operationalize a global strategy for youth employment and implement the Global Jobs Pact of the International Labour	8.b.1 Existence of a developed and operationalized national strategy for youth employment, as a distinct strategy or as part of a national employment strategy	
Organization		Not applicable at the business level
Goal 9. Build resilient inf	rastructure, promote inclusive	
and sustainable industrial	lization and foster innovation	
9.1 Develop quality,	9.1.1 Proportion of the rural	
resilient infrastructure	population who live within	
including regional and	2 km of an all-season road	Not applicable at the business level
transborder infrastructure.		
to support economic development and human well-being, with a focus on affordable and equitable access for all	9.1.2 Passenger and freight volumes, by mode of transport	Not applicable at the business level
9.2 Promote inclusive and	9.2.1 Manufacturing value	
sustainable	added as a proportion of GDP	
industrialization and, by	and per capita	
2030, significantly raise		
industry's share of	9.2.2 Manufacturing	
employment and gross	employment as a proportion of	
domestic product, in line	total employment	
with national	and the programmed and t	
circumstances and		

double its share in least		
9.3 Increase the access of	9.3.1 Proportion of small-	
small-scale industrial and	scale industries in total	
other enterprises, in	industry value added	
particular in developing		
countries, to financial	9.3.2 Proportion of small-	
services, including	scale industries with a loan or	
affordable credit, and	line of credit	
their integration into		
value chains and markets		
9.4 By 2030, upgrade		
infrastructure and retrofit		
industries to make them		
sustainable, with		
increased resource-use		
efficiency and greater	9.4.1 CO_2 emission per unit	
adoption of clean and	of value added	
environmentally sound		
technologies and		
industrial processes, with		
all countries taking action		
in accordance with their		
respective capabilities		
9.5 Enhance scientific	9.5.1 Research and	
research, upgrade the	development expenditure as a	
technological capabilities	proportion of GDP	
of industrial sectors in all		
developing a constring		
including by 2020		
including, by 2050,		
and substantially	9.5.2 Researchers (in full-	
increasing the number of	time equivalent) per million	
research and development	inhabitants	
workers per 1 million		
people and public and		
private research and		
development spending		
9.a Facilitate sustainable		
and resilient		
infrastructure		
development in		
developing countries	9.a.1 Total official	
through enhanced	international support (official	
financial, technological	development assistance plus	
and technical support to	other official flows) to	
African countries, least	infrastructure	
developed countries,		
landlocked developing		
countries and small island		
developing States		Not applicable at the business level

9.b Support domestic technology development, research and innovation in developing countries, including by ensuring a conducive policy environment for, inter alia, industrial diversification and value addition to commodities	9.b.1 Proportion of medium and high-tech industry value added in total value added	Not applicable at the business level
9.c Significantly increase access to information and communications technology and strive to provide universal and affordable access to the Internet in least developed countries by 2020	9.c.1 Proportion of population covered by a mobile network, by technology	Not applicable in a high-income economy
Goal 10. Reduce inequalit	ty within and among countries	
10.1 By 2030, progressively achieve and sustain income growth of the bottom 40 per cent of the population at a rate higher than the national average	10.1.1 Growth rates of household expenditure or income per capita among the bottom 40 per cent of the population and the total population	
10.2 By 2030, empower and promote the social, economic and political inclusion of all, irrespective of age, sex, disability, race, ethnicity, origin, religion or economic or other status	10.2.1 Proportion of people living below 50 per cent of median income, by sex, age and persons with disabilities	Not applicable at the business level
10.3 Ensure equal opportunity and reduce inequalities of outcome, including by eliminating discriminatory laws, policies and practices and promoting appropriate legislation, policies and action in this regard	10.3.1 Proportion of population reporting having personally felt discriminated against or harassed in the previous 12 months on the basis of a ground of discrimination prohibited under international human rights law	
10.4 Adopt policies, especially fiscal, wage	10.4.1 Labour share of GDP	Not applicable at the business level
and social protection policies, and progressively achieve greater equality	10.4.2 Redistributive impact of fiscal policy ²	Not applicable at the business level
10.5 Improve the regulation and monitoring of global financial markets and institutions	10.5.1 Financial Soundness Indicators	

implementation of such		
representation and voice for developing countries in decision-making in global international economic and financial institutions in order to	10.6.1 Proportion of members and voting rights of developing countries in international organizations	
credible, accountable and		
legitimate institutions		Not applicable at the business level
10.7 Facilitate orderly,	10.7.1 Recruitment cost borne by employee as a proportion of monthly income earned in country of destination	Not applicable at the business level
safe, regular and responsible migration and mobility of people, including through the	10.7.2 Number of countries with migration policies that facilitate orderly, safe, regular and responsible migration and	
implementation of	mobility of people	Not applicable at the business level
planned and well- managed migration policies	10.7.3 Number of people who died or disappeared in the process of migration towards an international destination 10.7.4 Proportion of the population who are refugees,	Not applicable at the business level
	by country of origin	Not applicable at the business level
10.a Implement the principle of special and differential treatment for developing countries, in particular least developed countries, in accordance with World Trade	10.a.1 Proportion of tariff lines applied to imports from least developed countries and developing countries with zero-tariff	Not applicable in a high-income economy
10.b Encourage official development assistance and financial flows, including foreign direct investment, to States where the need is greatest, in particular least developed countries, African countries, small island developing States and landlocked developing countries, in accordance with their national plans and programmes	10.b.1 Total resource flows for development, by recipient and donor countries and type of flow (e.g. official development assistance, foreign direct investment and other flows)	Not applicable at the business level
10.c By 2030, reduce to	10.c.1 Remittance costs as a	
transaction costs of	remitted	

migrant remittances and eliminate remittance corridors with costs		
Goal 11. Make cities and l	human settlements inclusive,	
sale, resilient and sustaina	able	
access for all to adequate, safe and affordable housing and basic services and upgrade slums	11.1.1 Proportion of urban population living in slums, informal settlements or inadequate housing	Not applicable at the business level
11.2 By 2030, provide access to safe, affordable, accessible and sustainable transport systems for all, improving road safety, notably by expanding public transport, with special attention to the needs of those in vulnerable situations, women, children, persons with disabilities and older	11.2.1 Proportion of population that has convenient access to public transport, by sex, age and persons with disabilities	Net confict la st the business land
11.2 Dry 2020 perhamon	11.2.1 Patie of land	Not applicable at the busiless level
inclusive and sustainable urbanization and capacity	consumption rate to population growth rate	Not applicable at the business level
for participatory, integrated and sustainable human settlement planning and management in all countries	11.3.2 Proportion of cities with a direct participation structure of civil society in urban planning and management that operate regularly and democratically	Not applicable at the business level
11.4 Strengthen efforts to protect and safeguard the world's cultural and natural heritage	11.4.1 Total per capita expenditure on the preservation, protection and conservation of all cultural and natural heritage, by source of funding (public, private), type of heritage (cultural, natural) and level of government (national, regional, and local/municipal)	Not applicable at the business level
11.5 By 2030,	11.5.1 Number of deaths,	
significantly reduce the number of deaths and the number of people affected and substantially decrease the direct economic losses relative to global gross domestic product caused by	missing persons and directly affected persons attributed to disasters per 100,000 population 11.5.2 Direct economic loss attributed to disasters in relation to global gross domestic product (GDP)	
disasters, including water-related disasters, with a focus on protecting	11.5.3 (a) Damage to critical infrastructure and (b) number	Not applicable at the business level
the poor and people in vulnerable situations	of disruptions to basic services, attributed to disasters	
--	--	--------------------------------------
11.6 By 2030, reduce the adverse per capita environmental impact of cities, including by paying special attention to air quality and municipal and other waste management	11.6.1 Proportion of municipal solid waste collected and managed in controlled facilities out of total municipal waste generated, by cities 11.6.2 Annual mean levels of fine particulate matter (e.g. PM2.5 and PM10) in cities (population weighted)	Not applicable at the business level
11.7 By 2030, provide universal access to safe, inclusive and accessible, green and public spaces, in particular for women and children, older persons and persons with disabilities	11.7.1 Average share of the built-up area of cities that is open space for public use for all, by sex, age and persons with disabilities 11.7.2 Proportion of persons victim of physical or sexual harassment, by sex, age, disability status and place of occurrence, in the previous 12 months	Not applicable at the business level
 11.a Support positive economic, social and environmental links between urban, peri- urban and rural areas by strengthening national and regional development planning 11.b By 2020, substantially increase the number of cities and human settlements adopting and implementing integrated 	11.a.1 Number of countries that have national urban policies or regional development plans that (<i>a</i>) respond to population dynamics; (<i>b</i>) ensure balanced territorial development; and (<i>c</i>) increase local fiscal space 11.b.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement national disaster risk reduction strategies in line with the Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction 2015–2030	Not applicable at the business level
policies and plans towards inclusion, resource efficiency, mitigation and adaptation to climate change, resilience to disasters, and develop and implement, in line with the Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction 2015–2030, holistic disaster risk management at all levels	11.b.2 Proportion of local governments that adopt and implement local disaster risk reduction strategies in line with national disaster risk reduction strategies	Not applicable at the business level
11.c Support least developed countries, including through financial and technical assistance, in building sustainable and resilient	No suitable replacement indicator was proposed. The global statistical community is encouraged to work to develop an indicator that could be proposed for the 2025	

buildings utilizing local materials	comprehensive review. See E/CN.3/2020/2, paragraph 23.	
Goal 12. Ensure sustainab	ble consumption and	
production patterns	F	
12.1 Implement the 10-Year Framework of Programmes on Sustainable Consumption and Production Patterns, all countries taking action, with developed countries taking the lead, taking into account the development and capabilities of developing countries	12.1.1 Number of countries developing, adopting or implementing policy instruments aimed at supporting the shift to sustainable consumption and production	Not applicable at the business level
	12.2.1 Material footprint,	
12.2 By 2030, achieve the sustainable management and efficient use of natural resources	material footprint per capita, and material footprint per GDP 12.2.2 Domestic material consumption, domestic material consumption per capita, and domestic material consumption per GDP	
12.3 By 2030, halve per capita global food waste at the retail and consumer levels and reduce food losses along production and supply chains, including post-harvest losses	12.3.1 (<i>a</i>) Food loss index and (<i>b</i>) food waste index	
12.4 By 2020, achieve the environmentally sound management of chemicals and all wastes throughout their life cycle, in accordance with agreed international frameworks, and significantly reduce	12.4.1 Number of parties to international multilateral environmental agreements on hazardous waste, and other chemicals that meet their commitments and obligations in transmitting information as required by each relevant	Not applicable at the business level
their release to air, water		
and soil in order to minimize their adverse impacts on human health and the environment	12.4.2 (<i>a</i>) Hazardous waste generated per capita; and (<i>b</i>) proportion of hazardous waste treated, by type of treatment	
12.5 By 2030, substantially reduce waste generation through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse	12.5.1 National recycling rate, tons of material recycled	

12.6 Encourage companies, especially large and transnational companies, to adopt sustainable practices and to integrate sustainability information into their reporting cycle	12.6.1 Number of companies publishing sustainability reports	
12.7 Promote public procurement practices that are sustainable, in accordance with national policies and priorities	12.7.1 Number of countries implementing sustainable public procurement policies and action plans ³	Not applicable at the business level
12.8 By 2030, ensure that people everywhere have the relevant information and awareness for sustainable development and lifestyles in harmony with nature	12.8.1 Extent to which (i) global citizenship education and (ii) education for sustainable development are mainstreamed in (a) national education policies; (b) curricula; (c) teacher education; and (d) student assessment	Not applicable at the business level
12.a Support developing countries to strengthen their scientific and technological capacity to move towards more sustainable patterns of consumption and production	12.a.1 Installed renewable energy-generating capacity in developing countries (in watts per capita)	Not applicable in a high-income economy
12.b Develop and implement tools to monitor sustainable development impacts for sustainable tourism that creates jobs and promotes local culture and products	12.b.1 Implementation of standard accounting tools to monitor the economic and environmental aspects of tourism sustainability	
12.c Rationalize inefficient fossil-fuel subsidies that encourage wasteful consumption by removing market distortions, in accordance with national circumstances, including by restructuring taxation and phasing out those harmful subsidies, where they exist, to reflect their environmental impacts, taking fully into account the specific needs and conditions of developing countries and minimizing the possible adverse impacts on their	12.c.1 Amount of fossil-fuel subsidies (production and consumption) per unit of GDP	Not applicable at the business level

development in a manner		
that protects the poor and the affected communities		
Coal 13 Take ungent esti	on to combat alimate change	
and its impacts ⁴	on to compate change	
una its impacts	13.1.1 Number of deaths,	
	missing persons and directly	
	affected persons attributed to	
	disasters per 100,000	
	population	
	13.1.2 Number of countries	
13.1 Strengthen resilience	that adopt and implement	
and adaptive capacity to	national disaster risk reduction	
climate-related hazards	strategies in line with the	
and natural disasters in all	Sendai Framework for Disaster	
countries	Risk Reduction 2015–2030	Not applicable at the business level
	13.1.3 Proportion of local	
	governments that adopt and	
	implement local disaster risk	
	reduction strategies in line with	
	strategies	Not applicable at the business level
	13.2.1 Number of countries	Not applicable at the busiless level
	with nationally determined	
	contributions long-term	
	strategies national adaptation	
13.2 Integrate climate	plans and adaptation	
change measures into	communications, as reported to	
national policies,	the secretariat of the United	
strategies and planning	Nations Framework	
	Convention on Climate Change	Not applicable at the business level
	13.2.2 Total greenhouse gas	
	emissions per year	
13.3 Improve education	13.3.1 Extent to which (i)	
awareness-raising and	global citizenship education	
human and institutional	and (ii) education for	
capacity on climate	sustainable development are	
change mitigation,	mainstreamed in (a) national	
adaptation, impact	education policies; (b)	
reduction and early	curricula; (c) teacher	
warning	assessment	Not applicable at the business lovel
	assessment	Not applicable at the busiless level

13.a Implement the		
commitment undertaken		
by developed-country		
parties to the United		
Nations Framework		
Convention on Climate		
Change to a goal of		
mobilizing jointly	13.a.1 Amounts provided	
\$100 billion annually by	and mobilized in United States	
2020 from all sources to	dollars per year in relation to	
address the needs of	the continued existing	
developing countries in	collective mobilization goal of	
the context of meaningful	the \$100 billion commitment	
mitigation actions and	through to 2025	
transparency on		
implementation and fully		
operationalize the Green		
Climate Fund through its		
capitalization as soon as		
possible		Not applicable at the business level
13.b Promote		
mechanisms for raising	13.b.1 Number of least	
capacity for effective	developed countries and small	
climate change-related	Island developing States with	
planning and	nationally determined	
management in least	contributions, long-term	
developed countries and	strategies, national adaptation	
small island developing	plans and adaptation	
	communications, as reported to	
States, including focusing		
States, including focusing on women, youth and	the secretariat of the United	
on women, youth and local and marginalized	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework	
on women, youth and local and marginalized communities	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change	Not applicable in a high-income economy
on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas	Not applicable in a high-income economy
on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development	Not applicable in a high-income economy
on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development	Not applicable in a high-income economy
on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development	Not applicable in a high-income economy
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal	Not applicable in a high-income economy
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic	Not applicable in a high-income economy
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities,	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density	Not applicable in a high-income economy
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density	Not applicable in a high-income economy
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density	Not applicable in a high-income economy
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur- and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density	Not applicable in a high-income economy
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur- and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur- and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (a) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (b) plastic debris density	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debriss and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density	Not applicable in a high-income economy
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (a) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (b) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and su and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based approaches to managing	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and su and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based approaches to managing marine areas	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action for their restoration in	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based approaches to managing marine areas	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action for their restoration in order to achieve healthy	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based approaches to managing marine areas	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur- and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action for their restoration in order to achieve healthy and productive oceans	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (<i>a</i>) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (<i>b</i>) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based approaches to managing marine areas	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action for their restoration in order to achieve healthy and productive oceans 14.3 Minimize and	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (a) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (b) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based approaches to managing marine areas	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action for their restoration in order to achieve healthy and productive oceans 14.3 Minimize and address the impacts of	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (a) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (b) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based approaches to managing marine areas 14.3.1 Average marine acidity (pH) measured at	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities Goal 14. Conserve and sur and marine resources for 14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution 14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action for their restoration in order to achieve healthy and productive oceans 14.3 Minimize and address the impacts of ocean acidification,	the secretariat of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change stainably use the oceans, seas sustainable development 14.1.1 (a) Index of coastal eutrophication; and (b) plastic debris density 14.2.1 Number of countries using ecosystem-based approaches to managing marine areas 14.3.1 Average marine acidity (pH) measured at agreed suite of representative	Not applicable in a high-income economy Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level

enhanced scientific cooperation at all levels		
14.4 By 2020, effectively regulate harvesting and end overfishing, illegal, unreported and unregulated fishing and destructive fishing practices and implement science-based management plans, in order to restore fish stocks in the shortest time feasible, at least to levels that can produce maximum sustainable yield as determined by their biological	14.4.1 Proportion of fish stocks within biologically sustainable levels	
characteristics 14.5 By 2020, conserve at least 10 per cent of coastal and marine areas, consistent with national and international law and based on the best available scientific information	14.5.1 Coverage of protected areas in relation to marine areas	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
14.6 By 2020, prohibit certain forms of fisheries subsidies which contribute to overcapacity and overfishing, eliminate subsidies that contribute to illegal, unreported and unregulated fishing and refrain from introducing new such subsidies, recognizing that appropriate and effective special and differential treatment for developing and least developed countries should be an integral part of the World Trade Organization fisheries subsidies negotiation ⁵	14.6.1 Degree of implementation of international instruments aiming to combat illegal, unreported and unregulated fishing	Not applicable at the business level
14.7 By 2030, increase the economic benefits to small island developing States and least developed countries from the sustainable use of marine resources,	14.7.1 Sustainable fisheries as a proportion of GDP in small island developing States, least developed countries and all countries	Not applicable in a high-income economy

including through sustainable management of fisheries, aquaculture and tourism		
14.a Increase scientific knowledge, develop research capacity and transfer marine technology, taking into account the Intergovernmental Oceanographic Commission Criteria and Guidelines on the Transfer of Marine Technology, in order to improve ocean health and to enhance the contribution of marine biodiversity to the development of developing countries, in particular small island developing States and least developed countries	14.a.1 Proportion of total research budget allocated to research in the field of marine technology	Not applicable at the business level
14.b Provide access for small-scale artisanal fishers to marine resources and markets	14.b.1 Degree of application of a legal/regulatory/ policy/institutional framework which recognizes and protects access rights for small-scale fisheries	Not applicable at the business level
14.c Enhance the conservation and sustainable use of oceans and their resources by implementing international law as reflected in the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea, which provides the legal framework for the conservation and sustainable use of oceans and their resources, as recalled in paragraph 158 of "The future we want" Goal 15. Protect, restore a terrestrial ecosystems, sus combat desertification, an degradation and halt biod	14.c.1 Number of countries making progress in ratifying, accepting and implementing through legal, policy and institutional frameworks, ocean-related instruments that implement international law, as reflected in the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea, for the conservation and sustainable use of the oceans and their resources	Not applicable at the business level
15.1 By 2020, ensure the conservation, restoration and sustainable use of	15.1.1 Forest area as a proportion of total land area	Not applicable at the business level

terrestrial and inland		
freshwater ecosystems		
and their services, in	15.1.2 Proportion of	
particular forests.	important sites for terrestrial	
wetlands mountains and	and freshwater biodiversity	
drylands in line with	that are covered by protected	
obligations under	areas, by ecosystem type	
international agreements		Not applicable at the business level
15.2 By 2020 promote		
the implementation of		
sustainable management		
of all types of forests halt		
deforestation restore	15.2.1 Progress towards	
degraded forests and	sustainable forest management	
substantially increase		
afforestation and		
reforestation globally		
15.3 By 2030 combat		
desertification restore		
degraded land and soil		
including land affected	15.3.1 Proportion of land	
by desertification	that is degraded over total land	
drought and floods and	area	
strive to achieve a land		
degradation neutral world		Not applicable at the business level
15 4 By 2020, ansure the	15 4 1 Coverage by	Not applicable at the busiless level
15.4 By 2050, elisure the	rotested gross of important	
ecosystems, including	sites for mountain biodiversity	Not applicable at the business level
their biodiversity in	sites for mountain biodiversity	Not applicable at the busiless level
order to enhance their		
conscitu to provide	15.4.2 Mountain Groon	
bapafits that are assential	Cover Index	
for sustainable	Cover muex	
davelopment		Not applicable at the business level
15.5 Take urgent and		Not applicable at the busiless level
significant action to		
reduce the degradation of		
natural habitats halt the		
loss of biodiversity and	15.5.1 Red List Index	
by 2020 protect and		
prevent the extinction of		
threatened species		Not applicable at the business level
15.6 Promote fair and		
equitable sharing of the		
benefits arising from the	15.6.1 Number of countries	
utilization of genetic	that have adopted legislative,	
resources and promote	administrative and policy	
appropriate access to	frameworks to ensure fair and	
such resources as	equitable sharing of benefits	
internationally agreed		Not applicable at the business level
15.7 Take urgent action		
to end possibing and	15.7.1 Propertion of traded	
trafficking of protector	wildlife that was peached as	
species of flore and former	illigitly trafficked	
species of flora and fauna	incluy trafficked	Not applicable at the business level
and address both demand		Not applicable at the business level

and supply of illegal		
wildlife products		
15.0 D 2020		
15.8 By 2020, introduce		
measures to prevent the	15.8.1 Proportion of	
introduction and	countries adopting relevant	
significantly reduce the	national legislation and	
impact of invasive alien	adequately resourcing the	
species on land and water	prevention or control of	
ecosystems and control or	investive alien species	
eradicate the priority	invasive allen species	
species		Not applicable at the business level
	15.9.1 (<i>a</i>) Number of	
	countries that have established	
	national targets in accordance	
	with or similar to Aichi	
15.9 By 2020 integrate	Biodiversity Target 2 of the	
ecosystem and	Strategic Plan for Biodiversity	
biodiversity values into	2011–2020 in their national	
national and local	biodiversity strategy and action	
planning development	plans and the progress reported	
	towards these targets, and (b)	
reduction strategies and	integration of biodiversity into	
reduction strategies and	integration of biodiversity into	
accounts	national accounting and	
	reporting systems, defined as	
	implementation of the System	
	of Environmental-Economic	
	Accounting	Not applicable at the business level
15.a Mobilize and	15.a.1(a) Official	
significantly increase	development assistance on	
financial resources from	conservation and sustainable	
all sources to conserve	use of biodiversity; and (b)	
and sustainably use	revenue generated and finance	
biodiversity and	mobilized from biodiversity-	
ecosystems	relevant economic instruments	Not applicable at the business level
15.b Mobilize significant		
resources from all		
sources and at all levels	15.b.1 (a) Official	
to finance sustainable	development assistance on	
forest management and	conservation and sustainable	
provide adequate	use of biodiversity; and (b)	
incentives to developing	revenue generated and finance	
countries to advance such	mobilized from biodiversity-	
management, including	relevant economic instruments	
for conservation and		
reforestation		Not applicable at the business level
15 c Enhance global		
support for efforts to		
support for chorts to		
trofficiting and	15 a 1 Drag antion - Cture last	
annexing of protected	wildlife that we want to be	
increasing the second by	illigithe that was poached or	
increasing the capacity of	micility trafficked	
local communities to		
pursue sustainable		

Goal 16. Promote peacefu sustainable development,	l and inclusive societies for provide access to justice for all	
and build effective, accou	ntable and inclusive	
institutions at an ievers	16.1.1 Number of victims of	
	intentional homicide per	
	100,000 population, by sex and	
	age	
	16.1.2 Conflict-related	
	deaths per 100,000 population,	
16.1 Significantly reduce	by sex, age and cause	
all forms of violence and	16.1.3 Proportion of	
related death rates	population subjected to (a)	
everywhere	physical violence, (b)	
	sexual violence in the previous	
	12 months	
	16.1.4 Proportion of	
	population that feel safe	
	walking alone around the area	
	they live after dark	Not applicable at the business level
	16.2.1 Proportion of children	
	aged 1–17 years who	
	experienced any physical	
	putitistiment and/or	
16.2 End abuse,	caregivers in the past month	Not applicable at the business level
exploitation, trafficking	16.2.2 Number of victims of	
and all forms of violence	human trafficking per 100,000	
children	population, by sex, age and	
children	form of exploitation	Not applicable at the business level
	16.2.3 Proportion of young	
	women and men aged 18–	
	29 years who experienced	
	16.3.1 Proportion of victims	
	of violence in the previous	
	12 months who reported their	
	victimization to competent	
	authorities or other officially	
	recognized conflict resolution	
16.3 Promote the rule of	mechanisms	Not applicable at the business level
law at the national and	16.3.2 Unsentenced	
international levels and	detainees as a proportion of	
iustice for all	overall prison population	Not applicable at the business level
Justice for all	16.3.3 Proportion of the	
	experienced a dispute in the	
	past two years and who	
	accessed a formal or informal	
	dispute resolution mechanism	
	by type of mechanism	Not applicable at the business level
16.4 By 2030,	16.4.1 Total value of inward	
significantly reduce illicit	and outward illicit financial	Not applicable at the business level

financial and arms flows,	flows (in current United States	
strengthen the recovery	dollars)	
and return of stolen assets	16.4.2 Proportion of seized.	
and combat all forms of	found or surrendered arms	
organized crime	whose illicit origin or context	
	has been traced or established	
	by a competent authority in	
	line with international	
	instruments	Not applicable at the business level
	16.5.1 Proportion of persons	
	who had at least one contact	
	with a public official and who	
	paid a bribe to a public official	
	or were asked for a bribe by	
16.5 Substantially reduce	those public officials, during	
compution and bribery in	the previous 12 months	Not applicable at the business level
all their forms	16.5.2 Proportion of	
an then forms	businesses that had at least one	
	contact with a public official	
	and that paid a bribe to a public	
	official, or were asked for a	
	bribe by those public officials	
	during the previous 12 months	Not applicable at the business level
	16.6.1 Primary government	
	expenditures as a proportion of	
16.6 Develop effective.	original approved budget, by	
accountable and	sector (or by budget codes or	
transparent institutions at	similar)	Not applicable at the business level
all levels	16.6.2 Proportion of	
	population satisfied with their	
	last experience of public	Net continue la state booling of local
	16.7.1 Proportions of	Not applicable at the busiless level
	positions in national and local	
	institutions including (a) the	
	legislatures: (b) the public	
	service: and (c) the judiciary	
16.7 Ensure responsive,	compared to national	
inclusive, participatory	distributions by sex age	
and representative	persons with disabilities and	
decision-making at all	population groups	Not applicable at the business level
levels	16.7.2 Proportion of	
	population who believe	
	decision-making is inclusive	
	and responsive, by sex, age,	
	disability and population group	Not applicable at the business level
16.8 Broaden and		
strengthen the	16.8.1 Proportion of	
participation of	members and voting rights of	
developing countries in	developing countries in	
the institutions of global	international organizations	
governance		Not applicable in a high-income economy
16.9 By 2030, provide	16.9.1 Proportion of children	
legal identity for all,	under 5 years of age whose	Not applicable at the business level

including birth	births have been registered	
registration	with a civil authority, by age	
16.10 Ensure public access to information and protect fundamental freedoms, in accordance with national legislation and international agreements	16.10.1 Number of verified cases of killing, kidnapping, enforced disappearance, arbitrary detention and torture of journalists, associated media personnel, trade unionists and human rights advocates in the previous 12 months 16.10.2 Number of countries that adopt and implement constitutional, statutory and/or policy guarantees for public access to information	Not applicable at the business level
16.a Strengthen relevant national institutions, including through international cooperation, for building capacity at all levels, in particular in developing countries, to prevent violence and combat terrorism and crime	16.a.1 Existence of independent national human rights institutions in compliance with the Paris Principles	Not applicable at the business level
16.b Promote and enforce non-discriminatory laws and policies for sustainable development	16.b.1 Proportion of population reporting having personally felt discriminated against or harassed in the previous 12 months on the basis of a ground of discrimination prohibited under international human rights law	
Goal 17. Strengthen the m	leans of implementation and	
revitalize the Global Part	nership for	
Sustainable Development		
Finance		
17.1 Strengthen domestic resource mobilization, including through	17.1.1 Total government revenue as a proportion of GDP, by source	Not applicable at the business level
developing countries, to improve domestic capacity for tax and other revenue collection	17.1.2 Proportion of domestic budget funded by domestic taxes	Not applicable at the business level
17.2 Developed countries to implement fully their official development assistance commitments, including the commitment by many developed countries to achieve the target of 0.7 per cent of gross national income for	17.2.1 Net official development assistance, total and to least developed countries, as a proportion of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) Development Assistance Committee donors' gross national income (GNI)	Not applicable in a high-income economy

assistance (ODA/GNI) to developing countries and ODA/GNI to least developed countries: ODA providers are encouraged to consider setting a target to provide at least 0.20 per cent of ODA/GNI to least developed countries: 17.3 Mobilize additional framenic, feed to east developing countries: 17.3 Mobilize additional framenic, feed to east developing countries from multiple sources: for multiple sources from multiple sources from develop	official development		
developing countries and construction of the least developing countries are encouraged to consider setting a target to provide at least 0.20 per cent of ODA GNI to least developing countries that as 0.20 per cent of ODA GNI to least developing countries from multiple sources from develop from the	assistance (ODA/GNI) to		
0.15 to 120 per cent of ODA GNI to least developed countries; 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developed countries 7.3 Mobilize additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources Not applicable in a high-income economy 7.4 Assist developing countries in attaining form multiple sources 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of teal Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining form realing debt relief and financial researces 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining form realing debt relief and financing, debt relief and financial, debt relief and inglity indebted poor countries to reduce debt 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries 17.5.1 Number of countries het adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, net uding the least developed countries Not applicable at the business level 17.6 1 Fixed Internet howald, adversed sectored to adveloping countries, net uding the least developed countries to reduce debt 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed	developing countries and		
0.12 or 0.15 per cent of 0DA providers are encouraged to consider setting a target to provide at least 0.20 per cent of 0DA GNI to least developed countries 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries 17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources for developing countries 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term deb sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering deb financing, debt relief and debt restructiving, as appropriate, and address the external debt of lightly indevelop for countries to reduce debt 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services. Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.5 Adopt and implement investment from multiple sources 17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countries. Not applicable at the business level 17.5 Adopt and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through inperved inrough 17.6.1 Freed Internet brondband subscriptions per 10.0 inhabitants, by speed?	0.15 to 0.20 per cent of		
ODECOM ID 16ast developed countries; ODA GN1 to least developed countries; IT.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources IT.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries; Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources for multiple sources IT.3.1 Volume of remittances (ii United States dollars) as a proportion of total GDP Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in statining long-term debt sustainability through coerdinated policies aimed at fostering debt distress IT.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries, for developing countries, including through countries to reduce debt IT.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including through international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance hnowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination IT.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions pr	ODA/GNL to least		
The endpeen countries; encouraged to consider setting a target to provide the solution of the solution of the solution of the solution (developed countries) 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources 17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources for developing countries from multiple sources 17.3.2 Volume of remittances (in United States dollars) as a proportion of total GDP 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the externel debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for countries to reduce debt distress 17.5.1 Number of countries the adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countries Not applicable at the business level 17.6 A finance North- South, South-South and international cooperation and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terns, including through inproved coordination 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabilants, by speed ⁶	developed a sustrian		
ODA provides are setting a target to provide at least 0.20 per cent of ODA GN to least developed countries 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries T.3 Mobilize additional financial resources for multiple sources 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries Transiti resources for developing countries from multiple sources 17.3.2 Volume of remittances (in United States dollars) as a proportion of total GDP 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relic fand debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of lighty indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries for developing countries, including the least developed countries 17.5.1 Number of countries for developing countries, including the least developed countries Not applicable at the business level 17.6 Trihance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and dimensional cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet browdebad subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	developed countries;		
encouraged to consider setting a target to provide at least 0.20 per cent of ODA (ON) to least developed countries 17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources developing countries from multiple sources from multiple sources countries in a taining long-tern debt sustainability through coordinated policies atimed at fostering debt sustainability through countries in attaining long-tern debt sustainability through countries or reduce debt distress the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt sustainability through countries or reduce debt distress the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for for developing countries, including the least developed countries to reduce debt south, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to seience, technology and innovation and enhance throwstime trowstime to select through countries for developing countries, including through inproved coordination on mutually agreed terms, including through inproved coordination including through interview for the select to broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination including through interview for the select to broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination including through	ODA providers are		
setting a target to provide at leas 0.20 per cent of ODA/GNI to least developed countries 17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources from the from the f	encouraged to consider		
at least 0.20 per cent of OD A/GN1 to least developed countries 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources for developing countries from multiple sources It 7.3.1 Additional financial resources Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies and eat lostering debt distress IT 4.1 Debt service as a proportien of exports of goods and services Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies and services IT 4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services Not applicable at the business level 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countries IT 5.1 Number of countries, including the least developed countries Not applicable at the business level 17.6 Trihance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance IT 6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	setting a target to provide		
ODJAGNI to least developed countries 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources 17.3.1 Additional financial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.3 Mobilize additional from multiple sources 17.3.2 Volume of remittances (in United States dollars) as a proportion of total GDP Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services Not applicable at the business level 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countries 17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countries Not applicable at the business level 17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and tinangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	at least 0.20 per cent of		
developed countries	ODA/GNI to least		
17.3 Makilize additional inancial resources mobilized for developing countries from multiple sources Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relier and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developing countries traingular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance nowedge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination amone existing 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	developed countries		
17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources for developing countriesresources from multiple sourcesNot applicable in a high-income economy17.3.2 Volume of remittances (in United States dollars) as a proportion of total GDPNot applicable in a high-income economy17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countries to reduce debt dignation and enhance Kowh, South-South and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed®		17.3.1 Additional financial	
17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources for developing countries from multiple sources Avata applicable in a high-income economy multiple sources 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt relief and debt returduring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.5 Alopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries tranational cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination among existing through improved coordination and access to science, including through improved coordination anong existing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination among existing through among existing through among existing through among existing through among existing through among existing thro		resources mobilized for	
financial resources for developing countries from multiple sources multiple sources multiple sources 17.3.2 Volume of from multiple sources 17.3.2 Volume of remittances (in United States dollars) as a proportion of total GIP Not applicable in a high-income economy 17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies Image: Contries in attaining long-term debt Image: Contries in attaining long-term debt aimed at fostering debt 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services Image: Contries in attaining proportion of exports of goods and services Image: Contries in attaining proportion of exports of goods and services 17.5 A dopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries, including the least developed countries Image: Contries in investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the Cast developed countries Not applicable at the business level 17.5 A finance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination amount evisition 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per Intract in the propertion of the propertion per triangular regional and innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per Intract in the propertion of coordination amount evisition	17.3 Mobilize additional	developing countries from	
developing countries from multiple sources17.3.2 Volume of remittances (in United States dollars) as a proportion of total GDPNot applicable in a high-income economy17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debi17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and servicesNot applicable in a high-income economy17.4 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries.Not applicable at the business level17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries.17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries.Not applicable at the business level17.6 Enhance North- South, South and riangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination improved coordination improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed®	financial resources for	multiple sources	Not applicable in a high-income economy
from multiple sourcesremittances (in United States dollars) as a proportion of total GDPNot applicable in a high-income economy17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services17.5 Adopt and impement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries including the least developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries, including the least developed countries17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and ringular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per lou inhabitants, by speed"	developing countries	17.3.2 Volume of	
dollars) as a proportion of total GDPNot applicable in a high-income economy17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt ffrancing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developed countriesNot applicable at the business level17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and riangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and imovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed®	from multiple sources	remittances (in United States	
GDPNot applicable in a high-income economy17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business level17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation no and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per II0 inhabitants, by speed*	1	dollars) as a proportion of total	
17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the extrenal debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries including the least developed countries 17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countries Not applicable at the business level 17.6 Enhance North- South, South, So		GDP	Not applicable in a high-income economy
TransmissionTransmissioncountriesintaininglong-term debtsustainability throughcoordinated policiesintend at fostering debtaimed at fostering debt17.4.1 Debt service as afinancing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address17.4.1 Debt service as aproportion of exports of goods and servicesnot servicesappropriate, and addressintendition of exports of goods and servicesthe external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt17.5.1 Number of countries17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries, including the least developed countries17.6 Enhance North- South, South, and triangular regional and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed*including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed*	17.4 Assist developing		Not applicable in a high meenie economy
Iong-term debtsustainability throughcoordinated policiesaimed at fostering debtfinancing, debt relief anddebt restructuring, asappropriate, and addressthe external debt ofhighly indebted poorcountries to reduce debtdistress17.5.1 Number of countriesfirst countriesfor developing countries,for developing countries,for developing countries,least developed countriesfor developing countries,including the least developedcountriesTechnology17.6.1 Fixed Internetknow and access to science,technology andinnovation and enhanceknowledge-sharing onmutually agreed terms,including throughinproved coordinationmutually agreed terms,including throughimproved coordinationmutually agreed terms,including throughimproved coordinationmutually agreed terms,including throughimproved coordinationimproved coordinati	countries in attaining		
International coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries.Not applicable at the business level17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business level17.6 Enhance North- South, South, South, South South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance Nowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed®	long_term debt		
Submittational of y in origin aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt 17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and services 11.5.1 Number of countries to reduce debt Not applicable at the business level 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries, including the least developed countries 17.5.1 Number of countries, including the least developed countries 17.6 Finance North- South, South-South and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	sustainability through		
coordinated pointes17.4.1 Debt service as a proportion of exports of goods and servicesfinancing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business level17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries to reduce debt17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ 17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	sustainability infolgin		
All red at lostering definancing, debt relief and financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt proportion of exports of goods and services 11/4.1 Debt service as a appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt Not applicable at the business level 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries to redeveloping countries, including the least developed countries Not applicable at the business level Technology 17.6 I Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination and access to science, technology and improved coordination 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	coordinated policies		
Inhanching, debt reiter and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress and services Not applicable at the business level 17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries to reducing the least developed countries 17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countries Not applicable at the business level Technology 17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination among existing 17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶		17.4.1 Debt service as a	
debt restructuring, as and services appropriate, and address indiscretions the external debt of inghly indebted poor countries to reduce debt intervices distress 17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and investment promotion regimes promotion regimes for for developing countries, least developed countries including the least developed triangular regional and international cooperation international cooperation 17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, mutually agreed terms, 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	financing, debt relief and	proportion of exports of goods	
appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debtNot applicable at the business level17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries triat adopt and implement including the least developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImplement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business level17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	debt restructuring, as	and services	
the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress 17.5 A dopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries Technology 17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination amone existing	appropriate, and address		
highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distressI adopt and investmentNot applicable at the business level17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImplement including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business level17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed6100 inhabitants, by speed6Implement induction international cooperation induction international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed6	the external debt of		
countries to reduce debt distressNot applicable at the business level17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImplement investment promotion regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	highly indebted poor		
distressImage: Notapplicable at the business level17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImage: Not applicable at the business level17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	countries to reduce debt		
17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries17.5.1 Number of countries that adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnology17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	distress		Not applicable at the business level
17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countriesthat adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImage: Comparison of the second countriesImage: Comparison of the second countriesImage: Comparison of the second countries17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed6Image: Comparison of the second countries		17.5.1 Number of countries	
implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countriesinvestment promotion regimes for developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImage: CountriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImage: CountriesImage: Countries17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhanceImage: Countries17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed6Image: CountriesImage: CountriesI	17.5 Adopt and	that adopt and implement	
promotion regimes for least developed countriesfor developing countries, including the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImage: CountriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImage: CountriesImage: Countries17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhanceImage: Countries17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed6100 inhabitants, by speed6	implement investment	investment promotion regimes	
least developed countriesincluding the least developed countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyImage: CountriesNot applicable at the business level17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhanceImage: Countries17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed%	promotion regimes for	for developing countries,	
countriesNot applicable at the business levelTechnologyInternational cooperation17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhanceInternet Internet17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	least developed countries	including the least developed	
TechnologyImage: Constraint of the second secon		countries	Not applicable at the business level
17.6 Enhance North- South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance17.6.1 Fixed Internetknowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination17.6.1 Fixed Internet broadband subscriptions per 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	Technology		
South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination among existing	17.6 Enhance North		
south, south south and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	South South South and		
international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ including through among existing	trion gular regional and		
international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ including through among existing	internetional and		
technology and innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ including through improved coordination among existing	international cooperation		
innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ including through improved coordination	on and access to science,		
innovation and enhance 17.6.1 Fixed Internet knowledge-sharing on broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ including through improved coordination among existing 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	technology and		
knowledge-sharing on broadband subscriptions per mutually agreed terms, 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ including through improved coordination among existing 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	innovation and enhance	17.6.1 Fixed Internet	
mutually agreed terms, 100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶ including through improved coordination among existing	knowledge-sharing on	broadband subscriptions per	
including through improved coordination among existing	mutually agreed terms,	100 inhabitants, by speed ⁶	
improved coordination	including through		
among existing	improved coordination		
	among existing		
mechanisms, in particular	mechanisms, in particular		
at the United Nations	at the United Nations		
level, and through a Not applicable at the business level	level, and through a		Not applicable at the business level

global technology facilitation mechanism		
17.7 Promote the development, transfer, dissemination and diffusion of environmentally sound technologies to developing countries on favourable terms, including on concessional and preferential terms, as mutually agreed	17.7.1 Total amount of funding for developing countries to promote the development, transfer, dissemination and diffusion of environmentally sound technologies	Not applicable at the business level
17.8 Fully operationalize the technology bank and science, technology and innovation capacity- building mechanism for least developed countries by 2017 and enhance the use of enabling technology, in particular information and communications technology	17.8.1 Proportion of individuals using the Internet	Not applicable at the business level
Capacity-building		
17.9 Enhance international support for implementing effective and targeted capacity- building in developing countries to support national plans to implement all the Sustainable Development Goals, including through North-South, South- South and triangular cooperation	17.9.1 Dollar value of financial and technical assistance (including through North-South, South-South and triangular cooperation) committed to developing countries	Not applicable at the business level
Trade		
17.10 Promote a universal, rules-based, open, non-discriminatory		

17.11 Significantly		
increase the exports of		
developing countries in	17.11.1 Developing	
particular with a view to	countries' and least developed	
doubling the least	countries' share of global	
developed countries'	exports	
share of global exports by	1	
2020		Not applicable in a high-income economy
17.12 Realize timely		
implementation of duty-		
free and quota-free		
market access on a lasting		
basis for all least		
developed countries		
consistent with World	17.12.1 Weighted average	
Trade Organization	tariffs faced by developing	
decisions, including by	countries, least developed	
ensuring that preferential	countries and small island	
rules of origin applicable	developing States	
to imports from least		
developed countries are		
transparent and simple		
and contribute to		
facilitating market access		Not applicable in a high-income economy
Systemic issues		not applicable in a high income coolionity
Policy and institutional		
coherence		
17.13 Enhance global		
macroeconomic stability	17.13.1 Macroeconomic	
including through policy	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard	
including through policy coordination and policy	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard	
including through policy coordination and policy coherence	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard	Not applicable at the business level
including through policy coordination and policy coherence	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries	Not applicable at the business level
including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to	Not applicable at the business level
including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of	Not applicable at the business level
including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i>	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i>	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for Sustainable	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development,	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation 17.16.1 Number of countries reporting progress in multi- stakeholder development	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development, complemented by multi-	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation 17.16.1 Number of countries reporting progress in multi- stakeholder development effectiveness monitoring	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development, complemented by multi- stakeholder partnerships	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation 17.16.1 Number of countries reporting progress in multi- stakeholder development effectiveness monitoring frameworks that support the	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development, complemented by multi- stakeholder partnerships that mobilize and share	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation 17.16.1 Number of countries reporting progress in multi- stakeholder development effectiveness monitoring frameworks that support the achievement of the sustainable	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development, complemented by multi- stakeholder partnerships that mobilize and share knowledge, expertise,	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation 17.16.1 Number of countries reporting progress in multi- stakeholder development effectiveness monitoring frameworks that support the achievement of the sustainable development goals	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level
macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence 17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development 17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development <i>Multi-stakeholder</i> <i>partnerships</i> 17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development, complemented by multi- stakeholder partnerships that mobilize and share knowledge, expertise, technology and financial	17.13.1 Macroeconomic Dashboard 17.14.1 Number of countries with mechanisms in place to enhance policy coherence of sustainable development 17.15.1 Extent of use of country-owned results frameworks and planning tools by providers of development cooperation 17.16.1 Number of countries reporting progress in multi- stakeholder development effectiveness monitoring frameworks that support the achievement of the sustainable development goals	Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level

particular developing	
countries	
17.17 Encourage and promote effective public, public-private and civil17.17.1 Amount in Unitedsociety partnerships, building on the experience and resourcing strategies of partnerships17.17.1 Amount in Unitedsociety partnerships, building on the experience and resourcing strategies of partnerships17.17.1 Amount in UnitedNot applicable at the business level	el
Data, monitoring and accountability	
17.18 By 2020, enhance 17.18.1 Statistical capacity capacity-building support indicator for Sustainable	
to developing countries, Development Goal monitoring Not applicable at the business level	el
including for least 17.18.2 Number of countries	
developed countries and that have national statistical	
small island developing legislation that complies with	
small island developinglegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles ofStates, to increasethe Fundamental Principles of	
small island developinglegislation that complies withStates, to increasethe Fundamental Principles ofsignificantly theOfficial Statisticsorgilically theNot applicable at the business level	el
small island developing legislation that complies with States, to increase the Fundamental Principles of significantly the Official Statistics availability of high- eveloping	el
small island developing States, to increase significantly the quality, timely and reliable datelegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level	el
small island developing States, to increaselegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business level Not applicable at the business level availability of high- quality, timely and reliable datadisaggregated by income17,18,3 Number of countries	el
small island developing States, to increaselegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles ofsignificantly the availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender age raceOfficial StatisticsNot applicable at the business level	el
small island developing States, to increaselegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business leve availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender, age, race, ethnicity, migratory17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under	el
small island developing States, to increaselegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business leve availability of high- quality, timely and reliable datadisaggregated by income, gender, age, race, ethnicity, migratory17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under implementation, by source of	el
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender, age, race, ethnicity, migratorylegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business leve incomestation andsmall island developing status, disability, geographic location and17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under implementation, by source of fundingNot applicable at the business leve implementation and funding	el
small island developing States, to increase significantly the quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender, age, race, ethnicity, migratorylegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business leve17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under status, disability, geographic location and other characteristics17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under implementation, by source of funding	el
small island developing States, to increaselegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business leve availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender, age, race, ethnicity, migratory17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under implementation, by source of fundinggeographic location and other characteristics relevant in nationalfunding	el
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender, age, race, ethnicity, migratory status, disability, geographic location and other characteristics relevant in national contextslegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business levesmall island developing significantly the availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data0fficial StatisticsNot applicable at the business leve17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under implementation, by source of funding17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under implementation, by source of fundingNot applicable at the business leve	el el
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- 	el 21
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- 	el 21
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- 	el
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender, age, race, ethnicity, migratory status, disability, geographic location and other characteristics relevant in national contexts17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan that is fully funded and under implementation, by source of fundingNot applicable at the business leve Not applicable at the business leve17.19 By 2030, build on existing initiatives to develop measurements of17.19.1 Dollar value of all resources made available to strengthen statistical capacity in developing countriesNot applicable in a high-income e Not applicable in a high-income e	el el conomy
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, 	el el conomy
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, 	el el conomy
small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high- quality, timely and reliable datalegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of 	el el conomy
small island developing States, to increaselegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business lewavailability of high- quality, timely and reliable data17.18.3 Number of countries with a national statistical plan 	el conomy
small island developing States, to increaselegislation that complies with the Fundamental Principles of Official StatisticsNot applicable at the business lewavailability of high- 	el el conomy
small island developing States, to increase significantly the quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender, age, race, 	el el conomy





















































As a GPI below 0.97 indicates a disparity in favor of males, while a GPI above 1.03 indicates a disparity in favor of females, we consider it necessary to transform the graph so as the distance from the optimal value of "1" is indicated.





A transformation follows, so as the optimal trend is indicated












































































A transformation follows, so as the gap between each year's value and the optimal value of "8.2" is indicated









Appendix III – Our survey's questionnaire

Dear participants,



This research is conducted for the needs of a doctoral thesis at the University of Piraeus, regarding the implementation of the principles of sustainable development by businesses and organizations. Their sustainable development relates not only to their economic results and achievements but also to their set standards for protecting the environment and the values of our culture. Therefore, in order to ensure the organization's safe, smooth and reliable functioning (combined with the best possible conditions for the society), environmental, social and economic dimensions of sustainability should be equally considered.

Participants in this questionnaire are mainly executives of public or private organizations. The respondents, whose choice was made by random sampling, are called to give answers about their understanding of the principles of sustainable development. They are also called to submit an opinion on the extent that the principles of sustainable development are implemented in their organization. Finally, they are called to evaluate a series of indicators, according to the importance with which each indicator is treated in their organization.

By analyzing the respondent's replies, we wish to create a business sustainability framework to highlight the sustainable development priorities set by public entities or private businesses. At this point, we assure you that the content of the survey as well as your responses on it are confidential data, and as a copyright of the University of Piraeus it will not be used for any other purposes or by a third party. Any data collected will be exclusively used for the conduct of this thesis and the results will be analyzed as a whole, in order to maintain your anonymity.

Please finally note, that there are no right or wrong answers and that it 'll take you about 10 minutes to complete this questionnaire. For answering, please check the appropriate box, giving only one answer to each question.

The rapporteurs,

D. Bouras, PhD Candidate Professor S. Sofianopoulou

PART A

In the table below, you are called to answer questions (Q1-Q15) that relate either to the concept of sustainable development or to the actions undertaken by your business, related to sustainable development principles.

Your answers will be placed on a Likert scale, varying from "Not at all" to "Very". Finally, in case you don't understand a question, please leave it blank.

		Not at all	A little	Neutral	Enough	Very
1	Do you understand the concept or the principles that define sustainable development?					
	(if the answer is "Not at all", skip the next question and move to question 3)					
2	Does your knowledge of the principles that define sustainable development derive from the organization that you work for?					
3	Do you know the vision, the values and the principles of the organization you work for as well as the objectives it is called to fulfil?					
	(if the answer is "Not at all", skip the next question and move to question 5)					
4	To what extent do you consider that the objectives and the purpose that your organization is called to fulfil, are achieved?					
5	Are meetings held, among the members of the organization you work for, during the decision-making process (as a dimension of corporate social responsibility practice)?					
6	Is there safety and hygiene regulation for the staff employed in the organization you work for?					

		Not at all	A little	Neutral	Enough	Very
7	Is there a non-discrimination policy in the organization you work for (racial, social, against women, etc.), both in the recruiting process and in core employment?					
8	Does the organization you work for provide the necessary conditions to ensure that its worker's mental balance and physical integrity are ensured?					
9	Does the organization you work for support education as well as facilitates participation in scientific activities or studies (like providing grants, urging employees to attend seminars, retraining etc.)?					
10	Does your organization facilitate knowledge transfer or support the education of the employees of its cooperating entities (e.g. suppliers, customers, distributors, etc. employees) in order to improve the total quality of common services or products?					
11	Is there an open dialogue approach, information flow and feedback between the organization you work for and its social partners (such as citizens, local authorities, investors, trade unions, NGOs etc.)?					
12	Does the organization you work for cooperate with other organizations in order to resolve critical issues, address common problems and pursue common policies?					
13	Does the organization you work for encourage its workforce to participate in social activities?					
14	Does the organization you work for enhance the necessity of environmental awareness to its employees, by promoting environmental awareness actions? <i>(if the answer is "Not at all", please proceed to Part B')</i>					
15	Are resources or money saved through such actions (such as recycling programs, energy restriction policies, etc.)?					

PART B

The use of indicators for the recording of sustainability-related priorities in any organization is a widely accepted methodology. In the tables that follow, indicators are quoted in a logical order, according to the dimension of sustainability they belong to (environmental, economic, social, or mixed).

In this part, you are asked to evaluate the importance that the organization you work for, gives to each indicator. Your answers will be placed on a Likert scale, varying from "Not at all important" to "Very important". Finally, in case you don't understand a question, please leave it blank.

I. This section includes sustainability indicators relating to the environment (working, natural or urban)

Nr	Indicators	Not at all important	A little important	Neutral	Important	Very important
16	Greenhouse gas emissions					
17	Solid waste management / policy					
18	Liquid waste management /policy					
19	Material recycling within the organization you work for (such as paper collection bins, used batteries cans etc.)					
20	Air quality within the workplace (referring to odours, dust, etc.)					
21	Sound level intensity within the workplace (referring to noise)					
22	Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well					
23	Natural heritage protection (referring to natural, not manmade areas)					

II. This section includes sustainability indicators relating to the economy (employee compensation, growth initiatives, funding e.t.c.)

Nr	Indicators	Not at all important	A little important	Neutral	Important	ery important
24	Employee's net earnings					
25	Employee's additional earnings (for using a private car / paying parking expenses / mobile telephone, etc.)					
26	Employee's participation in the profits of their organization (bonus, shares, bonds etc.)					
27	Innovation's rewarding					
28	Labor's productivity (the results obtained in relation to the number of employees)					
29	Net profit of the organization					
30	Organization's grant programs (National, E.U or International Grant Programs)					
31	Sponsorships					
32	Investing in research and development					

III. This section includes sustainability indicators relating to society (inside or outside the organization, social partners and stakeholders)

Nr	Indicators	Not at all important	A little important	Neutral	Important	Very important
33	Tertiary education graduate's employment					
34	Disabled people employment, as well as infrastructure development for their access to work					
35	Participation of women in leadership positions					
36	Employee participation in the decision-making process					
37	Service quality					
38	Facilities within the workplace (nursery, restaurant, etc.) and the existence of basic services near the workplace (schools, shops, public services, etc.)					
39	Safety at work (provision of occupational accidents, medical examinations of the workforce)					
40	Safety and quality of the public transport network (accidents restriction, adequate policing etc.)					
41	Social awareness actions					
42	Cultural heritage preservation (monuments, architectural buildings, signs, etc.)					
43	Social partner's (stakeholder's) participation in the decision-making process					

IV. This section includes sustainability indicators relating to more than one dimension

Nr	Indicators	Not at all important	A little important	Neutral	Important	Very important
44	Workforce training					
45	Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency)					
46	Additional insurance or retirement programs					
47	Number of leave days					
48	Corruption and abuse (referring to the power and material abuse)					
49	Bureaucracy					
50	Distance travelled to the workplace					
51	Traffic congestion					
52	Quality control					
53	Renewable energy source usage					

DEMOGRAPHICS

GENDER	🗆 Male	□ Female
AGE	 under 20 years old 21 - 30 31 - 40 	 □ 41 - 50 □ over 50 years old
MARITAL STATUS	□ Single	□ Married
PLACE OF RESIDENCE	 Central Athens Northern Athens suburbs Southern Athens suburbs Eastern Athens suburbs Western Athens suburbs 	 Rest of Athens Northern Greece Southern Greece & Crete Central & Western Greece Insular areas
EDUCATION	 Secondary degree Technological Institute University 	MSc degreePhD degree
SPECIALTY	 Administrative staff Teaching staff Medical staff Other (Specify): 	EngineerTechnical staff
TYPE OF BUSINESS ENTITY	 Municipality Public entity Educational Institution Health Units Military service 	 Private company (up to 10 employees) Private company (11 - 100 employees) Private company (over 100 employees) Other (Specify):
FIELD OF ACTIVITY	 Education Civil service / Services generally Other (Specify): 	 Materials trade Small industry (processing raw materials) Industry (processing raw materials)
POSITION IN THE ORGANIZATION	 Employee Chief officer Executive officer 	 Chief executive Other (Specify):

COMMENTS - REMARKS:

Thank you for your time and your willingness to complete this questionnaire, acknowledging you that you can be notified of the survey's results upon your request (in the email or fax you will indicate in the comments).

Appendix IV - The results of the questionnaire

Question-1		
Do you understand the concept or the principles that define sustainable development?		
Not at all	49	12,37%
A little	84	21,21%
Neutral	74	18.69%
Enough	152	38,38%
Very	37	9,34%
Total	396	
Mean	3.10	
Standard Dev.	1.22	
Variance	1.48	
	2,10	
Question-2		
Does your knowledge of the principles that define sustainable development derive from the organization that you work for?		
Not at all	103	29,43%
A little	75	21,43%
Neutral	53	15,14%
Enough	86	24.57%
Verv	33	9.43%
Total	350	
Mean	2,72	
Standard Dev.	1,38	
Variance	1,90	
Question-3		
Do you know the vision, the values and the principles of the organization you work for as well as the objectives it is called to fulfill?		
Not at all	18	4,56%
A little	22	5,57%
Neutral	24	6,08%
Enough	181	45,82%
Very	150	37,97%
Total	395	

Mean	4,09	
Standard Dev.	1,03	
Variance	1,06	
Question-4		
To what extent do you consider that the objectives and the purpose that your organization is called to fulfill, are achieved?		
Not at all	3	0,79%
A little	53	14,02%
Neutral	76	20,11%
Enough	206	54,50%
Very	40	10,58%
Total	378	
Mean	3,56	
Standard Dev.	0,90	
Variance	0,80	
Question-5		
Are meetings held, among the members of the organization you work for, during the decision-making process (as a dimension of corporate social responsibility practice)?		
Not at all	47	11,93%
A little	66	16,75%
Neutral	61	15,48%
Enough	161	40,86%
Very	59	14,97%
Total	394	
Mean	3,29	
Standard Dev.	1,23	
Variance	1,52	
Question-6		
Is there safety and hygiene regulation for the staff employed in the organization you work for?		
Not at all	14	3,53%
A little	37	9,32%
Neutral	39	9,82%
Enough	160	40,30%

Very	147	37,03%
Total	397	
Mean	3,96	
Standard Dev.	1,10	
Variance	1,21	
Question-7		
Is there a non-discrimination policy in the organization you work for (racial, social, against women, etc.), both in the recruiting process and in core employment?		
Not at all	30	7,59%
A little	20	5,06%
Neutral	32	8,10%
Enough	139	35,19%
Very	174	44,05%
Total	395	
Mean	4,03	
Standard Dev.	1,20	
Variance	1,44	
Question-8		
Does the organization you work for provide the necessary conditions to ensure that its worker's mental balance and physical integrity are ensured?		
Not at all	21	5,25%
A little	39	9,75%
Neutral	61	15,25%
Enough	180	45,00%
Very	99	24,75%
Total	400	
Mean	3,75	
Standard Dev.	1,10	
Variance	1,20	
Question-9		
Does the organization you work for support education as well as facilitates participation in scientific activities or studies (like providing grants, urging employees to attend seminars, retraining etc.)?		
Not at all	39	9,85%

A little	87	21,97%
Neutral	70	17,68%
Enough	142	35,86%
Very	58	14,65%
Total	396	
Mean	3,15	
Standard Dev.	1,25	
Variance	1,56	
Question-10		
Does your organization facilitate knowledge transfer or support the education of the employees of its cooperating entities (e.g. suppliers, customers, distributors, etc. employees) in order to improve the total quality of common services or products?		
Not at all	60	15,35%
A little	62	15,86%
Neutral	84	21,48%
Enough	136	34,78%
Very	49	12,53%
Total	391	
Mean	3,11	
Standard Dev.	1,26	
Variance	1,60	
Question-11		
Is there an open dialogue approach, information flow and feedback between the organization you work for and its social partners (such as citizens, local authorities, investors, trade unions, NGOs etc.)?		
Not at all	84	21,48%
A little	110	28,13%
Neutral	89	22,76%
Enough	86	21,99%
Very	22	5,63%
Total	391	
Mean	2,54	
Standard Dev.	1,20	
Variance	1,45	
Question-12		

Does the organization you work for cooperate with other organizations in order to resolve critical issues, address common problems and pursue common policies?		
Not at all	58	14,72%
A little	110	27,92%
Neutral	80	20,30%
Enough	117	29,70%
Very	29	7,36%
Total	394	
Mean	2,82	
Standard Dev.	1,21	
Variance	1,47	
Question-13		
Does the organization you work for encourage its workforce to participate in social activities?		
Not at all	88	22,17%
A little	81	20,40%
Neutral	107	26,95%
Enough	100	25,19%
Very	21	5,29%
Total	397	
Mean	2,69	
Standard Dev.	1,20	
Variance	1,45	
Question-14		
Does the organization you work for enhance the necessity of environmental awareness to its employees, by promoting environmental awareness actions?		
Not at all	62	15,82%
A little	89	22,70%
Neutral	68	17,35%
Enough	118	30,10%
Very	55	14,03%
Total	392	
Mean	3,06	
Standard Dev.		
	1,32	
Variance	1,32 1,74	

Question-15		
Are resources or money saved through such actions (such as recycling programs, energy restriction policies, etc.)?		
Not at all	55	15,71%
A little	90	25,71%
Neutral	81	23,14%
Enough	97	27,71%
Very	27	7,71%
Total	350	
Mean	2,89	
Standard Dev.	1,20	
Variance	1,43	
Question-16		
Greenhouse gas emissions		
Not at all important	94	23,38%
A little important	63	15,67%
Neutral	78	19,40%
Important	97	24,13%
Very important	70	17,41%
Total	402	
Mean	2,97	
Standard Dev.	1,43	
Variance	2,03	
Question-17		
Solid waste management / policy		
Not at all important	47	11,78%
A little important	47	11,78%
Neutral	61	15,29%
Important	124	31,08%
Very important	120	30,08%
Total	399	
Mean	3,56	
Standard Dev.	1,34	

Variance	1,79	
Question-18		
Liquid waste management /policy		
Not at all important	62	15,38%
A little important	49	12,16%
Neutral	66	16,38%
Important	110	27,30%
Very important	116	28,78%
Total	403	
Mean	3,42	
Standard Dev.	1,41	
Variance	1,99	
Question-19		
Material recycling within the organization you work for (such as paper collection bins, used batteries cans etc.)		
Not at all important	16	4,01%
A little important	50	12,53%
Neutral	42	10,53%
Important	138	34,59%
Very important	153	38,35%
Total	399	
Mean	3,91	
Standard Dev.	1,15	
Variance	1,33	
Question-20		
Air quality within the workplace (referring to odours, dust, etc.)		
Not at all important	27	6,78%
A little important	48	12,06%
Neutral	62	15,58%
Important	138	34,67%
Very important	123	30,90%
Total	398	

Mean	3,73	
Standard Dev.	1,21	
Variance	1,46	
Question-21		
Sound level intensity within the workplace (referring to noise)		
Not at all important	23	5,79%
A little important	50	12,59%
Neutral	81	20,40%
Important	139	35,01%
Very important	104	26,20%
Total	397	
Mean	3,64	
Standard Dev.	1,16	
Variance	1,35	
Question-22		
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well		
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important	55	13,99%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important	55 74	13,99% 18,83%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral	55 74 85	13,99% 18,83% 21,63%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important	55 74 85 121	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important	55 74 85 121 58	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total	55 74 85 121 58 393	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total	55 74 85 121 58 393	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev.	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-23	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-23	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-23 Natural heritage protection (referring to natural, not manmade areas)	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-23 Natural heritage protection (referring to natural, not manmade areas) Not at all important	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-23 Natural heritage protection (referring to natural, not manmade areas) Not at all important A little important A little important	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-23 Natural heritage protection (referring to natural, not manmade areas) Not at all important A little important Neutral	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63 1,63 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%
Use of ecological materials, environmentally and human friendly as well Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-23 Natural heritage protection (referring to natural, not manmade areas) Not at all important A little important A little important Neutral Important Neutral Important	55 74 85 121 58 393 3,14 1,28 1,63 1,63 1,63 1,63 1,63 1,63 1,63 1,63	13,99% 18,83% 21,63% 30,79% 14,76%

Total	385	
Mean	3,34	
Standard Dev.	1,25	
Variance	1,56	
Question-24		
Employee's net earnings		
Not at all important	31	7,75%
A little important	42	10,50%
Neutral	73	18,25%
Important	173	43,25%
Very important	81	20,25%
Total	400	
Mean	3,58	
Standard Dev.	1,15	
Variance	1,33	
Question-25		
Employee's additional earnings (for using a private car / paying parking expenses / mobile telephone, etc.)		
Not at all important	89	22,31%
A little important	52	13,03%
Neutral	60	15,04%
Important	142	35,59%
Very important	56	14,04%
Total	399	
Mean	3,06	
Standard Dev.	1,40	
Variance	1,95	
Question-26		
Employee's participation in the profits of their organization (bonus, shares, bonds etc.)		
Not at all important	172	43,11%
A little important	63	15,79%
Neutral	71	17,79%

Important	63	15,79%
Very important	30	7,52%
Total	399	
Mean	2,30	
Standard Dev.	1,36	
Variance	1,85	
Question-27		
Innovation's rewarding		
Not at all important	83	20,70%
A little important	70	17,46%
Neutral	65	16,21%
Important	112	27,93%
Very important	71	17,71%
Total	401	
Mean	3,05	
Standard Dev.	1,41	
Variance	1,98	
Question-28		
Labor's productivity (the results obtained in relation to the number of employees)		
Not at all important	37	9,38%
A little important	53	13,58%
Neutral	52	13,09%
Important	150	37,78%
Very important	105	26,17%
Total	397	
Mean	3,58	
Standard Dev.	1,27	
Variance	1,61	
Question-29		
Net profit of the organization		
Not at all important	45	11.57%
		,5770

A little important	21	5,40%
Neutral	38	9,77%
Important	155	39,85%
Very important	130	33,42%
Total	389	
Mean	3,78	
Standard Dev.	1,28	
Variance	1,64	
Question-30		
Organization's grant programs (National, E.U or International Grant Programs)		
Not at all important	83	21,34%
A little important	54	13,88%
Neutral	71	18,25%
Important	120	30,85%
Very important	61	15,68%
Total	389	
Mean	3,05	
Standard Dev.	1,39	
Variance	1,93	
Question-31		
Sponsorships		
Not at all important	103	27,03%
A little important	72	18,90%
Neutral	75	19,69%
Important	100	26,25%
Very important	31	8,14%
Total	381	
Mean	2,71	
Standard Dev.	1,33	
Variance	1,76	
Question-32		

Investing in research and development		
Not at all important	73	18,58%
A little important	66	16,79%
Neutral	51	12,98%
Important	117	29,77%
Very important	86	21,88%
Total	393	
Mean	3,19	
Standard Dev.	1,43	
Variance	2,03	
Question-33		
Tertiary education graduate's employment		
Not at all important	23	5,72%
A little important	41	10,20%
Neutral	81	20,15%
Important	169	42,04%
Very important	88	21,89%
Total	402	
Mean	3,63	
Standard Dev.	1,11	
Variance	1,23	
Question-34		
Disabled people employment, as well as infrastructure development for their access to work		
Not at all important	71	18,02%
A little important	70	17,77%
Neutral	118	29,95%
Important	99	25,13%
Very important	36	9,14%
Total	394	
Mean	2,89	
Standard Dev.	1,22	
Variance	1,50	

Question-35		
Participation of women in leadership positions		
Not at all important	21	5,28%
A little important	46	11,56%
Neutral	129	32,41%
Important	143	35,93%
Very important	59	14,82%
Total	398	
Mean	3,43	
Standard Dev.	1,05	
Variance	1,10	
Question-36		
Employee participation in the decision-making process		
Not at all important	51	12,72%
A little important	65	16,21%
Neutral	90	22,44%
Important	141	35,16%
Very important	54	13,47%
Total	401	
Mean	3,21	
Standard Dev.	1,23	
Variance	1,52	
Question-37		
Service quality		
Not at all important	4	1,00%
A little important	17	4,24%
Neutral	47	11,72%
Important	144	35,91%
Very important	189	47,13%
Total	401	
Mean	4,24	
Standard Dev.	0,89	
Variance	0,80	
Question-38		
--	------	------------------
Facilities within the workplace (nursery, restaurant, etc.) and the existence of basic services near the workplace (schools, shops, public services, etc.)		
Not at all important	136	34,26%
A little important	78	19,65%
Neutral	69	17,38%
Important	75	18,89%
Very important	39	9,82%
Total	397	
Mean	2,51	
Standard Dev.	1,38	
Variance	1,91	
Question-39		
Safety at work (provision of occupational accidents, medical examinations of the workforce)		
Not at all important	28	7.05%
A little important	20	8.06%
Neutral	52	12 950/
	120	13,85%
	139	35,01% 36 02%
Total	207	30,0270
	357	
Mean	3,84	
Standard Dev.	1,20	
Variance	1,45	
Question 40		
Question-40		
Safety and quality of the public transport network (accidents restriction, adequate policing etc.)		
Not at all important	56	14,62%
A little important	60	15,67%
Neutral	73	19,06%
Important	118	30,81%
Very important	76	19,84%
Total	383	
Mean	3,25	
Standard Dev.	1,34	

Variance	1,79	
Question-41		
Social awareness actions		
Not at all important	55	14,21%
A little important	82	21,19%
Neutral	88	22,74%
Important	113	29,20%
Very important	49	12,66%
Total	387	
Mean	3,04	
Standard Dev.	1,26	
Variance	1,59	
Question-42		
Cultural heritage preservation (monuments, architectural buildings, signs, etc.)		
Not at all important	77	20,26%
A little important	69	18,16%
Neutral	74	19,47%
Important	99	26,05%
Very important	61	16,05%
Total	380	
Mean	3,00	
Standard Dev.	1,38	
Variance	1,91	
Question-43		
Social partner's (stakeholder's) participation in the decision – making process		
Not at all important	98	25,99%
A little important	66	17,51%
Neutral	95	25,20%
Important	97	25,73%
Very important	21	5,57%
Total	377	

Mean	2,68	
Standard Dev.	1,26	
Variance	1,59	
Question-44		
Workforce training		
Not at all important	15	3,76%
A little important	45	11,28%
Neutral	59	14,79%
Important	174	43,61%
Very important	106	26,57%
Total	399	
Mean	3,77	
Standard Dev.	1,08	
Variance	1,17	
Question-45		
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency)		
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important	114	28,57%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important	114 69	28,57% 17,29%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral	114 69 98	28,57% 17,29% 24,56%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important	114 69 98 76	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important	114 69 98 76 42	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total	114 69 98 76 42 399	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total	114 69 98 76 42 399	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev.	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-46	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-46	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-46 Additional insurance or retirement programs	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-46 Additional insurance or retirement programs Not at all important	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82 1,82 1,82 1,82 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-46 Additional insurance or retirement programs Not at all important A little important	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82 1,82 1,82 1,82 1,82 78	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-46 Additional insurance or retirement programs Not at all important A little important Neutral	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82 1,82 1,82 	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%
Programs to support workforce physical and mental health (in order to reduce work stress and increase efficiency) Not at all important A little important Neutral Important Very important Total Mean Standard Dev. Variance Question-46 Additional insurance or retirement programs Not at all important A little important Neutral Important	114 69 98 76 42 399 2,65 1,35 1,82	28,57% 17,29% 24,56% 19,05% 10,53%

Total	398	
Mean	2,61	
Standard Dev.	1,40	
Variance	1,96	
Question-47		
Number of leave days		
Not at all important	26	6,52%
A little important	47	11.78%
Neutral	112	28.07%
Important	141	35,34%
Very important	73	18.30%
Total	399	
Mean	3 47	
Standard Dev	1 1 2	
Variance	1.12	
Valiance	1,25	
Question-48		
Corruption and abuse (referring to the power and material abuse)		
Not at all important	20	5 12%
A little important	36	9 21%
Neutral	71	18 16%
Important	136	34.78%
Very important	128	32 74%
Total	391	52,7170
Mean	3 80	
Standard Dev	1 15	
Variance	1 32	
Valiance	1,52	
Question-49		
Puropueron		
	24	F 260/
	21	5,36%
A little important	34	8,67%
Neutral	74	18,88%

Important	163	41,58%
Very important	100	25,51%
Total	392	
Mean	3,72	
Standard Dev.	1,11	
Variance	1,24	
Question-50		
Distance travelled to the workplace		
Not at all important	66	16,75%
A little important	56	14,21%
Neutral	102	25,89%
Important	111	28,17%
Very important	59	14,97%
Total	394	
Mean	3,10	
Standard Dev.	1,30	
Variance	1,69	
Question-51		
Traffic congestion		
Not at all important	73	18,96%
A little important	65	16,88%
Neutral	97	25,19%
Important	88	22,86%
Very important	62	16,10%
Total	385	
Mean	2,99	
Standard Dev.	1,34	
Variance	1,81	
Question-52		
Quality control		
Not at all important	16	4,10%

A little important	37	9,49%
Neutral	59	15,13%
Important	144	36,92%
Very important	134	34,36%
Total	390	
Mean	3,88	
Standard Dev.	1,11	
Variance	1,24	
Question-53		
Renewable energy source usage		
Not at all important	85	21,74%
A little important	57	14,58%
Neutral	102	26,09%
Important	91	23,27%
Very important	56	14,32%
Total	391	
Mean	2,95	
Standard Dev.	1,34	
Variance	1,81	

Appendix V- The demographics of the survey

Having received 405 responses, we will state a reference to the statistical data of those who participated. We perform this demographic analysis so as to learn more about the population's characteristics and for future deductions to be made between the sample of our research and the general population (especially the number of employed in businesses and organizations). In conclusion, according to the 405 replies, the demographics of the questionnaire are analyzed in the next paragraph of this Appendix.

1. Gender

Beginning with the total number of the men who responded it amounts to 239 replies, while the women who responded were 166. As a result a 59% of those who responded were male respondents, while the 41% were female.

GENDER

Table 1:	Demog	aphics /	Gender
----------	-------	----------	--------

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
Male	239	59,0	59,0
Female	166	41,0	100,0
Total	405	100,0	







Regarding the age of the respondents, we can see that the majority is by far the age group of 31-40, where 174 respondents from the total number of 405 replied. The next group to follow is the age group of 41-50, which in turn is followed by the age group of 50 years old and over. The minority of our sample is the age group of 21 to 30 years old.

These figures are totally justifiable by the fact that our respondent's target group was oriented to senior officers and executives. As it is shown in the table below, 43% of the respondents belong to the age group of 31-40 while 28,4% belong to the age group of 41-50. These two age groups constitute the majority of the respondents with a cumulative percentage of nearly 72%.

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
21 - 30	49	12,1	12,1
31 - 40	174	43,0	55,1
41 - 50	115	28,4	83,5
Over 50 years old	67	16,5	100,0
Total	405	100,0	

Table 2: Demographics / Age

Chart 2: Demographics / Age



3. Marital status

Regarding the marital status of the respondents, we can see that 65% of them is married, while the single ones are nearly 35%. Having already seen that the majority of the respondents are above the 30th year of their life, it is absolutely justified that most of them are married.

MARITAL STATUS Single

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
Single	142	35,1	35,1
Married	263	64,9	100,0
Total	405	100,0	

Table 3: Demographics / Marital status





4. Place of residence

As can be clearly seen from the table below, the vast majority of the respondents lived in Athens although the questionnaire was send to all areas of Greece. Giving an explanation we could say that this is due to the fact that the majority (nearly 40%) of the population of Greece lives in the capital, Athens. However the fact that the cumulative percent of this group respondents is nearly 86% may raise issues of data fidelity. Taking this into account, a chi-square test for independence, between the "Place of residence" variable and the other categorical variables of the questionnaire

may be conducted, in order to exclude the possibility of significant correlation between the "Place of residence" and the rest of the questions.

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
Central Athens	67	16,5	16,5
Northern suburbs of Athens	104	25,7	42,2
Southern suburbs of Athens	69	17,0	59,3
Eastern suburbs of Athens	46	11,4	70,6
Western suburbs of Athens	51	12,6	83,2
Rest of Athens	12	3,0	86,2
Northern Greece	9	2,2	88,4
Southern Greece & Crete	11	2,7	91,1
Central & Western Greece	25	6,2	97,3
Insular areas	11	2,7	100,0
Total	405	100,0	

 Table 4: Demographics /Place of residence

Chart 4: Demographics / Place of residence



5. Educational level

Regarding the respondents' level of education, we can see that around 36 % of them have been awarded an MSc degree, while the second group is those who have a University degree. The minority in the sample is those who have a secondary level degree, who eventually are fewer than 8%. These figures are totally justifiable and verify the acceptance that the higher-level executives have usually been granted a university or an upper level degree. In our case the table that follows is indicative, as we can see that the cumulative percent of those who have awarded a university degree at least, is almost the 76% of the total.

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
Secondary degree	32	7,9	7,9
Technological Institute	64	15,8	23,7
University	130	32,1	55,8
MSc degree	146	36,0	91,9
PhD degree	33	8,1	100,0
Total	405	100,0	

Table 5: Demographics / Education

Chart 5: Demographics / Education level



6. Specialty

Regarding the respondents' specialty, we can see that the larger part of them belong to the administrative stuff. This group consists of office workers in general, and may be composed of executive officers, administrators, managers or employees. Due to the fact that the questionnaire was expected to be answered by the top management of each business, we accept as completely justified the high percentage of this group.

At this point we should clarify that the large number of the "Other" value, is mainly due to the absence of the "military staff" in the list of the corresponding choices. Consequently, we have to admit that this was an omission that should be resolved during the design of the questionnaire.

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative
Administrative staff	237	58,5	58,5
Teaching staff	21	5,2	63,7
Medical staff	12	3,0	66,7
Engineer	89	22,0	88,6
Technical staff	25	6,2	94,8
Other	21	5,2	100,0
Total	405	100,0	

Table 6: Demographics / Specialty

Chart 6:	Demographics	/	Specialty
----------	--------------	---	-----------



7. Type of business entity

Regarding the respondents' type of business entity, we can see that the majority of the respondents work for a private company, regardless of its size. Specifically, the percentage of those who work in a private company is almost the 60% of the total respondents. Consequently, we understand that the rest 40% are public servants, a fact that is also confirmed by 31,1% cumulative of the top 3 categories that belong directly to the state.

At this point it is worth mentioning that, in order to give depth to the data analysis, we divided the public service to subgroups like municipalities, educational institutions and military services.

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative
Municipality	13	3,2	3,2
Public entity	91	22,5	25,7
Educational Institution	22	5,4	31,1
Nursing foundation	14	3,5	34,6
Military service	9	2,2	36,8
Private company (up to 10	92	22,7	59,5
Private company (11 - 100	118	29,1	88,6
Private company (over 100	44	10,9	99,5
Other	2	0,5	100,0
Total	405	100,0	

Table 7: Demographics / Type of Business Entity

Chart 7: Demographics / Type of Business Entity



8. Field of activity

Analyzing the field of the respondent's activity, it is clear enough that the majority of them is working in the services sector, either private or public. This is justifiable, especially if we consider the character of the economy of Greece which is mainly based on the services sector.

What follows as the next group is the materials trade, while the third group is industry. At this point, we should highlight the little participation percentage of those who work for a small industry. This fact cannot be easily justified, especially if we take under consideration that the small industries in Greece are by far the majority. As for an explanation, a realistic approach would be that the interest of the small industry toward sustainable development remains low, but, in order to draw safe conclusions, further investigation is needed.

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative
Education	30	7,4	7,4
Civil service / Services generally	222	54,8	62,2
Materials trade	68	16,8	79,0
Small industry	20	4,9	84,0
Industry	48	11,9	95,8
Other	17	4,2	100,0
Total	405	100,0	

Table 8: Demographics / Field of activity

Chart 8: Demographics / Field of activity



9. Position in the organization

Concerning the respondent's position in the organization, we may notice that the majority group is that of the employees. However, this interpretation is misleading, as over half of the participants are holding positions in the upper level in their businesses. To be more specific, we can see that the aggregate percentage of the respondents who work as top or middle level managers is 53,6%. As a consequence we may accept that this sample verifies the purpose of our survey, which mainly charges the executives of the private or public entities with the responsibility to express their opinion, expose the conditions of their working environment, concerning the implementation of sustainable development's principles and draw up a corresponding policy.

Table 9: Demographics / Position in the organization

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative
Employee	188	46,4	46,4
Chief officer	70	17,3	63,7
Executive officer	63	15,6	79,3
Chief executive	67	16,5	95,8
Other	17	4,2	100,0
Total	405	100,0	

Chart 9: Demographics / Position in the organization

